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Our Vision, Purpose and Strategic Direction 

Our vision 

Waipa: Home of Champions - Building the Future Together 

 

Our purpose 

To partner the community in promoting the wellbeing of the Waipa District and its people. 

 

Strategic direction - Our goals and outcomes for our community 

In 2011 we reviewed the goals and community outcomes developed in 2005 for the two previous 10-
Year Plans.  These revised goals and outcomes are more directive and better define our priorities, 
while continuing to provide a focus on improving community wellbeing.  

 

Measuring progress 

A number of indicators developed to track progress against the strategic goals and outcomes have 
been asked through the annual NRB survey and results are tabulated below. The levels of service 
tables within each of the groups of activities also outline how we have contributed to these 
community outcomes.  In addition, we will continue to publish State of the District Reports based on 
the broader set of community outcomes developed in 2005, and the frequency of this reporting is 
likely to be aligned to the Census cycle. 

 

Economically progressive 

We are focused on growing our prosperity and financial sustainability, now and into the 
future, providing an attractive and affordable district to live and do business in. 

To be economically progressive, we will continue to develop Waipa as a sustainable thriving 
economy built upon the district’s unique characteristics by: 

 Efficiently using resources to deliver services without unreasonably burdening future 
ratepayers; 

 Developing Waipa as a great place in which to do business; and 

 Building a diversified and productive economic base that supports the natural and 
cultural environment. 

Our community outcomes 

We are financially sustainable. 

To support the achievement of this outcome, we have developed and will implement a 
financial strategy and financial management policies.  This strategy and the policies will 
guide our decision making and inform our work programmes.  

Our services are acknowledged as excellent value for money. 

We will continue to monitor, review, and improve the services we provide to ensure they 
are value for money. 
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Waipa’s growth is built on its strengths. 

We will work with stakeholders to prepare and implement an economic development 
strategy for Waipa. This strategy will inform our decision making in matters such as 
infrastructure investment. 

Monitoring progress 

 

Resident satisfaction with the amount of business or commercial 
development in their area 

2012 2013 

Very satisfied/satisfied/neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 88% 91% 

Dissatisfied 9% 7% 

Don’t know 3% 2% 

 

Resident views about whether Council Services and facilities offer good 
value for money 

2012 2013 

Good value for money 61% 63% 

Not good value for money 28% 27% 

Don’t know 11% 10% 

Source: National Business Research (NRB) survey 2013 

 

 

Environmental & cultural champions 

We preserve, enhance and showcase the unique environmental and cultural heritage, 
diversity and history of our district. 

We will continue to build a community that is proud of Waipa’s physical and cultural 
environment and the value it provides by: 

 Ensuring we have a low carbon footprint; 

 Ensuring staff have a high level of cultural awareness; 

 Promoting environmental responsibility and cultural awareness within the 
community; and 

 Ensuring people have access to protected environmental and cultural sites. 

Our community outcomes 

We are recognised as an environmental and cultural leader. 

Within our organisation we will identify, minimise, and monitor the environmental effects of 
our operations.   

Staff will be provided with opportunities to raise their cultural awareness and skill levels 
regarding cultural protocols.   

Through our policies, plans and work programmes we will encourage a focus on 
environmental considerations, such as increased walking, cycling and the use of public 
transport.   
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Waipa’s environmental and cultural heritage is a showcase for excellence. 

We will develop and implement programmes that protect, enhance and interpret the 
district’s environmental and heritage assets and features for our community and visitors to 
enjoy.  

Monitoring Progress 

 

Resident satisfaction that cultural facilities and events in their community 
represent the cultural diversity of the district 

2012 2013 

Very satisfied/satisfied/neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 85% 90% 

Dissatisfied 6% 5% 

Don’t know 8% 5% 

 

How highly do residents value the heritage of the District? 2012 2013 

Very highly/highly/neither high nor low 95% 96% 

Lowly/very lowly 3% 2% 

Don’t know 2% 2% 

 

Resident satisfaction that Council does a good job of protecting and valuing 
the history of the area 

2012 2013 

Very satisfied/satisfied/neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 89% 92% 

Dissatisfied/very dissatisfied 7% 4% 

Don’t know 5% 4% 

Source: National Business Research (NRB) survey 2013 

 

Connected with our community 

We empower and engage our communities to determine and contribute to desired outcomes, 
whilst providing them with opportunity, equality and efficient service. 

We will ensure the Waipa community is actively involved in the decisions and actions that 
affect the wellbeing of the district by: 

 Building a community that advocates on behalf of its council and district; 

 Encouraging high levels of participation in council decision making processes; and 

 Developing collaborative and enduring partnerships with key stakeholders. 

Our community outcomes  

Our stakeholders are advocates/ambassadors for Waipa and the council. 

We will focus on creating stronger, resilient and more enduring relationships by informing, 
consulting, involving and empowering our residents, ratepayers and key stakeholders. 

We engage with all parts of our community. 

Our Community Engagement Strategy will guide our actions. 
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We have collaborative and enduring partnerships. 

Formal relationship and partnership agreements with key stakeholders, including Treaty 
Settlements and Joint Management Agreements, will be developed and actively supported. 

Monitoring Progress  

 

Resident satisfaction with the way Council involves the public in decision 
making 

2012 2013 

Very satisfied/satisfied/neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 59% 67% 

Dissatisfied/Very dissatisfied 35% 29% 

Don’t know 6% 4% 

 

Likelihood that residents to talk positively about the Waipa District Council 2012 2013 

Very likely/likely 52% 58% 

Neither likely or unlikely 30% 24% 

Unlikely/Very unlikely 16% 18% 

Don’t know 2% 1% 

Source: National Business Research (NRB) survey 2013 

 

Socially responsible 

We act with conscience and integrity to lead the district in valuing and protecting the 
members of our organisation and community, and enhancing their wellbeing. 

We will ensure the knowledge and resources within Waipa are used for the benefit of the 
whole community by: 

 Encouraging staff to be actively engaged in the community; 

 Creating an organisation that attracts, employs and retains the best people; 

 Engaging and empowering people to perform to their full potential; and 

 Building vibrant neighbourhoods and liveable communities. 

Our community outcomes  

We give back to the community. 

Staff will be encouraged to develop a great sense of connection with our community that 
goes beyond their role. 

We are a workplace of choice. 

We will continue to focus on attracting and retaining people who demonstrate champion 
performance and attitude.   

Waipa offers an excellent quality of life. 

We will further develop an understanding of, and an appropriate response to, the factors 
that influence the district’s ratepayers and resident’s perception of quality of life.   
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Monitoring Progress 

 

Likelihood that residents will promote Waipa as a good place to live 2012 2013 

Very likely/likely 93% 95% 

Neither likely or unlikely 4% 4% 

Unlikely/Very unlikely 3% 1% 

 

Is Waipa District a better place to live, the same or worse than it was 3 years 
ago? 

2012 2013 

Better 36% 41% 

The same 55% 52% 

Worse 3% 3% 

Unable to comment 6% 5% 

 

Resident satisfaction with their quality of life 2012 2013 

Very satisfied/satisfied 94% 94% 

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 3% 5% 

Dissatisfied/very dissatisfied 2% 1% 

Source: National Business Research (NRB) survey 2013 
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LOCATIONS Head Office 

101 Bank Street 
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POSTAL ADDRESS Private Bag 2402 

Te Awamutu 3840 

 

 

  



12 

Organisational Structure  

Council Controlled Organisations 

The Local Government Act 2002 requires the council to include in the 10-Year Plan information on 
those organisations in which it is a stakeholder.  In particular, the council must include: 

 Its significant policies and objectives regarding ownership and control of the organisation. 

 The nature and scope of the activities to be provided by the organisation. 

 The key performance targets and other measures by which performance may be judged. 

We are a shareholder in four organisations that are classified as council controlled organisations as 
defined by the Local Government Act 2002.  The organisations are: 

 Waikato Regional Airport Limited, also known as Hamilton International Airport. 

 Local Government Funding Agency Limited. 

 New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation, also known as Civic Assurance.  

 Local Authority Shared Services Limited. 

Further detail on each of these organisations can be found in our 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 

 

Council Committees 

There are currently 12 standing committees in the Waipa District; these committees and their 
membership are outlined in this section. 

The full council meets 11 times a year, with other committee meetings held as needed. 

Executive Committee 

Considers and makes decisions based on urgent matters that arise between Council meetings or 
matters referred by Council. 

Mayor Alan Livingston (chair), Deputy Mayor Grahame Webber, Cr Laurie Hoverd, Cr Joe 
Scaramuzza, Cr Diane Sharpe. 

Chief Executive Performance Management Committee 

Conducts the reviews of the performance of the Chief Executive and makes recommendations to 
Council. 

Mayor Alan Livingston (chair), Deputy Mayor Grahame Webber, Cr Laurie Hoverd. 

Strategic Planning and Policy Committee 

Oversees the development and review of our strategic and resource management plans and 
strategies, including any public consultation process.  Oversee development and review of 
community plans, policies and bylaws. 

Cr Laurie Hoverd (chair), Mayor Alan Livingston, Deputy Mayor Grahame Webber, Cr Hazel Barnes, 
Cr Marcus Gower, Cr Vern Wilson, Cr Dennis Finn, Cr Joe Scaramuzza, Cr Diane Sharpe, Cr George 
Simmons, Cr Barbara Taranaki, Cr Bruce Thomas, Cr Sue Milner, Gaylene Roberts (Ngā Iwi Toopu o 
Waipa). 



13 

Regulatory Committee 

Conducts hearings and exercises statutory responsibilities for resource management, animal, 
building and health controls, liquor licensing and any other regulatory matter. 

Cr Diane Sharpe (chair), Mayor Alan Livingston, Cr Barbara Taranaki, Cr Bruce Thomas, Cr Sue 
Milner, Gaylene Roberts (Ngā Iwi Toopu o Waipa). 

Service Delivery Committee 

Oversees the development of strategies, plans and projects in relation to the road corridor, three 
waters, waste management, community facilities and the capital expenditure programme.  
Considers the regional integration of services. 

Deputy Mayor Grahame Webber (chair), Mayor Alan Livingston, Cr Hazel Barnes, Cr Diane Sharpe, 
Cr George Simmons, Cr Barbara Taranaki, Cr Sue Milner. 

Finance and Corporate Committee 

Oversees corporate and Council’s governance functions and duties specifically in relation to financial 
and non-financial reporting, financial policies and treasury matters, and property management. 

Cr Joe Scaramuzza (chair), Mayor Alan Livingston, Cr Marcus Gower, Cr Laurie Hoverd, Cr Vern 
Wilson, Cr Dennis Finn, Cr Bruce Thomas. 

Pirongia Ward Consultative Committee 

Allocates funds from the Pirongia Ward minor community works budget, to consider and approve 
applications for community grant funding; to approve projects for reserve development funding, and 
to consider draft Annual Plans and draft plans. 

Mayor Alan Livingston (chair), Cr Diane Sharpe, Cr Bruce Thomas, John Turnwald (Ohaupo) John 
Wood (Pirongia) Alan Rawlings (Te Pahu). 

Maungatautari Reserve Committee 

Facilitates communication between Reserve stakeholders, advises on reserve management issues, 
oversees the activities of the Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust and oversees the preparation of 
an updated Reserve Management Plan. 

Deputy Mayor Grahame Webber (chair), Mayor Alan Livingston, Cr Laurie Hoverd, Ted Tauroa 
(Ngati Koroki Kahukura Trust), Carlson Wirihana (Ngati Koroki Kahukura Trust), Rose Smith 
(Parawera Marae), Vacant (Ngati Haua), to be appointed (Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust), 
Matt Cook (Department Of Conservation), Cr Stuart Kneebone (Waikato Regional Council), Kataraina 
Hodge (Landowner). 

Iwi Consultative Committee 

Facilitates communications between Council and tangata whenua.  Will consider any matter 
impacting on the interests of tangata whenua and advise on Treaty of Waitangi implications for 
policies and activities. 

Mayor Alan Livingston (chair), Deputy Mayor Grahame Webber, Cr Laurie Hoverd, Cr Joe 
Scaramuzza, Cr Diane Sharpe, Garry Dyet (CE Waipa District Council), Gaylene Roberts (Ngā Iwi 
Toopu o Waipa), Charlie Maikuku (Kaumatua), Vacant (Ngati Haua), Jenny Charman (Pirongia), 
Harold Maniapoto (Puniu), Vacant (Puniu – Proxy), Doris Walters (Te Kopua), Hinerangi Kara 
(Maungatautari), Louise Doyle (Kakepuku), George Searancke (Ngati Ngawaero), Kataraina Hodge 
(Wharepuhunga), Brenda Riki (Kaniwhaniwha). 
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Pirongia Reserves Management Committee 

Oversees the management and development of three Pirongia reserves (sections 1,167 and 550) as 
authorised by the Department Of Conservation. 

Mayor Alan Livingston (chair), Cr Diane Sharpe, Cr Bruce Thomas, Sabina Owen (Pirongia Rep), 
Claire St Pierre (Pirongia Rep), Sally Uerata (Purekireki Marae), Haupai Puke (Te Kauhanganui o 
Waikato). 

District Promotions Committee 

Consider and approve, in accordance with specific criteria, applications for financial assistance for 
the promotion and sponsorship of significant events within the district. 

Mayor Alan Livingston (chair), Deputy Mayor Grahame Webber, Cr Laurie Hoverd. 

Mighty River Domain and Karapiro Reserves Committee 

Monitor implementation of the Karapiro Domain Strategic Plan and Reserve Management Plan, and 
to ensure effective communication between Council, tangata whenua and other key stakeholders. 

Cr Dennis Finn (chair), Mayor Alan Livingston, Deputy Mayor Grahame Webber, Simon Peterson 
(Rowing NZ), Leroy Leach (Mighty River Power), Cr Russell Rimmington (Waikato Regional Council), 
Mokoroa Gillett (Ngati Haua), Johnson Raumati (Ngati Koroki Kahukura Trust), Alison Storey 
(Community Rep), Mike Rodger (Community Rep). 

 

Community Boards 

There are two Community Boards – Cambridge, which serves the Cambridge and Maungatautari 
Wards, and Te Awamutu which serves the Te Awamutu and Kakepuku Wards.  The Community 
Boards are not Council Committees, they are separate statutory authorities established under Part 4 
of the Local Government Act 2002.   

Te Awamutu Community Board 

Represents and acts as an advocate for community interests.  Overview of service delivery 
throughout Te Awamutu and surrounding areas.  Performs such functions as are delegated to it by 
Council. 

Dean Taylor (chair), Bernard Westerbaan, Kellie Ellis, Richard Hurrell, Colin Pinkerton, Cr Hazel 
Barnes, Cr Laurie Hoverd. 

The Te Awamutu Community Board has the following Committees: 

Te Awamutu Alive 

Which maintains an overview of promotional activities for the Te Awamutu area and liaise with local 
interest groups involved in promoting the Te Awamutu area. 

Reserves Landscape 

The Committee maintains an overview of reserve development and management proposals for the 
Te Awamutu area including liaising with local interest groups. 

Cambridge Community Board 

Acts in exactly the same way the Te Awamutu Community Board does, except it services Cambridge 
and surrounding areas. 
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John Bishop (chair), Elwyn Andree-Wiltens, Mike Petit, Philip Coles, Richard Wright, Cr Sue Milner, 
Cr Grahame Webber. 

The Cambridge Community Board has the following Committees: 

Sister Cities 

Whose purpose is to positively promote friendly exchanges and to encourage mutually beneficial 
understanding in the fields of economic development, tourism, culture, education, science, 
technology and sport with our sister cities, Bihoro in Japan and Le Quesnoy in France. 

Light Up Cambridge 

Whose purpose is to initiate and progress Christmas and/or other lighting projects in Cambridge. 

Reserve Landscape 

Plans and organises, with Council’s approval and in conjunction with staff, the facilitation of the 
development and renewal of the Cambridge greenbelt reserve management plan. 

ANZAC 

The purpose of this Committee is to organise the annual ANZAC Day commemorations in Cambridge. 
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Management Structure 

Waipa district is led by Chief Executive Garry Dyet and four group managers who comprise the 
Executive Team.  The group managers each head an operational group (refer figure below).  The 
group departments are each headed by a separate manager. 
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Introduction from the Mayor and Chief Executive 

Welcome to our Annual Report for the 2012/13 year. 

This report outlines our financial performance and how well our residents believe we have been 
delivering services to our community. 

The 2012/13 year was focussed on implementing year one of our 10-Year Plan 2012-22 which was 
adopted off the back of extensive consultation and focuses on realising our long term vision as set 
out in our Future Proof and Waipa 2050 strategies. 

It was the first year of a major capital works programme focussed on infrastructure replacement and 
growth and achieving 91 percent delivery  of work was an extremely pleasing result. 

It was also a year in which swings in property values combined with minor changes in our Revenue 
and Financing Policy saw significant changes in the way in which rates fell.  We moved to mitigate 
this effect by bringing our property revaluation cycle forward a year so it was no longer aligned with 
the adoption of a new 10-Year Plan. 

Following the identification of savings of $800,000 which honoured a commitment we made to limit 
future rates increases, we continued to optimise our financial performance and ended the year in a 
very solid position. 

This year we have realised a general funds cash surplus of $454,000 against a break even budget.  
These funds will be used to again reduce the amount of rates revenue we will require from our 
residents in the next financial year. 

Furthermore, we have achieved an operating surplus of $6.9 million against a budget of $4.08 
million.  The operating surplus includes a number of non-cash items, such as pipes and roads gifted 
as part of development works, first time recognition of assets, gains through revaluations and cash 
received for asset-related spending. 

These results, in light of the council having $1.1 billion in assets, are extremely pleasing and reflect 
the fact we are running a tight financial ship focussed on only collecting from the ratepayer what we 
need to meet our costs. 

Even more pleasing is the fact that we have achieved this result while maintaining the high levels of 
service our community have come to both expect and enjoy. 

One further achievement on the financial management side was using available cash to temporarily 
pay back $9 million of debt, almost $6 million more than budgeted, to end the year with debt of 
$22.3 million compared with the projected $28 million.     

Waipa continued to be one of the few places in New Zealand that experienced growth over the past 
12 months, with an additional 153 properties being rated during the 2012/13 year. 

Much of the year was spent progressing the development of the District Plan.  This is a key guidance 
document which will ensure Waipa remains a great place to work, play and do business. This work 
will continue for a large part of the 2013/14 year and once adopted it will provide a sound strategic 
planning base for guiding growth and development. 

During the year, we also did a lot of groundwork to ensure we had the capability of delivering on the 
$409 million capital works programme in our 10-Year Plan 2012-22.  This included bolstering our 
water services team to reduce our reliance on consultants and ensure inhouse knowledge is retained 
in the future as we upgrade our infrastructure to meet new legislative requirements and secure our 
water supplies. 

In the year ahead, we will continue our strong focus on our capital works programme and are 
expecting to deliver $50 million in capital works over the 12 month period.  Much of this will be 
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infrastructure focussed which will allow us to continue the effective management of the core assets 
needed to sustain the quality of life our residents expect and cater for expected growth. 

Our work through the Mayoral Forum and shared services is expected to help us realise efficiencies 
for the betterment of our residents and our district and our continued focus on strengthening 
partnerships will ensure that we realise our vision of Waipa: Home of Champions – Building the 
Future Together. 
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Financial Overview 

Council has ended the 2012/13 financial year in a strong financial position.  Higher than budgeted 
cash and operating surpluses have been achieved and Council’s external borrowings are $5.7 million 
below the figure forecast in Council’s 10-Year Plan.  It was an extra-ordinary year in regard to 
delivery of capital projects with actual spend at $24.9 million, 91.2 per cent of budget. 

General Funds Cash Surplus 

The general funds cash surplus for the year was $454,000.  This is an important reference point with 
the focus on the cash income and expenditure related to our general rates and targeted ward rates.  
It excludes the non-cash items which can impact the operating surplus shown in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  It also excludes any income and expenditure associated with activities such 
as roading, water, wastewater, stormwater, pensioner housing and forestry which are activities that 
due to their nature or funding sources are kept separately ring-fenced from what we refer to as the 
‘general funds’. 

The fact that we have achieved a cash surplus of this magnitude, when at the start of the year we set 
our rates at a level to provide a break-even general funds operating result, demonstrates the 
financial discipline within the organisation.  While some activities had small overruns, others finished 
the year with a better than expected net result and collectively contributed to the organisational 
surplus.  This surplus will now be used for the benefit of all ratepayers in a lesser rating requirement 
the next time we set our rates.  We will also take account of this year’s results in setting activity 
budgets for next year.  Our aim is always to collect from the ratepayer only what we need to meet 
our expenses. 

Operating Surplus 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows an operating surplus of $6,906,000 against a budget 
of $4,083,000 and a prior year result of $7,675,000.  Council operates a diverse and complex 
business and this is reflected in the items recorded as operating income and expenditure and 
ultimately in the operating surplus result.  There are a number of non-cash items recognised such as 
vested assets (the pipes, roads and reserve land gifted to Council by developers), discovered assets 
(the infrastructure that we have identified as owned but not recorded as we tidy our records) and 
the depreciation and amortisation charges that we recognise as an expense as it reflects the 
diminishment in value of our assets while being non-cash in nature.  These items must be reflected 
in the operating surplus to comply with the ‘accounting rules’ and ensure the integrity and 
consistency of reported results from organisation to organisation. 

Statement of Financial Position 

Council has net assets of $1.1 billion, the vast majority of this figure being land, buildings and 
infrastructure systems such as our roading and pipeline reticulation networks.  The revaluation of 
infrastructure during the year added $18 million to this figure.  Repayment of debt during the 
2012/13 year has resulted in Council carrying a much lower external borrowings figure into the new 
year than expected with our balance date debt $22.3 million.  Cash balances are $11.1 million, but 
these will reduce substantially in the coming year as Council spends these funds on the capital 
projects provided for in the 10-Year Plan. 

Capital Expenditure 

Council’s capital spend in the 2012/13 year was $24.9 million against a budget of $27.2 million.  The 
development and renewal of the roading network and the water, wastewater and stormwater 
treatment and pipeline systems that our district needs requires substantial on-going investment.   
Our 2013/14 Annual Plan requires even more considerable investment in capital spend with a capital 
programme of $51.1 million. 
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Ken Morris 
GROUP MANAGER BUSINESS SUPPORT / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
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Non-Financial Performance 

The 2012/13 year was the first year of implementation of the 2012-2022 10-Year Plan which sets a 
clear vision for the district and how we plan to achieve it. 

The main focus was on the planning and development of capital work programmes including the 
establishment of packages of work within the Service Delivery Group and the appointment of 
programme managers. A robust process to manage the work programme and monitor performance 
on a monthly basis has been put in place, resulting in a significant improvement in the delivery of 
capital works. 

The details of performance levels and key achievements are set out in each of the Group of  Activity 
areas in this Annual Report. Significant achievements noted during the year include: 

 Progressing our Proposed District Plan to the hearing stage. While this work is still underway 
there was significant progress made in the 2012/13 year with 300 submissions and further 
submissions received.  The hearing process was substantially completed  with only a few 
hearings to be held in 2013/14. 

 A redevelopment of our website gave our online visitors a much improved user experience 
and the introduction of online tools gave us more opportunity to engage with our 
community. 

 There was significant progress made in the waters area in which we spent $1 million to 
improve our levels of service.  We also bought a piece of land to build a new reservoir in Te 
Awamutu which will help us achieve our goal of 24-hour water storage for the town.  

 A partnership with the National Institute of Water and Atmospheric (NIWA) Research was 
formed  to develop  a demonstration  of an Enhanced Pond System for the treatment of 
wastewater at the Cambridge Wastewater Treatment Plant site.  

 A $1 million upgrade of the Kihikihi town centre saw the main shopping area revitalised with 
new footpaths, street furniture, landscape planting and underground utilities creating a 
memorable and inviting sense of arrival. 

 An Economic Development Strategy was adopted in December featuring seven key themes  
which focus on building on the strengths of the Waipa economy. 

 The first  Joint Management Agreement (JMA) was signed in April 2013 with the Maniapoto 
Maori Trust Board. 

It is pleasing to note significant improvements in our performance across most areas of Council with 
very high levels of satisfaction recorded in Council’s independent annual residents survey.  

Substantial improvements have also been made in our own performance monitoring systems. 
However we remain committed to our continuous improvement approach and will seek to make 
further improvements on behalf of the community. 

 

 

David Hall 
GROUP MANAGER PLANNING & COMMUNITY RELATIONS / DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
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Opportunities for Community Involvement in Decision Making 

Each year we provide opportunities for the community to participate in our decision making such as 
the 10-Year Plan and Annual Plan submission processes. We also advise Waipa residents of other 
proposals that are available for public submission through the local newspapers, “Word on Waipa”, 
and our website www.waipadc.govt.nz. 

A Community Engagement Strategy was adopted by Council in 2011, and is subject to periodic 
review. A key project signalled in the current strategy was an upgrade of Council’s’ website. The 
upgrade included the ability to undertake online community consultation, where feedback on key 
plans, projects and other initiatives can be made directly via the website. Nearly 70% of submissions 
to Council’s Annual Plan have been received via the on-line submission form.  

Concurrent with the upgrade of our website was the development of a social marketing strategy, 
which enables greater opportunity to provide information and receive feedback via the likes of 
Facebook and Twitter. Council has its own Facebook page which is monitored/updated on at least a 
daily basis. In addition, Council staff oversee a ‘Waipa – Home of Champions’ Facebook page, which 
provides a focus on events and activities within the District.   

Elected members, staff and community board members can be contacted throughout the year if 
people want to discuss issues or have information to contribute.  

We have a formal structure to enable Māori involvement in our decision-making and this is outlined 
on the following page. 
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Māori Involvement in Decision-Making 

Council has developed a policy and structure with Māori to facilitate participation by Māori in local 
government decision-making processes. 

The Council has a governance structure which includes the Iwi Consultative Committee. The 
Committee consists of the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Chairpersons of the Finance & Corporate, Service 
Delivery, Regulatory, and Strategic Planning & Policy Committees, and representatives of hapū 
within the District, the Chairperson of Ngā Iwi Toopu o Waipa, and Kaumatua representatives. 

The Consultative Committee considers all significant matters, particularly in relation to the 
development of policy, and then makes appropriate recommendations for Council’s consideration. 

Council also has a formal agreement with Ngā Iwi Toopu o Waipa for the purpose of reviewing all 
resource consent applications and considering other matters of significance. This arrangement 
recognises the mandate Ngā Iwi Toopu o Waipa has in acting on behalf of Iwi within the District. 

Council further promotes the decision-making capacity of Māori through the appointment of an Iwi 
representative to the Strategic  Planning & Policy and Regulatory Committees of Council.  

In light of the scale and significance of the Maungatautari Ecological Island project, Council 
established a committee to oversee the management and development of the Maungatautari Scenic 
Reserve.  The Maunga (Mountain) has particular significance to local Iwi, and Council has recognised 
this in the membership of the Maungatautari Reserve Committee, with 5 of the 10 members being 
tangata whenua representatives. The remaining members represent the wide range of other 
stakeholders with an interest in the Ecological Island project.  

Running concurrently with Future Proof is Waipa 2050, which is now focused on the review of the 
Waipa District Plan.   

Submissions on the proposed Waipa District Plan will be heard until October 2013. Decisions on 
submissions are expected in late 2013 or early 2014. Iwi Commissioners have been appointed to the 
District Plan Hearings Committees and sit alongside Councillors to hear submissions and make 
decisions. To ensure that Māori have been  actively engaged  throughout the review process, Council 
consulted regularly with Ngā Iwi Toopu o Waipa and has established a joint working group to ensure 
that the Waikato River Vision and Strategy was  appropriately reflected in the District Plan.  

The introduction of JMA requirements adds a significant new dimension to the Iwi engagement 
model. It has been acknowledged by the Iwi Committee and NITOW that the current engagement 
model should be reviewed to reflect the changing context. In addition, NITOW has acknowledged 
that it is timely to review the existing hapu arrangement/structures in light of this changing context.     

The objective of this project is to identify and implement an Iwi/Maori engagement model for 
Council that: 

 Acknowledges and reflects the importance of Council’s relationship with Iwi/Maori and their 
involvement in Council decision-making processes 

 Provides for the most effective and efficient approach to meeting the needs and aspirations 
of Iwi/Maori in relation to their involvement in Council decision-making processes 

The Waikato-Tainui Raupatu (Waikato River) Settlement Act 2010 and the Ngati Tūwharetoa, 
Raukawa, and Te Arawa River Iwi Waikato River Act 2010 provide further opportunities for Iwi 
involvement in decision-making.  These Acts require Waipa District Council to enter into a Joint 
Management Agreement (JMA) with respect to the Waikato River and activities within its catchment 
affecting the river with both Waikato-Tainui and Raukawa.  It is expected that both the Waikato – 
Tainui and Raukawa JMAs will be signed prior to the 2013 Council elections.   
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A Joint Management Agreement (JMA) was signed with Ngati Maniapoto in April 2013. Joint 
Management Agreements define the process around engagement around resource consent 
applications, plan changes, and monitoring and enforcement as they relate to Te Ture Whaimana O 
Te Awa o Waikato (the vision and strategy for Waikato river).  They  can also enable the provision of 
some customary activities with respect to the river.  However they are able to be extended and 
provide the opportunity for closer relationships with the Trust boards 
  



25 

Statement of Compliance 

The Council of the Waipa District Council hereby confirms that all statutory requirements in relation 
to the Annual Report, as outlined in the Local Government Act 2002, have been complied with. 

 

     
Alan Livingston JP      Garry Dyet JP 
MAYOR        CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 

Explanation of Operating Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income: 
Council achieved an operating surplus of $6.9m this year against a budget of $4.1m.  Explanations of 
the major variations from budget are provided in note 37, page 70.  The operating surplus includes a 
number of items of income that are non-cash in nature including infrastructure vested by developers 
($5.2m) and the first time recognition of assets discovered ($1m).  Council’s total comprehensive 
income includes $18.1m of property plant and equipment revaluation gains. 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements, pages 31-71.  

2013 

Actual

2013 

Budget

2012 

Actual

Note $000 $000 $000

OPERATING INCOME 38     

Rates, excluding targeted water supply rates 3       41,192     41,200     39,228     

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply 4       12,028     12,141     11,488     

Reserve contributions 445           378           628           

Development contributions 1,656       1,325       1,877       

Gain on revaluation 7       52             490           231           

Vested assets 5,180       2,960       2,806       

Discovered assets 1,035       -            3,534       

Finance income 959           303           708           

Subsidies and grants 5       6,664       6,532       9,328       

Other revenue 6       359           325           392           

Gain on swap derivative 152           -            -            

Total Operating Income 69,722     65,654     70,220     

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Employee benefit expenses 8       14,167     15,050     13,473     

Depreciation & amortisation 18     16,792     17,137     15,320     

Other expenses 9       29,610     27,222     31,446     

Finance costs 10     2,155       2,162       2,117       

Loss on revaluation 11     92             -            188           

Loss on swap derivative -            -            1               

Total Operating Expenditure 2       62,816     61,571     62,545     

OPERATING SURPLUS 6,906       4,083       7,675       

Other Comprehensive Income recognised directly in Equity

Property Plant and Equipment Revaluation gains / (losses) 

taken to equity 18,127     65,313     21,414     

Intangible gains / (losses) taken to equity 31             -            -            

Cash flow hedges gains / (losses) taken to equity 1,011       734           (869)         

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 19,169     66,047     20,545     

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 26,075     70,130     28,220     
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Statement of Changes in Equity  
For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 

 

Explanations of the major variations from budget are provided in note 37, page 71.  The 
accompanying notes form part of these financial statements, pages 31-71. 
  

2013 

Actual

2013 

Budget

2012 

Actual

Note $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 1,100,753 1,154,606 1,072,533 

Total Comprehensive Income 26,075      70,130       28,220      

Balance at 30 June 1,126,828 1,224,736 1,100,753 
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Statement of Financial Position  
As at 30 June 2013 

 

Explanations of the major variations from budget are provided in note 37, page 70.  The 
accompanying notes form part of these financial statements, pages 31-71. 
  

2013     

Actual

2013     

Budget

2012     

Actual

Note $000 $000 $000

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 12   11,133       3,155           1,868           

Other financial assets 14   -              -               12,500         

Assets held for sale 15   383             -               985              

Trade and other receivables 13   4,088          2,884           3,343           

Total Current Assets 15,604       6,039           18,696         

Non Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 13   33               -               41                 

Property plant and equipment 16   1,125,473  1,236,489   1,103,739   

Intangible assets 17   796             1,190           1,000           

Forestry assets 19   1,229          1,652           1,180           

Investment property 20   16,052       14,501         15,981         

Other financial assets 14   2,933          2,764           2,837           

Total Non Current Assets 1,146,516  1,256,596   1,124,778   

Total Assets 1,162,120  1,262,635   1,143,474   

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 21   9,941          7,042           7,281           

Provisions 23   74               80                 81                 

Employee benefit l iabilities 24   1,160          1,093           1,119           

Borrowings 25   16,300       16,000         15,300         

Total Current Liabilities 27,475       24,215         23,781         

Non Current Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments 22   1,139          1,020           2,302           

Provisions 23   678             664              638              

Borrowings 25   6,000          12,000         16,000         

Total Non Current Liabilities 7,817          13,684         18,940         

Total Liabilities 35,292       37,899         42,721         

EQUITY

Retained earnings 26   338,358     324,627      331,422      

Other reserves 26   788,470     900,109      769,331      

Total Equity 1,126,828  1,224,736   1,100,753   
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Statement of Cash Flows  
For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 

Explanations of the major variations from budget are provided in note 37, page 70.  The 
accompanying notes form part of these financial statements, pages 31-71. 
  

2013     

Actual

2013     

Budget

2012     

Actual

Note $000 $000 $000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from rates revenue 41,215         41,200         39,388         

Interest received 1,076           303              595              

Receipts from other revenue 20,676         20,543         23,485         

Payments to suppliers and employees (37,274)       (40,199)       (39,790)       

Interest paid (2,262)          (2,162)          (2,172)          

Goods and service tax (net) (323)             -               (269)             

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 27   23,108         19,685         21,237         

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 787              469              75                 

Proceeds from sale of investments -               2,385           -               

Proceeds from investments 12,500         -               -               

Purchase of intangible assets (73)               (310)             (708)             

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (17,592)       (23,018)       (17,717)       

Purchase of investment property (465)             (1,065)          (487)             

Acquisition of investments -               -               (11,673)       

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (4,843)          (21,539)       (30,510)       

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from borrowings 6,000           12,000         300              

Repayment of borrowings (15,000)       (15,000)       -               

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (9,000)          (3,000)          300              

Net (decrease) / increase in cash, cash equivalents and 

bank overdrafts 9,265           (4,854)          (8,973)          

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the 

beginning of the year 1,868           8,009           10,841         

Cash, cash equivalents at the end of the year 12   11,133         3,155           1,868           
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Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement (whole of Council) 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 

 
  

2011/12 2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Annual 

Plan

Annual 

Report

Annual 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  12,895  12,794  14,288  14,280

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  26,172  26,434  26,912  26,912

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  2,301  3,207  2,406  2,749

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  12,569  11,488  12,142  12,028

Interest and dividends from investments  250  708  303  959

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  325  392  325  359

Total sources of operating funding (A)  54,512  55,023  56,376  57,287

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  40,914  40,442  38,670  36,553

Finance costs  2,298  2,117  2,162  2,078

Other operating funding applications  615  877  1,888  1,897

Total applications of operating funding (B)  43,827  43,436  42,720  40,528

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  10,685  11,587  13,656  16,759

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  4,314  6,121  4,126  3,915

Development and financial contributions  1,024  2,505  1,703  2,101

Increase (decrease) in debt  3,800  300  (3,000)  (9,000)

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  585  75  2,854  787

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  9,723  9,001  5,683  (2,197)

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  1,557  1,444  4,143  1,068

- to improve the level of service  4,512  4,481  8,146  5,658

- to replace existing assets  14,105  12,810  11,984  12,980

Increase (decrease) in reserves  234  1,853  (4,934)  (5,144)

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  20,408  20,588  19,339  14,562

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  (10,685)  (11,587)  (13,656)  (16,759)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -  -
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

1. Statement of Accounting Policies for the Year Ended June 2013 

Reporting Entity 

Waipa District Council is a territorial local authority governed by the Local Government Act 2002.  
Council has no subsidiaries and the financial statements are for the single entity of Waipa District 
Council, domiciled in New Zealand. 

The primary objective of Council is to provide goods or services for the community or social benefit 
rather than making a financial return.  Accordingly, Council has designated itself as a public benefit 
entity for the purposes of New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 
(NZ IFRS). 

These financial statements are for the year ended 30 June 2013, and were authorised for issue by 
Council on 10 September 2013. 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 2002.  The financial statements are prepared under Section 98 of the Act and Part 3 
of  Schedule 10.   

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practice (NZ GAAP) as required by Section 111 of the Act.  They comply with NZ IFRS, and other 
applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities.   

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these financial statements. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation 
of land and buildings, infrastructural assets, investment property and forestry.  The financial 
statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand 
dollars ($’000).  The functional currency of Council is New Zealand dollars. 

Changes in Accounting Policies 

There have been no changes in accounting policies during the financial year. 

Standards, amendments, and interpretations issued that are not yet effective and have not been 
early adopted 

Standards, amendments, and interpretations issued but not yet effective that have not been early 
adopted, and which are relevant to Council are: 

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will eventually replace NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement. NZ IAS 39 is being replaced through the following 3 main phases: Phase 1 
Classification and Measurement, Phase 2 Impairment Methodology, and Phase 3 Hedge Accounting.  
Phase 1 on the classification and measurement of financial assets has been completed and has been 
published in the new financial instrument standard NZ IFRS 9. NZ IFRS 9 uses a single approach to 
determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortised cost or fair value, replacing the many 
different rules in NZ IAS 39.  The approach in NZ IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its 
financial instruments (its business model) and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial assets.   The financial liability requirements are the same as those of NZ IAS 39, except for 
when an entity elects to designate a financial liability at fair value through the surplus/deficit. The 
new standard is required to be adopted for the year ended 30 June 2016. However, as a new 
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Accounting Standards Framework will apply before this date, there is no certainty when an 
equivalent standard to NZ IFRS 9 will be applied by public benefit entities. 

The Minister of Commerce has approved a new Accounting Standards Framework (incorporating a 
Tier Strategy) developed by the External Reporting Board (XRB). Under this Accounting Standards 
Framework, Council is classified as a Tier 1 reporting entity and it will be required to apply full Public 
Benefit Entity Accounting Standards (PAS). These standards are being developed by the XRB based 
on current International Public Sector Accounting Standards. The effective date for the new 
standards for public sector entities is for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.  
Therefore, Council will transition to the new standards in preparing its 30 June 2015 financial 
statements.  Council has not assessed the implications of the new Accounting Standards Framework 
at this time. 

Due to the change in the Accounting Standards Framework for public benefit entities, it is expected 
that all new NZ IFRS and amendments to existing NZ IFRS will not be applicable to public benefit 
entities. Therefore, the XRB has effectively frozen the financial reporting requirements for public 
benefit entities up until the new Accounting Standards Framework is effective. Accordingly, no 
disclosure has been made about new or amended NZ IFRS that exclude public benefit entities from 
their scope. 

Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. 

Rates Revenue 

Rates are set annually by a resolution from Council and relate to a financial year.  All ratepayers are 
invoiced within the financial year in which the rates have been set.  Rates revenue is recognised 
when payable. 

Other Revenue 

Water billing revenue is recognised on an actual basis.  Unbilled usage, as a result of unread meters 
at year end, is accrued on an average usage basis. 

Council receives government grants from the New Zealand Transport Agency which subsidises part 
of Council’s costs in maintaining the local roading infrastructure.  The subsidies are recognised as 
revenue upon entitlement as conditions pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled. 

Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration the fair value of the asset 
received is recognised as income.  Assets vested in Council are recognised as revenue when control 
over the asset is obtained. 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Dividends are recognised when Council’s right to receive the payment is established. 

Development Contributions 

Development and financial contributions are recognised as revenue when Council provides, or is 
able to provide, the service for which the contribution was charged.  Otherwise, development and 
financial contributions are recognised as liabilities until such time as Council provides, or is able to 
provide the service. 

Although it has always been Council’s practice to recognise development contribution revenue on 
this basis this policy wording has been updated to more accurately reflect Council’s recognition of 
this revenue. 
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Borrowing Costs 

The Council has elected to defer the adoption of NZ IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (Revised 2007) in 
accordance with its transitional provisions that are applicable to public benefit entities. 

Consequently, all borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

Grant Expenditure 

Non discretionary grants are those grants that are awarded if the grant application meets the 
specified criteria, and are recognised as expenditure when an application that meets the specified 
criteria for the grant has been received.  Discretionary grants are those grants where Council has no 
obligation to award on receipt of the grant application and grants are recognised as expenditure on 
payment. 

Leases 

Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of an asset.  Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.  Bank 
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Trade and Other Receivables 

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. 

Loans are initially recognised at the present value of their expected future cash flows, discounted at 
the current market rate of return of a similar asset/investment.  They are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.  The difference between the face value and 
present value of expected future cash flows of the loan is recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income as a grant. 

A provision between the face value and present value of expected future cash flows of the loan is 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as a grant. 

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that 
Council will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.  The 
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows, discounted using the effective interest method. 

Financial Assets 

Council classifies its investments in the following categories: 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

 Loans and receivables 

 Held-to-maturity investments 

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
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The classification depends on the reason behind acquiring the investment.  Council decides how to 
classify its investments when they are acquired. 

Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the value date.  Financial assets are no longer 
recognised when the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets has expired or has been 
transferred.  The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.  If the market for 
a financial asset is not active, Council establishes fair value through valuation techniques.  At each 
year end Council assesses whether there is evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired.  Any impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair 
value through profit or loss.  A financial asset falls in this category if acquired principally to sell in the 
short-term or if designated this way by Council.  After initial recognition, they are measured at fair 
value.  These financial assets are classified as current assets if they are held for trading or expected 
to be realised within twelve months of the year end date. 

Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments not 
quoted in an active market.  They arise when Council provides money, goods or services directly to a 
debtor with no intention of selling the receivable asset.  After initial recognition, they are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  They are included in current assets, except 
for those with maturities greater than twelve months after the year end date, which are classified as 
non-current assets. 

Held-to-Maturity Investments 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturities that Council has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.  After 
initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are those that are designated into 
the category at initial recognition or are not classified in any of the other categories above.  They are 
included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the share investment 
within 12 months of balance date or if the debt instrument is not expected to be realised within 12 
months of balance date.  The Council includes in this category: 

 investments that it intends to hold long-term but which may be realised before maturity; 
and 

 shareholdings that it holds for strategic purposes. 

These investments are measured at their fair value, with gains and losses recognised in other 
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses, which are recognised in the surplus or deficit.  
On de-recognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income 
is reclassified from equity to the surplus or deficit. 

Assets Held for Sale 

Assets held for sale are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction, not through continuing use.  Assets held for sale are measured 
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  These assets are not 
depreciated or amortised. 
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Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment consists of: 

 Operational assets which include land, buildings, library books, plant and equipment, and 

motor vehicles. 

 Infrastructural assets which are the fixed utility systems.  Each asset class includes all items 

that are required for the network to function, for example sewer reticulation includes 

reticulation piping and sewer pump stations. 

Property, plant and equipment is shown at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. 

Additions 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Council and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Additions are generally recognised at cost.  Where an 
asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value at the date of 
acquisition. 

Disposals 

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of 
the asset.  Gains and losses on disposal are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in asset revaluation reserves in respect of 
those assets are transferred to retained earnings. 

Subsequent Costs 

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment other than 
land, at rates that will write off the cost (or valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values 
over their useful lives.  The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets 
have been estimated as follows: 

 Components Years 

Water Treatment Structures 50 – 100 

 Plant 10 – 25 

 Pipes 60 

Water Reticulation Pipes 30 – 80 

 Fittings 25 

Sewage Treatment Structures 50 – 100 

 Plant 10 – 25 

 Pipes 60 

Sewerage Reticulation Pipes 50 – 80 

 Manholes 50 

Stormwater Structures 50 

 Pipes 50 – 80 
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 Components Years 

 Manholes 50 

   

Formation/carriageway and shoulder  Infinite 

Pavement structure  30 – 50 

Pavement surface (seal)  10 – 15 

Catchpits and culverts  30 – 70 

Bridges  20 – 80 

Kerb and channel  50 

Lighting  10 

Footpaths  20 – 50 

   

Buildings – not componentised  40 

Building – structure  50 – 80 

Building – fit-out  25 – 80 

Building – services  40 – 80 

Plant/motor vehicles  3 – 10 

Furniture, fittings and equipment  3 – 10 

Computer equipment  3 – 10 

Intangibles  3 – 10 

Library Books  7 

 

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at each financial 
year end. 

Revaluation 

Those asset classes that are revalued are valued on a yearly cycle on the basis described below, with 
the exception of Operational Land and Buildings, which is valued every three years.   All other asset 
classes are carried at depreciated historical cost.  The carrying values of revalued items are reviewed 
at each balance date to ensure that those values are not materially different to fair value. 

Operational Land and Buildings 

At fair value as determined from market-based evidence where there is a market, or depreciated 
replacement cost for specialised assets, by an independent valuer.  The most recent valuation was 
performed by Darroch Limited (registered valuers) and the valuation is effective as at 30 June 2011. 

Infrastructural Assets 

At fair value determined on a depreciated replacement cost basis by an independent valuer.  The  
valuation of the utility assets was performed by AECOM New Zealand Limited (AECOM) and the 
valuation is effective as at 30 June 2013.  The valuation of the roading assets was performed by Beca 
Valuations Limited (Beca) and is effective as at 30 June 2013.  
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Land under Roads and Road Reserves 

Valued by Opus International Consultants Limited (registered valuers) using estimates provided by 
Quotable Value at current market prices ($/ha) for land use categories through which the roads pass.  
The valuation is effective as at 1 July 2006.  Land under roads is no longer revalued. 

Accounting for Revaluations 

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are on a class of asset basis.  The results of revaluing 
are credited or debited to an asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset.  Where this results in a 
debit balance in the asset revaluation reserve, this balance is expensed in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  Any subsequent increase in revaluation that off-sets a previous decrease in 
value recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income will be recognised first in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income up to the amount previously expensed, and then credited to 
the revaluation reserve for that class of asset. 

Intangible Assets 

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire 
and bring to use the specific software.  Costs associated with maintaining computer software are 
recognised as an expense when incurred.   

Emissions Trading Scheme 

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying 
amount of the NZU. Gains and losses on disposals are reported in the surplus or deficit.  If at the end 
of any financial year there has been some deforestation (such as harvesting) that is yet to be 
replanted, a contingent liability will be disclosed until such time as replanting has occurred.  After 
initial recognition, Emission Trading Scheme credits are measured at their fair values with gains or 
losses on re-measurement recognised in the surplus or deficit. 

Amortisation 

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight line basis over its 
useful life.  Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the 
asset is derecognised.  The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of computer software 
have been estimated at 3-10 years (33% - 10%). 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or not yet available for use, are not subject to 
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.  Assets that have a finite useful life are 
reviewed for indicators of and are tested annually for impairment at each balance date.  When there 
is an indicator of impairment the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying 
amount is written down to the recoverable amount.  For revalued assets, the impairment loss is 
recognised against the revaluation reserve for that class of asset.  Where that results in a debit 
balance in the revaluation reserve, the balance is recognised in the surplus or deficit. 

For assets not carried at a revalued amount, the total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or 
deficit. 

The reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited to the revaluation reserve.  
However, to the extent that an impairment loss for that class of asset was previously recoginised in 
the surplus or deficit, a reversal of the impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus or deficit. 
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For assets not carried at a revalued amount, the reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the 
surplus or deficit. 

Forestry 

Forestry assets are independently revalued annually at fair value less estimated point of sale costs.  
Fair value is determined based on the present value of expected net cash flows discounted at a 
current market determined pre-tax rate.  This calculation is based on existing sustainable felling 
plans and assessments regarding growth, timber prices, felling costs and silvicultural costs and takes 
into consideration environmental, operational and market restrictions.  

Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of forestry assets at fair value less estimated point of 
sale costs, and from a change in fair value less estimated point of sale costs, are recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.  The costs to maintain the forestry assets are included in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Investment Property 

Properties leased to third parties under operating leases are classified as investment property unless 
the property is held to meet service delivery objectives, rather than to earn rentals. 

Initially, investment properties are measured at cost including transaction costs.  Subsequent to 
initial recognition investment properties are measured at fair value as determined annually by an 
independent valuer.  Gains and losses on revaluation, acquisition and disposal are recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits expected to be settled within twelve months of balance date are measured at 
nominal values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.  These include salaries and 
wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance date, and 
sick leave.  A liability for sick leave is recognised to the extent that absences in the coming year are 
expected to be greater than the sick leave entitlements earned in the coming year.  The amount is 
calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, 
to the extent that it is anticipated it will be used by staff to cover those future absences. 

Trade and Other Payables 

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Provisions 

Council recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a 
present obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
expenditures will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.  Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle 
the obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.  The increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognised as an interest expense. 
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Derivative Financial Instruments 

Council uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks arising from 
financing activities.  In accordance with the treasury management policy Council does not hold or 
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. 

Derivatives financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition, derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value.  The gain or loss on re-
measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss 
depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see Hedging policy). 

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Council would receive or pay 
to terminate the swap at the Statement of Financial Position date, taking into account current 
interest rates and the current credit worthiness of the swap counterparts.   

Hedging 

Derivatives are first recognised at fair value on the date a contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured to their fair value.  The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss 
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of 
the item being hedged.  Council designates certain derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value 
of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or (2) hedges of highly 
probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges). 

At the inception of the transaction Council documents the relationship between hedging 
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking 
various hedge transactions.  Council documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an 
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and will 
continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. 

Fair Value Hedge 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are 
recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, together with any changes in the fair value of 
the assets or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. 

Cash Flow Hedge 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as 
cash flow hedges is recognised in equity in the hedging reserve.  The gain or loss relating to the 
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the 
periods when the hedged item will affect profit or loss (for instance when the forecast sale that is 
hedged takes place).  However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the 
recognition of the non financial assets (for example inventory) or a non financial liability, the gains 
and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the 
measurement of the initial cost of carrying amount of the asset or liability. 

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the 
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at the time remains in 
equity and is recognised when the forecast transactions is ultimately recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. 

When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was 
reported in equity is immediately transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting 

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.  Changes in the fair value of any 
derivative instrument that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value.  After initial recognition, all borrowings are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Equity 

Equity is the community’s interest in Council and is measured as the difference between total assets 
and total liabilities.  Equity is disaggregated and classified into a number of reserves, the 
components are: 

 Retained earnings 

 Council created reserves 

 Revaluation Reserves 

 Cash flow hedge reserve 

Council created reserves 

Council created reserves are a component of equity representing a particular use to which various 
parts of equity have been assigned.  The council may alter them without reference to any third party 
or the Courts.  Transfers from these reserves may be made only for certain specified purposes or 
when certain specified conditions are met.   

Goods and Services Taxation (GST) 

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables 
which are stated on a GST inclusive basis.   

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is 
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.  The net GST paid 
to, or received from the IRD is classified as an operating cash flow in the statement of cash flows. 

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 

Budget Figures 

The budget figures are those approved by Council at the beginning of the year in the 2012-22 Ten 
Year Plan.  The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using accounting 
policies that are consistent with those adopted by Council for the preparation of these financial 
statements. 

Cost Allocation 

Council has derived the cost of service for each significant activity using the cost allocation system 
outlined below. 

Direct costs are those costs directly attributable and charged to a significant activity.  Indirect costs 
are those costs which cannot be identified in an economically feasible manner with a specific 
significant activity.  Indirect costs are charged to significant activities using appropriate cost drivers 
such as computer equipment used, staff numbers and floor area. 
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 

In preparing these financial statements the Council has made estimates and assumptions concerning 
the future.  These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results.  
Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations or future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.  The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
discussed below: 

Landfill and aftercare provision 

Note 23 presents an analysis of the exposure of Council in relation to the estimates and 
uncertainties surrounding the landfill aftercare provision. 

Infrastructural assets 

There are a number of assumptions and estimates used when performing DRC valuations over 
infrastructural assets.  These include: 

 The physical deterioration and condition of an asset, for example the Council could be 

carrying an asset at an amount that does not reflect its actual condition.  This is particularly 

so for those assets, which are not visible, for example stormwater, wastewater and water 

supply pipes that are underground.  This risk is minimised by Council performing a 

combination of physical inspections and condition modelling assessments of underground 

assets; 

 Estimating any obsolescence or surplus capacity of an asset; and  

 Estimates are made when determining the remaining useful lives over which the asset will 

be depreciated.  These estimates can be impacted by the local conditions, for example 

weather patterns and traffic growth.  If useful lives do not reflect the actual consumption of 

the benefits of the assets, then Waipa District Council could be over or under estimating the 

annual depreciation charge recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income.  To minimise this risk Waipa District Council’s infrastructural assets useful lives have 

been determined with reference to the NZ Infrastructural Asset Valuation and Depreciation 

Guidelines published by the National Asset Management Steering Group, and have been 

adjusted for local conditions based on past experience.  Asset inspections, deterioration and 

condition modelling are also carried out regularly as part of Waipa District Council’s asset 

management planning activities, which gives Waipa District Council further assurance over 

its useful life estimates. 

Experienced independent valuers perform the Council’s infrastructural asset revaluations. 

Income Tax 

The Council is tax exempt for income tax purposes. 
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2. Summary Cost of Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Each significant activity is stated gross of internal costs and revenues, and includes targeted rates 
attributable to activities (refer Note 3).  In order to fairly reflect the total external operations for the 
Council in the statement of comprehensive income, these transactions are eliminated as shown 
above. 

 
  

2013 2013 2012

Actual Budget Actual

$000 $000 $000

INCOME

Governance 35              30              42              

Planning and Regulatory 2,917         3,186         3,106         

Community Services and Facil ities 3,088         3,027         4,347         

Roads and Footpaths 6,732         6,264         8,030         

Stormwater -             -             1                 

Water Treatment and Supply 5,387         5,277         3,583         

Wastewater Treatment and Disposal 456            468            431            

Support Services 8,813         10,176      10,226      

GROSS REVENUE 27,428      28,428      29,766      

Less Internal Charges (8,803)       (10,149)     (10,221)     

Total Income 18,625      18,279      19,545      

EXPENDITURE

Governance 5,906         5,984         5,377         

Planning and Regulatory 4,441         4,913         4,853         

Community Services and Facil ities 16,037      17,147      16,580      

Roads and Footpaths 18,213      17,216      18,596      

Stormwater 2,169         2,051         1,945         

Water Treatment and Supply 10,456      8,363         9,085         

Wastewater Treatment and Disposal 5,545         5,790         5,949         

Support Services 9,711         11,084      11,170      

GROSS EXPENDITURE 72,478      72,548      73,555      

Less Internal Charges (8,803)       (10,149)     (10,221)     

Less rates charged to Council  properties (859)           (828)           (789)           

NET EXPENDITURE 62,816      61,571      62,545      
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3. Rates Revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Council is required by the LGFA Guarantee and Indemnity Deed to disclose in its financial statements 
(or notes) its annual rates income.  That Deed defines annual rates income as an amount equal to 
the total revenue from any funding mechanism authorised by the Local Government (Rating) Act 
2002 together with any revenue received by Council from other local authorities for services 
provided by that Council for which those other Local Authorities rate.  The annual rates income of 
Council for the purposes of the LGFA Guarantee and Indemnity Deed disclosure is shown below: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Rate Remissions 

The Council’s rate remission policy allows the remission of rates under certain conditions and 
criteria.  The following is a breakdown: 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Rates consist of:

General rates 15,084      13,739      

Targeted ward rates 14,956      12,902      

Other targeted rates:

  Water, excluding water supply rates 3,387         4,423         

  Sewerage 5,176         5,672         

  Stormwater 1,858         1,727         

  Recycling 946            952            

  Other 589            560            

Add  Penalities 204            198            

Less Remissions (168)           (156)           

42,032      40,017      

Less rates charged to Council properties (840)           (789)           

Total Rates, excluding targeted water supply rates 41,192      39,228      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Rates, excluding targeted water supply rates 41,192      39,228      

Targeted water supply rates 5,253         3,458         

Total annual rates income 46,445      42,686      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Sport / community organisations 105            95              

Maori land 13              12              

Open space convenanted land 3                 3                 

School waste water 47              46              

168            156            
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4. Fees, Charges, and Targeted Rates for Water Supply 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Subsidies and Grants 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to subsidies and grants 
recognised (2012 nil). 

 

6. Other Revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Gain on Revaluation 

 

 

  

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Targeted water supply rates 5,253         3,458         

User Charges 3,162         2,812         

Regulatory revenue 2,907         3,096         

Rental income from investment properties 559            539            

Other Significant Activity revenue 147            1,583         

Total fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply 12,028      11,488      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

New Zealand Transport Agency roading subsidies 6,512         7,949         

Grants 56              42              

External funding 96              1,337         

Total subsidies and grants 6,664         9,328         

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Insurance recoveries 19              56              

Infringements and fines 9                 10              

Petrol tax 331            326            

Total other revenue 359            392            

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Gain on changes in fair value of forestry assets 52              231            
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8. Employee Benefit Expenses 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Other Expenses 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The fees paid to Audit New Zealand for other services in 2012 were for the Long Term Plan audit. 

 

10. Finance Costs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Fees to the principal auditor:

Fees to Audit New Zealand for audit of the Council's financial statements 110            111            

Fees to Audit New Zealand for other services -             81              

Total Audit Fees 110            192            

Community grants 1,890         877            

Loss on disposal property, plant and equipment 5,304         3,590         

Loss on disposal investment property 100            -             

Direct expenses from investment property 191            180            

Direct Expenses from investment property no primarily generating income 330            373            

Lease payments under operating leases 151            166            

Other operating expenditure 21,534      26,068      

Total Other Expenses 29,610      31,446      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Salaries and wages 14,126      13,396      

Increase / (decrease) in employee benefit l iabilities 41              77              

Total employee benefit expenses 14,167      13,473      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Interest on borrowings 2,077         2,171         

Discount unwind on provisions (note 23) 78              (54)             

2,155         2,117         
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11. Loss on Revaluation 

 

 

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

 

 
 
 

 

The carrying value of short-term deposits with maturity dates of three months or less approximates 
their fair value. 

 

13. Trade and other Receivables 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.  The status of the 
current portion of receivables as at 30 June are detailed below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council does not provide for the impairment on rates receivables as it has various powers under the 
Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding debts. 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Loss on changes in fair value of investment property 92              188            

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Cash at bank and in hand 1,133         1,868         

Term deposits with maturities less than 3 months 10,000      -             

Total 11,133      1,868         

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Rates receivables 476            504            

Community loans 40              48              

Sundry debtors 3,605         2,832         

4,121         3,384         

Less non current portion

Community loans 33              41              

Total Non-current Portion 33              41              

Current Portion 4,088         3,343         

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Not past due 3,365         2,367         

Past due 1 - 60 days 132            388            

Past due 61 - 120 days 64              57              

Past due > 120 days 527            531            

Total 4,088         3,343         
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As of 30 June, all overdue receivables, except for rates receivable, have been assessed for 
impairment and appropriate provisions applied.  Waipa District Council holds no collateral as 
security or other credit enhancements over receivables that are either past due or impaired. 

The impairment provision for prior year has been calculated based on expected losses for Council’s 
pool of debtors.  There are no anticipated losses. 

14. Other Financial Assets 

Current Portion 
 

Non-current Portion 

*These shares form part of Council’s investment in Local Authority Shared Services Limited. 

 

15. Assets Held for Sale 

Council purchased a property and leased it to the Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust (MEIT).  A 
formal agreement was entered into and later amended to sell the property to MEIT in the 2014 
financial year.  A prepayment of $44,444 towards the property purchase has been received from 
MEIT. The book value of this property is $373,000 (2012 $373,000). 
 
Council has entered into an agreement for the sale for removal of the house currently situated at 2 
Vogel Street, Cambridge.  The book value of this house is $10,000 (2012 $0). 
 
In May 2012 Council entered into a sale agreement for land in Burns Street, Cambridge, with the sale 
completed in August 2012.  The book value of this property in June 2012 was $612,000. 
 

 
 
 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Term deposits with maturities of 4 - 12 Months -            12,500     

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Assets held for sale 383 985           

Number of % Balance 2013 2012

Shares Holding Date Actual Actual

$000 $000

Waikato Regional Airport Limited 777,110      15.63       30 June 2,404       2,404       

New Zealand Local Government Insurance 

Company Limited 149,082      1.35          31 Dec 141           141           

Local Authority Shared Services Limited 1                  7.69          30 June 1               1               

Waikato SVDS* 78,748        4.9            30 June 79             79             

Waikato Regional Transport Model* 11,250        5               30 June 112           112           

LGFA - unlisted shares 200,000      0.4            30 June 100           100           

LGFA - borrower notes 30 June 96             -            

Total non current portion of shares and 

investments in other organisations 2,933       2,837       
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 

During 2012/13 a revaluation of the Roading Network was performed by Beca Valuations Limited (Beca), (registered valuation experts) effective as at 30 
June 2013.  A revaluation of the utility assets was performed by AECOM New Zealand Limited, (registered valuation experts) effective as at 30 June 2013.  
The total fair value is determined on a depreciated replacement cost basis at 30 June 2013. 

Work in progress shows the amount of capital projects that are in the course of construction, and will be capitalised once completed in future years. 

There are no restrictions over the title of Council’s property, plant and equipment assets, nor are property plant and equipment assets pledged as security 
for liabilities. 
  

2013

Cost/ 

revaluation 

1/7/12

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and impairment 

charges 1/7/12

Carrying 

amount 

1/7/12

Current year 

Additions

Current year 

disposals

Accumulated 

depreciation 

prior to 

revaluation

Current year 

depreciation

Accumulated 

depreciation 

write off on 

disposal / 

reval

Revaluation 

surplus / 

(deficit)

Cost/ 

revaluation 

30/6/13

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and 

impairment 

charges 

30/6/13

Carrying 

amount 

30/6/13

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Council operational assets

Land 109,073      -                      109,073      557              -               -                  -               -                    -               109,630      -                   109,630      

Buildings 44,764         (907)                    43,857         348              (33)               -                  (932)             -                    -               45,079         (1,839)             43,240         

Landfil ls post closure 418              (418)                    -               -               -                  -               -                    -               418              (418)                -               

Library books 1,924           (1,084)                 840              251              (170)             -                  (205)             170                   -               2,005           (1,119)             886              

Plant 4,383           (3,395)                 988              397              (210)             -                  (380)             133                   -               4,570           (3,642)             928              

Furniture and equipment 11,220         (6,322)                 4,898           1,297           (357)             -                  (565)             293                   -               12,160         (6,594)             5,566           

Work in progess 2,173           -                      2,173           (371)             -               -                  -               -                    -               1,802           -                   1,802           

Total operational assets 173,955      (12,126)              161,829      2,479           (770)             -                  (2,082)          596                   -               175,664      (13,612)           162,052      

Council infrastructural assets

Sewerage system 61,465         (6,170)                 55,295         1,597           (424)             (8,489)             (2,391)          8,561                3,906            58,055  - 58,055         

Water system 81,687         (7,151)                 74,536         3,651           (3,714)          (9,551)             (2,758)          9,909                1,102           73,175         -                   73,175         

Drainage network 44,366         (1,846)                 42,520         857              (494)             (2,587)             (774)             2,620                4,308            46,450  - 46,450         

Roading network 523,762      -                      523,762      10,052         (1,448)          (8,332)             (8,438)          8,438                8,811           532,845      -                   532,845      

Land under roads 234,642      -                      234,642      -               -               -                  -               -                    -               234,642      -                   234,642      

Work in progress 11,155         -                      11,155         7,099           -               -                  -               -                    -               18,254         -                   18,254         

Total infrastructural assets 957,077      (15,167)              941,910      23,256         (6,080)          (28,959)          (14,361)       29,528             18,127         963,421      -                   963,421      

Total property plant and 

equipment 1,131,032   (27,293)              1,103,739   25,735         (6,850)          (28,959)          (16,443)       30,124             18,127         1,139,085   (13,612)           1,125,473   
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During 2011/12 a revaluation of the Roading Network was performed by Beca Valuations Limited (Beca), (registered valuation experts) effective as at 30 
June 2012.  The total fair value is determined on a depreciated replacement cost basis at 30 June 2012. 

 

 

2012

Cost/ 

revaluation 

1/7/11

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and impairment 

charges 1/7/11

Carrying 

amount 

1/7/11 Transfers 

Current year 

Additions

Current year 

disposals

Accumulated 

depreciation 

prior to 

revaluation

Current year 

depreciation

Accumulated 

depreciation 

write off on 

disposal / 

reval

Revaluation 

surplus / 

(deficit)

Cost/ 

revaluation 

30/6/12

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and 

impairment 

charges 

30/6/12

Carrying 

amount 

30/6/12

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Council operational assets

Land 109,258      -                      109,258      (488)         303              -               -                  -               -                    -               109,073      -                   109,073      

Buildings 43,289         -                      43,289         1,475           -               -                  (907)             -                    -               44,764         (907)                43,857         

Landfil ls post closure 418              (418)                    -               -               -               -                  -               -                    -               418              (418)                -               

Library books 2,048           (1,204)                 844              211              (335)             -                  (213)             333                   -               1,924           (1,084)             840              

Plant 4,410           (3,322)                 1,088           321              (348)             -                  (389)             316                   -               4,383           (3,395)             988              

Furniture and equipment 11,088         (6,409)                 4,679           786              (654)             -                  (535)             622                   -               11,220         (6,322)             4,898           

Work in progess 1,787           -                      1,787           386              -               -                  -               -                    -               2,173           -                   2,173           

Total operational assets 172,298      (11,353)              160,945      (488)         3,482           (1,337)          -                  (2,044)          1,271                -               173,955      (12,126)           161,829      

Council infrastructural assets

Sewerage system  59,864  (3,945) 55,919          (1)  2,088  (486)  -  (2,594)  369  -  61,465  (6,170)  55,295

Water system  79,067  (4,731) 74,336          1  4,672  (2,053)  -  (3,068)  648  -  81,687  (7,151)  74,536

Drainage network  42,200  (1,093) 41,107          (14)  2,262  (82)  -  (761)  8  -  44,366  (1,846)  42,520

Roading network  516,886  (14,325) 502,561       (102)  9,117  (3,132)  (20,421)  (6,579)  20,904  21,414  523,762  -  523,762

Land under roads  234,526  - 234,526       116  -  -  -  -  -  -  234,642  -  234,642

Work in progress  8,438  - 8,438            -  2,717  -  -  -  -  -  11,155  -  11,155

Total infrastructural assets  940,981  (24,094)  916,887  -  20,856  (5,753)  (20,421)  (13,002)  21,929  21,414  957,077  (15,167)  941,910

Total property plant and 

equipment 1,113,279 (35,447) 1,077,832  (488) 24,338 (7,090) (20,421) (15,046) 23,200 21,414 1,131,032 (27,293) 1,103,739
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17. Intangible Assets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

There are no restrictions over the title of Council’s intangible assets, nor are intangible assets 
pledged as security for liabilities. 

 

18. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense by Group of Activity 

 

 

 

  

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Directly attributable depreciation and amortisation expense by group of activity

Governance 2                 -             

Planning and Regulatory 4                 4                 

Community Services and Facilities 1,323         1,270         

Roads and Footpaths 8,476         6,607         

Stormwater 774            761            

Water Treatment and Supply 2,779         3,088         

Wastewater Treatment and Disposal 2,397         2,598         

Support Service 1,037         992            

Total depreciation and amortisation expense 16,792      15,320      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Balance at 1 July

Cost 2,384         1,676         

Accumulated amortisation and impairment (1,384)       (1,111)       

Opening carrying amount 1,000         565            

Year ended 30 June

Additions 140            708            

Intangible gains / (losses) 31              -             

Disposals (26)             -             

Amortisation charge (349)           (273)           

Closing carrying amount 796            1,000         

Balance at 30 June

Cost 2,529         2,384         

Accumulated amortisation and impairment (1,733)       (1,384)       

Closing carrying amount 796            1,000         
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19. Forestry Assets 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Council owns 284 hectares of forest land with 269.51 hectares of mainly pinus radiata which includes 
4.14 hectares of mixed species.  The pinus are at varying stages of maturity ranging from 1 year to 32 
years. 

There has been no harvesting in the 2013 year. 

Forestry experts Tempest and Associates Forestry Limited have valued the forestry assets as at 30 
June 2013.  A peer review of the Tempest and Associates Forestry Limited’s valuation was completed 
by Interpine Forestry Limited.  A pre tax discount rate of 7% has been used in discounting the 
present value of expected cash flows.   

Financial Risk Management Strategies 

Council is exposed to financial risks arising from changes in timber prices.  Council is a long-term 
forestry investor and does not expect timber prices to decline significantly in the foreseeable future, 
therefore, it has not taken any measures to manage the risks of a decline in timber prices.  Council 
reviews it’s outlook for timber prices regularly in considering the need for active financial risk 
management. 

Emissions Trading Scheme 

The council had 272 hectares of eligible forest area  of pre-1990 forest land at the time of 
application. This land is subject to the provisions of the New Zealand emissions trading scheme 
(‘ETS”).  The implication of this for the financial statements is two-fold: 
 Should the land be deforested (that is, the land is changed from forestry to some other 

purpose), a deforestation penalty will arise; and 
 As a result of the deforestation restriction, compensation units are being provided by the 

Government. 

Compensation has been provided to forestry owners, via the allocation of compensation units, 
known as New Zealand Units (NZUs) in two tranches. Council received the first tranche of 6,256 units 
in November  2012, and the second tranche of 10,064 units in April 2013.  
  

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Balance at 1 July 1,180         1,528         

Decrease due to harvest and thinnings (11)             (603)           

Gains / (losses) arising from changes in fair value less estimated point of 

sale costs 52              231            

Increase due to planting 8                 24              

Balance 30 June 1,229         1,180         
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20. Investment Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Investment properties are valued annually at fair value effective 30 June.  The fair value of 
investment property has been determined by the current market sales within the areas where the 
properties are located.  Where no comparable sales were evident, sales of other types of properties 
were checked to determine if there had been a shift in market values over the previous twelve 
months since the properties were last valued. 

The valuation was performed by S J Taylor, MNZPI and G Cook, SNZPI, independent valuation 
experts, Opus International Consultants Limited.  Opus International Consultants Limited are 
experienced valuation experts with extensive market knowledge in the types of investment 
properties owned by Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

21. Trade and other Payables 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms, 
therefore the carrying value of trade and other payables approximates their fair value. 
 

  

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Balance at 1 July 15,981      15,682      

Additions 466            487            

Disposals (293)           -             

Transfer to held for sale (10)             -             

Fair value gains / (losses) on valuation (92)             (188)           

Balance 30 June 16,052      15,981      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Trade payables 5,936         5,130         

Deposits and bonds 472            439            

Accrued expenses 2,162         369            

Income in advance 1,371         1,343         

Total Trade and Other Payables 9,941         7,281         

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Rental income 559            539            

Expenses from investment property generating income 191            166            

Expenses from investment property not primarily generating income 330            373            
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22. Derivative Financial Instruments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fair Value 

The fair value of the interest rate swaps have been determined using a discounted cash flows 
valuation technique based on quoted market values. 

Interest Rate Swaps 

The notional principal amounts of the interest rate swap contracts are $23,000,000 (2012 
$33,000,000).  As at 30 June 2013 the fixed interest rates of cash flow hedge interest rate swaps 
varied from 5.53% to 7.70% (2012 5.53% to 7.7%). 

Council deems the hedges held to be effective.  Gains and losses are recognised in the hedging 
reserve in equity (note 26) and will be released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as 
interest is paid on the underlying debt. 

 

23. Provisions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Provisions for landfill aftercare costs 

Council has operated the Cambridge, Te Awamutu, Kihikihi and Pirongia landfills.  Council has the 
responsibility under the resource consents to provide on-going maintenance and monitoring of the 
landfills after the sites are closed. 

Capacity of the sites 

The Cambridge, Te Awamutu, Kihikihi and Pirongia landfills have all been closed and capped.  The 
cash flows for landfills post-closure are expected to continue as far out as 2039. 

The long term nature of the liability means that there are inherent uncertainties in estimating the 
costs that will be incurred.  The provision has been estimated taking into account existing technology 
and is discounted using a discount rate of 6.77% (2012 6.90%). 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Current provisions are represented by:

Landfill  aftercase provision 74              81              

Total Current Provisions 74              81              

Non current provisions are represented by:

Landfill  aftercare provisions 678            638            

Total Non-current Provisions 678            638            

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Non current liability portion

Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 1,139         2,302         

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Liabilities 1,139         2,302         



54 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Provision for Local Government Funding Agency 

Council is a shareholder and guarantor of The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency 
Limited (NZLGFA).  This entity was incorporated in December 2011 with the purpose of providing 
debt funding to local authorities in New Zealand and has a current credit rating from Standard and 
Poor’s of AA+.   

Council is one of 30 local authority shareholders and guarantors of the NZLGFA.  In that regard it has 
uncalled capital of $20m.  When aggregated with the uncalled capital of other shareholders, $20m is 
available in the event that an imminent default is identified.  Also, together with the other 
shareholders and guarantors, Council is a guarantor of all of NZLGFA’s borrowings.  At 30 June 2013, 
NZLGFA had borrowings totalling $2,497m (2012 $840m). 

Financial reporting standards require Council to recognise the guarantee liability at fair value.  
However, the Council has been unable to determine a sufficiently reliable fair value for the 
guarantee, and therefore has not recognised a liability.  The Council considers the risk of NZLGFA 
defaulting on repayment of interest or capital to be very low on the basis that: 

 Council are not aware of any local authority debt default events in New Zealand; and  

 local government legislation would enable local authorities to levy a rate to recover 
sufficient funds to meet any debt obligations if further funds were required. 

 

24. Employee Benefit Liabilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Opening balance 719            651            

Amounts used (80)             (87)             

Additional provision 35              209            

Discounting changes 78              (54)             

Closing Balance 752            719            

Represented by:

Current portion 74              81              

Term portion 678            638            

752            719            

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Accrued pay 222            210            

Annual leave 888            870            

Sick leave 50              39              

Total Employee Benefit Liabilities 1,160         1,119         

Comprising:

Current 1,160         1,119         

Non-Current -             -             

Total Employee Benefit Liabilities 1,160         1,119         
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25. Borrowings 

Internal Borrowings 

Information about internal borrowings is provided on pages 74 to 148 of Council’s annual report.  
Internal borrowings are eliminated on consolidation of activities in Council’s financial statements.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fixed Rate Debt 

Council currently has no secured debt issued at fixed rates of interest (2012 $5,000k).   Council 
utilises interest rate swap arrangements to provide fix rate cover on debt.  Note 22 provides detail of 
the interest rate swaps that are in place. 

Committed Cash Advance Facilities 

Council has the following committed cash advance facilities in place:  

 A $7.5m revolving committed cash advance facility with ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited. 

Council had the following committed cash advance facilities in place in 2012: 

 A $13.5m committed revolving cash advance facility with the New Zealand branch of the 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia. 

 An arrangement for a potential short term money market facility of up to $3.5m with ASB 
Bank New Zealand, intended only for disaster recovery purposes. 

None of these facilities were drawn down at 30 June 2013 (2012 none of these facilities were 
drawn down). 

Security 

Council’s loans and committed cash advance facilities are secured by a charge on rates by way of 
security stock issuances under a debenture trust deed. 

Maturity Analysis and Effective Interest Rates 

The following is a maturity analysis of Council’s borrowings.  There are no finance leases. 
 
 

  

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Less than one year 16,300      15,300      

weighted average effective interest rate 6.94% 6.72%

Later than one year but not more than five years 6,000         16,000      

weighted average effective interest rate 6.30% 7.07%

22,300      31,300      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Current

Unsecured loans 300            300            

Secured loans 16,000      15,000      

Total Current Borrowings 16,300      15,300      

Non-Current

Secured loans 6,000         16,000      

Total Non-current Borrowings 6,000         16,000      

Total Borrowings 22,300      31,300      
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26. Equity 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2013 

Actual

2012 

Actual

$000 $000

Retained earnings

As at 1 July 331,422   320,530  

Transfers to:

Reserves and special funds (9,567)      (7,979)     

Transfers from:

Asset Revaluation reserve on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 4,464       5,461      

Reserves and special funds 5,133       5,735      

Surplus / (deficit) for the year 6,906       7,675      

As at 30 June 338,358   331,422  

Council created reserves

As at 1 July 16,803     14,559    

Transfers to:

Retained earnings (5,133)      (5,735)     

Transfers from:

Retained earnings 9,567       7,979      

As at 30 June 21,237     16,803    

Asset Revaluation Reserves

As at 1 July 754,678   738,725  

Revaluation gain / (losses) 18,158     21,414    

Transfer of revaluation reserve to retained earnings on 

disposal of property plant and equipment (4,464)      (5,461)     

As at 30 June 768,372   754,678  

Asset revaluation reserves consist of:

Operational assets

Land 86,784     87,253    

Buildings 15,445     15,445    

Intangible Assets 31             -           

Infrastructural Assets

Sewerage System 28,888     25,107    

Water System 43,470     44,679    

Drainage network 31,246     27,241    

Roading  network 562,508   554,953  

Total Asset Revaluation Reserves 768,372   754,678  

Cash Flow Hedge Reserves

Opening balance 1 July (2,150)      (1,281)     

Fair value gains / (losses) in the year 1,011       (869)        

Total Cash Flow Hedge Reserve (1,139)      (2,150)     

Total 788,470 769,331
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Information about reserve funds held for a specific purpose is provided below: 

 

 

 

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13

Opening 

Balance

Transfer 

to Reserve

Transfer 

From 

Reserve

Closing 

Balance

$000 $000 $000 $000

Council created reserves consist of:

Property Reserves

Asset Sales Cambridge 776             661           (264)         1,173         

Asset Sales General 429             13             (10)            432             

Endowment Land Cambridge 2,016         60             (95)            1,981         

Endowment Land Pirongia 18               -            -            18               

Endowment Land Te Awamutu 745             22             -            767             

Endowment Land Waipa District 939             28             -            967             

Forestry Reserve 320             -            (49)            271             

Residential Housing Reserve 130             796           (661)         265             

Reserve Contributions & Development Contributions

Cambridge North 887             140           (111)         916             

District Wide Stormwater 159             19             -            178             

District Wide Waste Water 804             213           (802)         215             

District Wide Water Treatment and Supply 142             186           (73)            255             

District Wide Roading -              1,100       (1,100)      -              

District Wide Reserve Developments 140             211           (342)         9                 

District Wide Land Purchase 1,005         196           (16)            1,185         

Parks -              7               (7)              -              

Library Books -              10             (10)            -              

Karapiro Reserve Development -              20             (20)            -              

Special Funds

Cemetery Paterangi 4                 -            -            4                 

Mayors Relief Fund 4                 -            (4)              -              

Project Funding Reserve 433             1,748       (128)         2,053         

General Insurance Reserve -              49             -            49               

Infrastrucutre Insurance Reserve -              106           -            106             

Separate Balances

Roading Reserve 375             24,240     (23,821)    794             

Stormwater Reserve 494             2,709       (2,878)      325             

Water Supply Reserve 4,596         10,103     (8,511)      6,188         

Waste Water Reserve 1,546         7,302       (6,958)      1,890         

Depreciation Reserve - Long Term Assets 246             317           (261)         302             

Depreciation Reserve - Medium Term Assets 595             1,499       (1,200)      894             

Total Council Created Reserves 16,803       51,755     (47,321)    21,237       
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The table below sets out the purpose of the reserves held by Council and the related activities for 
these reserves. 
 

Reserve Purpose Activity 

Property Reserves 

Asset Sales Cambridge Proceeds from Cambridge asset sales 
held in reserve to fund future asset 
purchases 

Properties 

Asset Sales General Proceeds from district wide asset sales 
held in reserve to fund future asset 
purchases 

Properties 

Endowment Land Cambridge Proceeds from sale of Cambridge 
endowment land  held in reserve for 
endowment purposes  

Properties 

Endowment Land Pirongia Proceeds from sale of Pirongia 
endowment land  held in reserve for 
endowment purposes 

Properties 

Endowment Land Te Awamutu Proceeds from sale of Te Awamutu  
endowment land  held in reserve for 
endowment purposes 

Properties 

Endowment Land Waipa District Proceeds from sale of District Wide 
endowment land  held in reserve for 
endowment purposes 

Properties 

Forestry Reserve Proceeds from forestry harvesting to 
fund future forestry activities 

Forestry 

Residential Housing Reserve Proceeds from residential housing rental 
revenue to fund the operating and 
capital expenditure of that activity. 

Pensioner Housing & Own 
Your Own Housing 

Reserve Contributions & Development Contributions 

Cambridge North  Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure 

Roads & Footpaths /  
Stormwater / Wastewater 
Treatment & Disposal / 
Water Treatment & Supply 

District Wide Stormwater Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure 

Stormwater 

District Wide Wastewater  Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure 

Wastewater Treatment & 
Disposal 

District Wide Water Treatment & 
Supply  

Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure 

Water Treatment & Supply 

District Wide Roading  Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure 

Roads & Footpaths 

District Wide Reserve 
Developments 

Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 

Parks & Reserves 
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Reserve Purpose Activity 

expenditure 

District Wide Land Purchase Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure 

Parks & Reserves 

Parks Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure for Parks and Reserves 

Parks & Reserves 

Library Books Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure library books 

District Libraries 

Karapiro Reserve Development Proceeds from development 
contributions to fund growth related 
expenditure for Mighty River Domain 

Mighty River Domain 

Special Funds 

Cemetery Paterangi Proceeds held in reserve to fund future 
capital works 

Cemeteries 

Mayors Relief Fund Proceeds held to provide relief support 
to other parties at the discretion of the 
Mayor 

Council 

Project Funding Reserve Funding for specific projects to be 
completed in the following year 

All activities 

General Insurance Reserve Provision to pay call-ups and to fund 
increase in deductibles of claims as well 
as to help to pay future premium 
increases 

All activities 

Infrastructure Insurance Reserve Provision to help cover the insurance 
deductible if a major event happens in 
the Waipa District. 

Stormwater / Wastewater 
Treatment & Disposal / 
Water Treatment & Supply 

Separate Balances 

Roading Reserve Funds held in reserve for capital works 
expenditure 

Roads & Footpaths 

Stormwater Reserve Funds held in reserve for capital works 
expenditure 

Stormwater 

Water Supply Reserve Funds held in reserve for capital works 
expenditure 

Water Treatment & Supply 

Wastewater Reserve Funds held in reserve for operating  and 
capital works expenditure 

Wastewater Treatment & 
Disposal 

Depreciation Reserve Long Term 
Assets 

Funds held in reserve for capital works 
expenditure 

Community Services & 
Facilities 

Depreciation Reserve Medium 
Term Assets 

Funds held in reserve for capital works 
expenditure 

Community Services & 
Facilities 
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27. Reconciliations of Net Surplus/(Deficit) to Net Cash Flow from 
Operating Activities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28. Capital Commitments and Operating Leases 

 

 

 
 
 

Operating lease as lessee 

The Council leases property in the normal course of its business.  The majority of these leases have a 
non-cancellable term.  The properties that Council lease are 14 Wilson Street, Cambridge, 77 Daphne 
Street, Te Awamutu and 33 Wilson Street, Cambridge (Warehouse depot and carpark) and units 64 
and 65 at 230 Berquist Drive, Te Awamutu.  The future aggregate minimum lease payments payable 
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Surplus / (deficit) after tax 6,906         7,675         

Add (less) non cash items

Depreciation and amortisation 16,792      15,320      

Asset write-downs 11              604            

Vested / discovered assets (6,215)       (6,340)       

(Gains) / losses in fair value of investment property and forestry 40              (43)             

Add / (less) items classified as investing or financing activities (1,741)       (1)               

(Gains) / losses on disposal of assets 5,404         3,590         

Impairment (Gain) / Loss (86)             217            

Add / (less) movements in working capital items

Trade and other receivables (737)           (468)           

Trade and other payables 2,660         538            

Provisions 33              68              

Employee Benefits 41              77              

Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Operating Activities 23,108      21,237      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Capital Commitments - for capital expenditure contracted for at balance 

date but not yet incurred 330            768            

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Not later than one year 154            60              

Later than one year and not later than five years 124            8                 

Total Non-cancellable Operating Leases 278            68              
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Operating leases as lessor 
 
Investment property is leased under operating leases.  The majority of these are short term leases, 
however Council also has a small number of non-cancellable long term leases.  The future aggregate 
minimum lease payments to be collected under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 

29. Contingencies 

Contingent Liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council is listed as sole guarantor for a number of community organisation bank loans.  The Council 
is obligated under each guarantee to make loan payments in the event that the organisation defaults 
on a loan arrangement.   

During May 2004, the shareholders of Waikato Regional Airport (WRAL) of which Waipa District 
Council has a 15.625% shareholding, authorised the company to issue shares totalling $21.6m to 
shareholders.  This capital restructure was part of the WRAL airport development and allowed WRAL 
to borrow commercially at favourable interest rates.  Since that time a temporary suspension of 
international services to Hamilton, together with the economic environment, resulted in a need for 
equity.  The directors of WRAL agreed to make a call on the shareholders, with the Waipa District 
Council share being $1.875m due by 14 July 2009.  The contingent liability for the remaining uncalled 
capital is $1.5m.  There are no plans to call up the remaining capital. 

Council owns one pensioner housing unit where there is a site licence agreement with the provision 
that if the owner is unable to sell the property within one year of termination of the site licence, 
Council will lend the owner the value of the property, which would be reimbursed on the future sale.  
Council has a contingent liability of $100k. 

Council has an exposure of $20,500 (maximum) to the Waipa Community Trust under an 
underwriting commitment given in relation to fundraising costs associated with the Cambridge 
Community Pool Project.  In August 2011 (and with the commitment extended to a greater financial 
value in December 2011), Council agreed at the request of the project fundraising committee to 
underwrite a certain amount of fundraising cost associated with the project.  On the basis of this 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

a)  Guarantees 934            1,300         

b)  Waikato Regional Airport 1,500         1,500         

c)  Site Licence Agreement 100            100            

d)  Waipa Community Trust 20              20              

e)  Weathertight Homes Resolution Services 130            -             

2,684         2,920         

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Not later than one year 109            85              

Later than one year and not later than five years 258            275            

Later than five years 57              96              

Total Non-cancellable Operating Leases 424            456            
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undertaking the Waipa Community Trust agreed to advance $30,000 of the funds it was holding for 
the project to meet the fundraising costs.  Those funds had come from donors to the pool 
project.  For $9,500 of this amount there was confirmation from the donor that the funds were not 
required to be refunded even if the project did not go ahead.  For the remaining $20,500 there 
remains the possibility that the donors could ask the Waipa Community Trust for their funds to be 
returned given the current status of the project, in which case the Trust may have to call on Council's 
underwriting commitment.  At 30 June 2013 the Trust still holds approximately $35,000 of funds on 
behalf of the pool project. 

One claim has been lodged under the Weathertight Homes Resolution Services Act as at 30 June 
2013.  This claim relates to a weathertightness issue of a house in the Council’s district .  Council’s 
liability has been estimated to be $130,000 being 20 percent of the estimated cost for the repairs. 

Contingent Liabilities not able to be Quantified 

As detailed in Note 23 Council is a shareholder of the New Zealand Local Government Funding 
Agency Limited and is party to the guarantee of all borrowings of the entity.   

Contingent Assets 

Council is a 2% capital beneficiary of the WEL Energy Trust.  The life of the Trust ends in 2073 unless 
terminated earlier if its purpose is completed.  Given the uncertainties surrounding the life of the 
Trust, Council is unable to accurately establish the appropriate value of the 2% shareholding. 

Council has paper roads which it is unable to place a value on.  The value of the paper roads will be 
realised either through the sale of the land on which these paper roads are located on or the 
development of the site covered by paper roads. 

 

30. Related Party Transactions 

The following transactions were carried out with related parties: 

Local Authority Shared Services (LASS) 

During the year Council purchased services from LASS at a cost of $113,929 (2012 $46,112).  At 
balance date there was $2,891 outstanding in relation to these services (2012 $7,537). 

Waikato Regional Airport Limited 

During the year Council purchased services from Waikato Regional Airport Limited at a cost of 
$117,005 (2012 $57,640).  At balance date there was $0 outstanding in relation to these services 
(2012 $0). 

Senior Management and Members of Council 

During the year, Councillors and senior management, as part of a normal customer relationship, 
were involved in minor transactions with the Council (such as payment of rates).  In addition, during 
the year, Council paid lease costs for buildings of $58,478 (2012 $57,615) to the Scaramuzza Trust, 
also paid to the Scaramuzza Trust were insurance and rate costs relating to these buildings of $9,773 
(2012 $10,289).  At balance date there was $0 outstanding in relation to these contracts (2012 $0). 

Except for these transactions and items of a trivial nature, no Councillors or senior management 
have entered into related party transactions with Council. 
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Councillors’ Interest in Other Entities 

The information below details Councillors’ involvement with community organisations, in their 
capacity as trustees, as well as the related party payments made by Council to these organisations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
At balance date there were no amounts outstanding in relation to these organisations with the 
exceptions of Kihikihi Police House Trust which had a balance of $2,093 outstanding (2012 $0). 
 
Senior Management and Councillors’ Compensation 
 
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits of $1,456,903 (2012 $1,461,955) and termination 
benefits of $0 (2012 $0) were paid to the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive and other senior 
management personal. 
 
No provision has been required, nor any expenses recognised for impairment of receivables, or for 
any loans or other receivables to related parties (2012 $0). 
 

31. Remuneration 

The Chief Executive received the following remuneration: 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

Alan Livingston JP (Mayor)

Trustee of:

Sport Waikato 89,392      85,758      

Hazel Barnes JP

Trustee of:

Kihikihi Police House Trust 5,598         1,215         

Laurie Hoverd

Trustee of:

Te Awamutu Safer Community Trust 12,500      15,485      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

Total remuneration - Garry Dyet JP 298,173    286,800    
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Elected representatives received the following remuneration: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Employees 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total remuneration includes non-financial benefits provided to employees. 

At balance date Council employed 186 (2012 180) full-time employees, with the balance of staff 
representing 26.7 (2012 25.04) full-time equivalent employees.  A full-time employee is determined 
on the basis of a 40 hour week. 

 

32. Severance Payments 

For the year ended 30 June 2013 there were two  severance payments to employees totalling $5,000 
(2012 $40,632). 

The value of each of the severance payments was $2,000 and $3,000. 

 

33. Events after the Balance Date 

There were no significant events after balance date. 

 

 

 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

Elected representatives received the following remuneration:

Alan Livingston JP, Mayor 100,600    96,300      

Grahame Webber, Deputy Mayor 32,300      34,757      

Hazel Barnes JP 28,299      28,401      

Dennis Finn 25,366      26,682      

Lawrence Hoverd 30,442      31,362      

Marcus Gower 25,366      25,366      

Sue Milner 28,299      29,959      

Joe Scaramuzza 29,085      30,410      

Diane Sharpe QSM JP 29,085      31,320      

George Simmons 25,366      25,444      

Barbara Taranaki JP 25,366      26,926      

Bruce Thomas 25,366      26,460      

Vern Wilson 25,366      25,366      

2013 2012

Actual Actual

Total annual remuneration by band for employees as at 30 June:

< $60,000 136            126            

$60,000 - $79,999 55              58              

$80,000 - $99,999 24              16              

$100,000 - 139,999 13              12              

$140,000 - $300,000 6                 6                 

Total Employees 234            218            
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34. Financial Instruments 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Instrument Risk 

Council has a series of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments.  Council is 
risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities.  Council has established 
Liability Management and Investment policies which do not allow any transactions that are 
speculative in nature. 

Price Risk 

Price Risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in 
the market prices.  Council is not exposed to price risk as it does not enter into widely held equity 
security transactions. 

Currency Risk 

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 
foreign exchange rates.  Council is not exposed to currency risk as it does not enter into foreign 
currency transactions. 

Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rates on borrowings are disclosed in note 25.   

Fair Value Interest Rate Risk 

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates.  Borrowing at fixed rates exposes Council to fair value interest rate 
risk and the Liability Management Policy outlines the level of borrowing that is to be secured using 
fixed rate instruments.  Fixed to floating interest rate swaps may be entered into to hedge the fair 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents excluding term deposits 1,133         1,868         

Trade and other receivables 4,081         3,336         

Other financial assets:

- term deposits 10,000      12,500      

- community loans 40              48              

Total loans and receivables 15,254      17,752      

Financial Liabilities

Derivatives that are hedge accounted

Derivative financial instrument liabilities 1,139         2,302         

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other payables 9,941         7,281         

Borrowings:

- secured loans 22,000      31,000      

- unsecured loans 300            300            

Total financial l iabilties at amortised cost 33,380      40,883      
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value interest rate risk arising from borrowing at fixed rates.  In addition investments at fixed 
interest rates give an exposure to fair value interest rate risk. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation, causing Council to incur a loss.  
There are no specific concentrations of credit risk.  Council only invests funds in bank deposits and 
local authority stock and the Investment Policy limits the exposure to any one organisation. 

Council is exposed to credit risk as a guarantor of all LGFA’s borrowings.  Information about this 
exposure is explained in note 23. 

Maximum exposure to credit risk: 

Waipa District Council’s exposure to credit risk and contractual maturity analysis for each class of 
financial instrument is as follows: 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet 
commitments as they fall due.  In order to meet its commitments, Council maintains a liquidity 
buffer of $1.5m and, whilst it has a committed cash advance facility, there are no funds drawn down 
against this facility as at 30 June 2013.  

Council is exposed to liquidity risk as a guarantor of all of LGFA’s borrowings.  This guarantee 
becomes callable in the event of the LGFA failing to pay its borrowings when they fall due.  
Information about this exposure is explained in note 23. 

Contractual maturity analysis of financial liability excluding derivatives: 

The table below analyses the Council’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on 
the remaining period at balance date to the contractual maturity date. 

 

Carrying Contractual Less than 1-2 Years 2-5 Years

Amount Cash Flows 1 Year

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Council 2013

Cash at bank and term deposits 11,133      11,133      11,133      -             -             

Debtors and other receivables 4,081         4,081         4,081         -             -             

Community loans 40              40              7                 7                 26              

Financial guarantees 1,000         1,000         1,000         -             -             

Total 16,254      16,254      16,221      7                 26              

Carrying Contractual Less than 1-2 Years 2-5 Years

Amount Cash Flows 1 Year

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Council 2012

Cash at bank and term deposits 14,368      14,368      14,368      -             -             

Debtors and other receivables 3,499         3,499         3,499         -             -             

Community loans 48              48              7                 7                 34              

Financial guarantees 1,300         1,300         1,300         -             -             

Total 19,215      19,215      19,174      7                 34              
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Council has derivative financial instruments in the form of three interest rate swap arrangements, 
with one of the interest rate swap arrangements maturing in 2013 and the other two arrangements 
maturing in 2015 and 2023. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The tables below illustrate the potential profit and loss and equity (excluding retained earnings) 
impact for reasonably possible market movements, with all other variables held constant, based on 
the Council’s financial instrument exposures at the balance date. 

 

Explanation of sensitivity analysis: 

1 Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents include deposits at call totalling 

$11,003,895 (2012 $14,274,169) which are at floating rates.  A movement in interest rates of 

plus or minus 1.0% has an effect on interest income of $110,039 (2012 $142,741). 

-100 bps +100 bps -100 bps +100 bps

Other Other Other Other 

Notes Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity

Interest rate risk

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1 (110)      -        110       -        (143)      -        143       -        

Financial liabilties

Derivatives-hedge accounted 2 -        (731)      -        670       (1)           (152)      1            150       

Borrowings - term loans 3 (60)        -        60          -        (60)        -        60          -        

Total sensitivity on interest rates (170)      (731)      170       670       (204)      (152)      204       150       

2013 Actual

$000

2012 Actual

$000

Carrying Contractual Less than 1-2 Years 2-5 Years

Amount Cash Flows 1 Year

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Council 2013

Creditors and other payables 9,941         9,941         9,941         -             -             

Unsecured loans 300            300            300            -             -             

Secured loans 22,000      22,000      16,000      6,000         

Financial guarantees 1,000         1,000         1,000         -             -             

Total 33,241      33,241      27,241      -             6,000         

Carrying Contractual Less than 1-2 Years 2-5 Years

Amount Cash Flows 1 Year

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Council 2012

Creditors and other payables 7,268         7,268         7,268         -             -             

Unsecured loans 300            300            300            -             -             

Secured loans 31,000      31,000      15,000      16,000      -             

Financial guarantees 1,300         1,300         1,300         -             -             

Total 39,868      39,868      23,868      16,000      -             
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2 Derivatives – hedge accounted – Financial Liabilities – Derivative financial liabilities hedge 

accounted includes interest rate swap fair value hedges totalling $1,138,705 (2012 

$2,301,834).  A movement in interest rates plus 100 bps has an effect of $669,737 (2012 

$151,000) and minus 100 bps has an effect of $731,448 (2012 $153,000). 

3 Secured loans – Council has floating rate debt with the principal amount totalling $6,000,000 

(2012 $6,000,000).  A movement in interest rates of plus or minus 1.0% has the effect on 

interest expense of $60,000 (2012 $60,000).  A movement in market interest on fixed rate 

debt does not have any impact. 

 

35.  Fair Value Hierarchy Disclosures 

For those instruments recognised at fair value in the statement of financial position, fair values are 
determined according to the following hierarchy: 

 Quoted market price (level 1) – Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical 
instruments in active markets. 

 Valuation technique using observable inputs (level 2) – Financial instruments with quoted 
prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar 
instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all 
significant inputs are observable. 

 Valuation techniques with significant non-observable inputs (level 3) – Financial instruments 
valued using models where one or more significant inputs are not observable. 

The following table analyses the basis of the valuation of classes of financial instruments measured 
at fair value in the statement of financial position. 

 
There were no transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy. 

Valuation techniques with significant non-observable inputs (level 3). 

The table below provides a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance for the 
level 3 fair value measurements: 

Total

Quoted 

market 

price

Observable 

inputs

Significant 

non-

observable 

inputs

$000 $000 $000 $000

30 June 2013

Financial assets

Shares 2,837         -             -             2,837         

Financial liabilities

Derivatives 1,139         -             1,139         -             

30 June 2012

Financial assets

Shares 2,837         -             -             2,837         

Financial liabilities

Derivatives 2,302         -             2,302         -             

Valuation technique
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36. Capital Management 

Council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayers’ funds), which comprise retained earnings and reserves.  
Equity is represented by net assets. 

The Local Government Act 2002 [the Act] requires Council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, 
liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the 
current and future interests of the community.  Ratepayers funds are largely managed as a by-
product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial 
dealings. 

An objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle 
promoted in the Act and applied by Council.  Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to 
meet the costs of utilising Council’s assets and not expecting them to meet the full cost of long term 
assets that will benefit ratepayers in future generations.  Additionally, Council has in place asset 
management plans for major classes of assets detailing renewal and maintenance programmes, to 
ensure ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and 
maintenance. 

The Act requires Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Long Term Plan (LTP) and in 
its annual plan (where applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identified in those plans.  The Act 
also sets out the factors that Council is required to consider when determining the most appropriate 
sources of funding for each of its activities.  The sources and levels of funding are set out in the 
funding and financial policies in the Council’s Long Term Plan. 

Waipa District Council has the following Council created reserves: 

 reserves for different areas of benefit; 

 self-insurance reserves; and 

 reserves and special funds. 

Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a separate rate set as distinct from 
the general rate.  Any surplus or deficit relating to these separate areas of benefit is applied to the 
specific reserves. 

Special reserves are set up where Council has received funds that are restricted for particular 
purposes.  Interest is added to these reserves where applicable and deductions are made where 
funds have been used for the purpose they were donated. 

 

 

 

 

 

2013 2012

Actual Actual

$000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2,837         2,664         

Purchases -             173            

Balance 30 June 2,837         2,837         
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37. Explanation of Major Variances Against Budget 

Explanations for major variances from the 2012/13 budgeted figures are as follows: 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

 Reserve and Development Contributions received were higher than budget by $398k, due to 
a change in expected timing. 

 The amount of infrastructure assets gifted from developers was worth $2.2m more than 
budgeted. 

 Completion of work aligning asset management and financial systems resulted in an 
additional $1 million in assets being discovered.  

 Finance income higher than budget by $656k, this was due to a number of factors that 
include: 
- Higher than anticipated level of cash at the end of the previous financial year. 
- Return on investments being maximized with good negotiation on terms and 

interest rates. 
- The arbitrage arrangement which has led to a net increase in interest revenue. 

 Employee benefit expenses was lower than budget by $883k and were impacted by the 
budget being set prior to the July salary review and the timing of filling vacant positions.   

 The decrease in depreciation of $345k.  Roading depreciation was over budget by $670k, 
largely due to the impact of the revaluation that was effective from the 1 July 2012.  
Depreciation in the Water Services was under budget due to the timing of capital works in 
the prior financial year.  

 Other expenses is $2.4m higher than budget, due to loss on disposal of infrastructure assets 
being $3.6m higher than the budget offset by $1.2m in operational savings during the year 
across all activities. 

Statement of Financial Position 

 Higher cash balance at year end due to the opening balance being $6.4m higher than 
anticipated, as well as savings identified during the year and additional cash received for 
interest revenue and reserve and development contributions. 

 Borrowings at year end are $5.7m lower than budget.  This is due to the higher than 
anticipated cash balance at the end of the 2011/12 financial year that was used to repay 
loans during 2012/13 year. 

 

38. Reclassification 

Council has changed the presentation of items within income to comply with the new presentation 
requirements of the Local Government (Financial Reporting) Regulations 2011. 

The effects of the changes to income are shown in the table below: 
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39. Waipa Community Facilities Trust 

The Waipa Community Facilities Trust was established with the signing of the Trust Deed on 12 April 
2013. The accounting treatment of the Trust for the purposes of this Annual Report is in the process 
of being assessed by Audit New Zealand. The transactions of the Trust for the year ended 30 June 
2013 have not been consolidated into the Council’s Annual Report pending the outcome of this 
assessment and on the basis of being immaterial in relation to Council’s operations.   

 

  

Actual 2012

Before 

reclassificaiton reclassification

After 

reclassification

$000 $000 $000

OPERATING INCOME

Rates  39,228                 (39,228)            -                     

Rates, excluding targeted water supply rates -                        39,228             39,228              

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply -                        11,488             11,488              

Reserve contributions 628                       -                    628                    

Development contributions 1,877                   -                    1,877                

Gain on revaluation 231                       -                    231                    

Vested assets 2,806                   -                    2,806                

Discovered assets 3,534                   -                    3,534                

Finance income 708                       -                    708                    

Subsidies and grants -                        9,328                9,328                

Other revenue 21,208                 (20,816)            392                    

Total Operating Income 70,220                 -                    70,220              
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Groups of Activities 

Our services are grouped into eight areas, each containing a number of activities.   

Seven of the groups of activities within this section are focused on public service delivery.  
The Support Services group is internally focused and is not an official group of activities as 
required under the Local Government Act, however, it includes a significant amount of our 
activities and provides a complete picture of the activities we provide.   

The groups of activities covered in this section are: 

 Governance. 

 Planning and Regulatory. 

 Community Services and Facilities. 

 Roads and Footpaths. 

 Stormwater Drainage. 

 Wastewater Treatment and Disposal. 

 Water Treatment and Supply. 

 Support Services. 

 

Performance measures 

The  2012-22 10 year plan included a number of Level of Service measures where the 2010/11 
comparison figure was based on a three year average.  This was denoted by the use of the term 
‘3year average’ in the Performance Measure column of the 10 year plan.  This was included to show 
where the performance targets we set sat in relation to a longer term trend rather than a single 
year.  It was not intended that the three average would be able used beyond the 10 year plan as a 
comparison figure. Accordingly this practice has not been followed in this Annual Report and the 
words ‘three year average’ have been removed from the Performance Measure column. Prior year 
comparison figures in this report represent only data from the 2011/12 year. 

Council uses an independent annual resident survey to determine community satisfaction levels with 
services and facilities.  In reporting these results, we continue to remove ‘don’t know’ responses 
when calculating the overall percentage of residents who were fairly satisfied or very satisfied with 
Council services and facilities.  We have disclosed the percentage of ‘don’t know’ responses under 
each measure. 
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The Year That Was 

Kihikihi Town Centre upgrade 

January 2013 saw the start of the $1 million upgrade of the Kihikihi’s town centre, which reached its 
conclusion in June. 

Civil Construction Services were awarded the contract that saw the revitalisation of the main street 
retail area of Lyon Street. 

The work included 2000 square metres of footpath paving, 650 metres of kerb and channel, 500 
metres of new stormwater lines, catchpits and manholes and new street furniture including seats, 
bins, bollards and a bus shelter. 

New landscape planting and street lighting also featured along with a revamped entranceway and 
new toilets at Kihikihi Domain. 

The design was a result of a partnership between the council and the community and a mutual 
desire to create a memorable and inviting sense of arrival to Kihikihi. 

The upgrade has emphasised the transition to the retail heart of the village and provides greater 
landscaping in the main street so that it becomes an inviting place to stop.  There was also a strong 
focus on retaining and enhancing the existing views and vistas. 

The gateways into Kihikihi now carry themes that reflect the natural heritage of the area, including 
the use of the cicada wing image, reflecting the translation of Kihikihi to cicada. 

A stylised cicada wing has been used on street furniture and signage to reinforce the character of the 
village and natural clay pavers have been used in the main commercial area from the Memorial Hall 
to Whitmore Street. 

 

Alexandra Street upgrade 

Major upgrade work was undertaken on Te Awamutu’s Alexandra Street and efficiencies gained by 
combining water services works with the road reconstruction. 

Downer New Zealand were contracted to undertake the $2 million project that saw water and 
wastewater pipes renewed and the road reconstructed between Tawhiao Street and the railway 
crossing outside Fonterra. 

 

Weathering the storms 

A repair bill of over $1.5 million followed two major storms in July that caused significant damage to 
the roading and stormwater networks. 

Repairs to the roading network as a result of the storms were in the order of $516,000 while 
permanent stormwater repairs cost over $1.2 million. 

As these costs were unforeseen, it was decided the repair works would  be funded from existing 
budgets and for certain planned capital works to be deferred to avoid and mitigate any effect on 
ratepayers. 
The damage was significant and the intensity and duration of the events, particularly in areas where 

the ground was already saturated, caused a number of significant slips and culvert collapses.  Major 

repairs to retaining walls at Lake Karapiro were needed.  
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This provided a clear demonstration of Council’s resilience and ability to respond to unforeseen 
events. 

 

Joint Management Agreements 

A Joint Management Agreement (JMA) Agreement was signed in April 2013 with the Maniapoto 
Maori Trust Board as required under the Nga Wai o Waipa River Act.  

The JMA parties also include Waitomo, Otorohanga and Waikato District councils and the Waikato 
Regional Council.  

Substantial progress was made in developing with both the Waikato-Tainui and Raukawa JMAs.  
Both are expected to be signed in September 2013. 

 

Proposed District Plan progression 

The Proposed District Plan was progressed with approximately 300 submissions and further 
submissions being received. 

The hearings process was substantially completed in 2012/13 with only a few hearings to heard in 
2013/14.  

Hearing decisions will be released in late 2013 or early 2014. Iwi commissioners were appointed to 
the hearing panels. 

 

Economic Development Strategy adopted 

An Economic Development Strategy was adopted by Council at its December meeting. The strategy 
features seven key themes: Information and Computer Technology, Enabling and Attracting 
Business, High Performance Sport, Tourism, Sustainable Agriculture / Agritech, Education and Youth 
Employment and Aviation. 

 

Let’s talk water 

The 2012/13 saw over $6.8 million of capital spent in the three water areas of water treatment and 
supply, wastewater and stormwater. 

This included the land purchase for the site of a new water reservoir which once built will secure 24-
hour water storage for Te Awamutu, the forging ahead with a comprehensive renewals programme 
and the undertaking of condition assessments which will allow us to prioritise future replacement 
programmes. 

During the year, a partnership with the National Institute of Water and Atmospheric Research was 
formed  for the undertaking of a demonstration  of an Enhanced Pond System for the treatment of 
wastewater at the Cambridge Wastewater Treatment Plant site.  If successful the enhanced pond 
system may be incorporated into the future upgrade of the plant with the potential to reduce 
development and operating costs. 

Renewal consents were also lodged with Waikato Regional Council to allow us to continue taking 
water from Te Tahi to supply to the Te Awamutu community for the next 35 years. The outcome is 
expected later in the year. 
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The earlier part of the year was spend bolstering the water services team to deliver our capital 
programme over the coming years. 
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Governance and Strategic Direction 

What we do 

Governance includes the work of the elected Council and its committees, the community boards, 
and the strategic planning and community relationships activities.   

 

Why we do it 

To enable democratic local decision-making and action, including Māori participation. 

To promote the social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of our communities, now 
and into the future.  

 

The level of service we have delivered 

The level of service was maintained within this group of activities. 

 

What we have completed, how have we gone against community outcomes? 

See ‘Measuring Progress’ pages 4 to 8. 

 

What community outcomes does it contribute to?  

Economically progressive 

 We are financially sustainable. 

 Our services are acknowledged as excellent value for money. 

 Waipa’s growth is built on its strengths. 

Environmental & cultural champions 

 We are recognised as environmental and cultural leaders. 

 Waipa’s environmental and cultural heritage is a showcase for excellence. 

Connected with our community 

 Our stakeholders are advocates/ambassadors for Waipa and Council. 

 We engage with all parts of our community. 

 We have collaborative and enduring partnerships. 

Socially responsible 

 Waipa offers an excellent quality of life.  
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Identified effects on community wellbeing 

The Governance Group of Activities is the key area for the democratic processes of Council. Council 
is implementing a community  engagement strategy to ensure that a wide group of the public is able 
to participate in the consultation and decision making processes of Council. An upgraded web site 
has been a first step in implementing this strategy, along with establishing a Facebook page. Both 
have been well received by the public. 

Strategic planning processes are also included in this group of activities. This has entailed a number 
of planning initiatives including the Waipa 2050 Growth strategy and the Future Proof Sub-regional 
strategy. The proposed district plan is a key product of these processes and is currently the final 
stages of hearing submissions, however some sections of the plan have now taken effect. This 
provides Council with a resource management planning framework that is well grounded in National, 
Regional, and Sub-regional policies that will enable appropriate development and help preserve the 
productive base of the District. 
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Statement of Service Performance – Council and Community Boards 

Rationale – Waipa communities and their interests are represented in decision making. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By providing opportunities for the public to be involved in local decision making. 

 

 
Level Of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

e
d

 w
it

h
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u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

Elected 
members 
represent and 
act as 
advocates for 
the 
community. 

% of respondents to 
residents survey who are 
satisfied with the Mayor 
and Councillors. 

80% 85% 83% 

Not achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have been 
calculated with the ‘Don’t 
know’ responses excluded. 
The actual 2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very good/fairly good 
53% 

 Just acceptable 26% 

 Not very good/poor 16% 

 Don’t know 4%
1
 

% of respondents to 
residents survey who are 
satisfied with Community 
Boards. 

87% 90% 91% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have been 
calculated with the ‘Don’t 
know’ responses excluded. 
The actual 2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very good/fairly good 
47% 

 Just acceptable 21% 

 Not very good/poor 7% 

 Don’t know 25% 

Opportunities 
are provided 
for 
involvement in 
decision 
making. 

% of respondents to 
residents survey who are 
satisfied with the way the 
council involves the public 
in decision making. 

63% 65% 70% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have been 
calculated with the ‘Don’t 
know’ responses excluded. 
The actual 2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very good/fairly good 
38% 

 Just acceptable 29% 

 Not very good/poor 29% 

 Don’t know 4% 

 
There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.

                                                           

1
 Does not add to 100% due to rounding. 
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Statement of Service Performance – Communications and Marketing 

Rationale – Council is communicating effectively with its community. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By providing various opportunities for the community to be exposed to Council information. 

 Staff are culturally sensitive in their interaction with Iwi groups. 

 Provision of accurate information to the community. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

e
d

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 

Information 
about our 
activities is 
communicated 
to the 
community  

# of unique hits on our 
website. 

New 
measure 

44,350 63,181 

Achieved.  An upgraded 
website and the inclusion 
of community engagement 
tools are expected to have 
driven part of this increase. 

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l &
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l C

h
am

p
io

n
s 

Our staff are 
culturally 
aware and 
culturally 
sensitive to 
Māori. 

% of staff that have 
undertaken Tikanga Māori 
training. 

New 
measure 

30% 30% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 
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Statement of Cost of Service 

 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

Reduction in expenditure across all activities due to savings in the overhead allocation.  Explanation 
of other variances are: 

1. Additional costs in Strategic Planning for the District Plan project, this is due to the extent of 
the submissions received, and the need to ensure appropriate technical and administrative 
support was available to meet the hearings programme. 

 

Capital Expenditure Table 

 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

REVENUE

Community Grants  30  30  35

TOTAL REVENUE  30  30  35

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Council & Committees  2,957  2,758  2,548

Cambridge Community Board  278  186  162

Te Awamutu Community Board  272  188  177

Elections  1  32  28

Community Grants  355  319  323

Strategic Planning 1  583  1,404  1,646

Community Relationships  -  1,097  1,022

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  4,446  5,984  5,906

OPERATING NET COST OF SERVICE  (4,416)  (5,954)  (5,871)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT

Capital Expenditure (excluding Vested)  -  20  20

Debt Repayment (Internal)  196  336  336

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT  196  356  356

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Marketing and Promotion Equipment  -  20  20

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  -  20  20
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Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement for Year Ended 30 June 
2013 for Governance and Strategic Direction  

 

  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  2,120  2,783  2,949

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  2,281  3,176  3,018

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  30  30  34

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  -  -  1

Internal charges and overheads recovered  -  -  -

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  -  -  -

Total sources of operating funding (A)  4,431  5,989  6,002

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  1,216  2,687  2,754

Finance costs  73  121  127

Internal charges and overheads applied  2,837  2,595  2,436

Other operating funding applications  310  579  587

Total applications of operating funding (B)  4,436  5,982  5,904

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  (5)  7  98

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  -  -  -

Development and financial contributions  -  -  -

Increase (decrease) in debt  -  -  -

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  -  -  -

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  -  -  -

- to improve the level of service  -  20  20

- to replace existing assets  -  -  -

Increase (decrease) in reserves  (5)  (13)  78

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  (5)  7  98

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  5  (7)  (98)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -
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Internal Borrowing Statement 

 

  

Opening 

Balance 1 

July 2012

Loan 

Repayments Loans Raised

Closing 

Balance 30 

June 2013 Interest

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Activity Loans 2,703             (336)               561                 2,928             127                 

Development Contribution Loans -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total 2,703             (336)               561                 2,928             127                 



83 

Planning and Regulatory 

What we do 

The Planning and Regulatory group of activities covers Resource Management, Building Control, 
Environmental Health, Animal Control and Development Engineering.  We provide these services to 
manage the natural and physical resources of the district, and promote and protect the health and 
safety of our communities and the general public.   

 

Why we do it 

 To guide, enhance and maintain the quality of our natural and physical environment and to 
ensure that our district is developed in a sustainable way.  

 To ensure buildings are safe and the necessary regulations and standards are met.    

 To ensure animals are kept in a way that minimises danger, distress and nuisance to the 
public and animal owners are educated about their responsibilities. 

 To promote and improve human health, safety, comfort and wellbeing and protect the 
environment. 

 To ensure development meets required standards, and connection to and use of our 
infrastructure is well managed.   

 

The level of service we have delivered 

The level of service was maintained within this group of activities. 

 

What we have completed, how have we gone against community outcomes? 

See ‘Measuring Progress’ pages 4 to 8. 

 

What community outcomes does it contribute to?  

Economically progressive 

 We are financially sustainable. 

 Our services are acknowledged as excellent value for money. 

 Waipa’s growth is built on its strengths. 

 

Environmental & cultural champions 

 We are recognised as environmental and cultural leaders. 

 Waipa’s environmental and cultural heritage is a showcase for excellence. 

 

Connected with our community 

 Our stakeholders are advocates/ambassadors for Waipa and Council. 
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 We engage with all parts of our community. 

 We have collaborative and enduring partnerships. 

 

Socially responsible 

 Waipa offers an excellent quality of life.  

 

Identified effects on community wellbeing 

Maintaining Public Health and Safety are important components of this group of activities. 
Complaints about aggressive dogs are investigated and actioned. Dog owner education is untaken 
too where appropriate. 

All buildings constructed will have met the NZ building code at the time of construction. The 
enforcement of plans and bylaws reduces nuisance to the public in areas like noise. The risk to the 
public is reduced in issues of public health through activities  such as regular inspections of licensed 
food retailers. 
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Statement of Service Performance – Animal Control 
Rationale – To manage animal control in the district in a way that promotes animal welfare and 
community safety. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 Animal care and control are promoted to enhance community safety. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measures 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

Effective 
animal control 
services and 
facilities are 
available to 
promote 
community 
safety. 

# of hours per month that 
dog micro chipping services 
are available in Te Awamutu. 

New 
measure 

4 4 Achieved. 

# of hours per month that 
dog micro chipping services 
are available in Cambridge. 

New 
measure 

4 4 Achieved. 

A 24 hour 
service is 
available to 
respond to 
animal control 
complaints in a 
timely manner. 

% of complaints involving 
allegation of bite or attack 
responded to within 1 hour. 

New 
measure 

95% 93.5% 

Not achieved. 

Six calls were not responded 
to within one hour.  Five of 
these calls were in relation to 
historic events so an urgent 
response was not required.   

% of complaints not involving 
allegation of bite or attack 
responded to within 7 
working days. 

New 
measure 

95% 95% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.  
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Statement of Service Performance – Environmental Health  
Rationale – To protect and promote the health of communities within the Waipa District. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By reducing risks to public health and managing nuisance in the community. 

 Protecting people and property from the risk of fire and smoke nuisance 
 

 
Level of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

Food premises 
maintain a 
high level of 
food safety. 

% of premises that hold 
registration or certificates of 
inspection as required

2
. 

New 
measure 

100% 100% Achieved. 

% of required monthly 
inspections or audits 
completed. 

94% 95% 96% Achieved. 

% of eligible food premises 
who have moved to food 
control plans

3
. 

New 
measure 

10% 15% Achieved. 

A 24 hour 
service is 
available to 
respond to 
noise 
complaints in a 
timely manner. 

% of excessive noise 
complaints investigated 
within 1 hour. 

New 
measure 

95% 95% Achieved. 

Liquor 
licensing is 
managed to 
minimise 
alcohol abuse 
in the 
community. 

# of monitoring operations 
carried out with other 
agencies (including the police) 
per annum. 

New 
measure 

2 3 Achieved. 

Urban and 
rural fires are 
managed to 
reduce risk to 
people and 
property 

% of smoke complaints 
investigated within one hour. 

New 
measure 

95% 97% Achieved. 

 
There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 
   

                                                           
2
 Certification includes registration of certificate of compliance 

3
 Food control plans and audits will replace the current registration and inspection regime. At present the food service 

premises (such as takeaways, restaurants and cafes) can voluntarily move to the new system, and the New Zealand Food 
Safety Authority is encouraging all local authorities to facilitate this as much as possible 
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Statement of Service Performance – Resource Consents and Monitoring  
Rationale – Achievement of community aspirations through the development and implementation of 
the District Plan. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By providing an efficient and quality service to applicants. 
 

 
Level of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 

We are 
responsive to 
the needs of 
the 
community. 

Public issues are responded 
to within 4 working days 

New 
measure 

100% 100% Achieved. 

We process 
applications in 
a timely 
manner. 

% of compliance with 
statutory timeframes 
(Ministry for the Environment 
survey). 

New 
measure 

100% 99.74% 

Not achieved. 

One non-notified resource 
consent was over as there 
was a miscommunication 
between administration staff 
and the decision was not 
issued on time. 

% of Land Information 
Memorandums processed 
within statutory timeframes. 

99.8% 100% 100% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.  
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Statement of Service Performance – Development Engineering 
Rationale – Ensuring developers build services/infrastructure which meet current and future 
community needs. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By providing an efficient and quality service to applicants. 
 

 
Level of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 

P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e We are 
responsive to 
enquiries and 
requests for 
information. 

Enquiries are responded to 
within 4 working days. 

New 
measure 

100% 74.17% 

Not achieved. 

Further training has been 
undertaken and system errors 
corrected.  A revised solution 
has been put in place to 
ensure future compliance 
with this measure. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.   
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Statement of Service Performance – Building Control 

Rationale – Ensuring that buildings are safe and fit for purpose. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By providing an efficient and quality service to applicants. 

 By ensuring that buildings meet health and safety standards/requirements. 
 

 
Level of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 

All 
applications 
are processed 
within agreed 
timeframes. 

% of buildings consents 
processed within 20 working 
days. 

99.7% 100% 99.21% 

Not achieved. 

Application timeframes not 
met were due to a 
combination of a short term 
peak in application numbers 
and inspection demands. 

% of Project Information 
Memorandums processed 
within 20 working days. 

N/A 100% 100% Achieved. 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

  

Complaints are 
investigated 
and responded 
to within 
agreed 
timeframes. 

% of complaints about 
potentially unsafe buildings 
and structures investigated 
and responded to within 5 
working days. 

New 
measure 

100% 100% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.  
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Statement of Cost of Service 

 

 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

Reduction in expenditure across all activities due to savings in the overhead allocation.  Explanation 
of other variances are: 

1. Resource Management revenue was below budget due to a decrease in the number of 
consents being received.  Savings were made to offset the revenue shortfall, mainly in 
salaries and consultant fees. 

2. Building Control revenue was higher than budget, the number of consents received was 
higher than the previous year.  There were also savings made in expenditure, partially the 
salary area where vacant positions were not refilled. 
 

Capital Expenditure Table 

 

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

REVENUE

Fees and Charges:

Resource Management 1  1,206  1,074  711

Building Control 2  1,573  1,163  1,314

Environmental Health  294  272  253

Animal Control  345  406  428

Development Engineering  -  271  211

TOTAL REVENUE  3,418  3,186  2,917

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Resource Management 1  2,242  1,552  1,332

Building Control 2  1,637  1,322  1,127

Environmental Health  610  697  632

Animal Control  558  559  533

Development Engineering  -  783  817

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  5,047  4,913  4,441

OPERATING NET COST OF SERVICE  (1,629)  (1,727)  (1,524)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital Expenditure (excluding Vested)  -  5  4

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  -  5  4

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Level of Service

Clegg Hammer Purchase  -  5  4

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  -  5  4
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Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement for Year Ended 30 June 
2013 for Planning and Regulatory 
 

There is no internal borrowing in the Planning and Regulatory activity. 

 

  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  889  929  932

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  739  798  797

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  -  -  1

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  3,418  3,186  2,907

Internal charges and overheads recovered  -  -  -

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  -  -  9

Total sources of operating funding (A)  5,046  4,913  4,646

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  3,747  3,692  3,410

Finance costs  -  -  -

Internal charges and overheads applied  1,215  1,221  1,027

Other operating funding applications  -  -  -

Total applications of operating funding (B)  4,962  4,913  4,437

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  84  -  209

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  -  -  -

Development and financial contributions  -  -  -

Increase (decrease) in debt  -  -  -

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  -  -  -

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  -  -  -

- to improve the level of service  -  5  4

- to replace existing assets  -  -  -

Increase (decrease) in reserves  84  (5)  205

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  84  -  209

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  (84)  -  (209)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -
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Community Services and Facilities 

What we do 

The Community Services and Facilities group of activities provide recreational benefit, and promote 
the health, safety and social and environmental wellbeing of our communities.  The activities are: 

 Parks & Reserves  

 Lake Karapiro/Mighty River Domain  

 Libraries 

 Museums and Heritage 

 Swimming Pools 

 Public Toilets 

 Community Halls 

 Pensioner Housing 

 Cemeteries 

 Civil Defence Emergency Management and Rural Fire 

 Waste Management and Minimisation 

 

Why we do it 

The availability and accessibility of good quality recreational facilities and community services is 
important to the district’s economic, social, cultural and environmental wellbeing.  

 

The level of service we have delivered 

The level of service was maintained within this group of activities. 

 

What we have completed, how have we gone against community outcomes? 

See ‘Measuring Progress’ pages 4 to 8. 

 

What community outcomes does it contribute to?  

Economically progressive 

 We are financially sustainable. 

 Our services are acknowledged as excellent value for money. 

 Waipa’s growth is built on its strengths. 

 

Environmental & cultural champions 

 We are recognised as environmental and cultural leaders. 

 Waipa’s environmental and cultural heritage is a showcase for excellence. 
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Connected with our community 

 Our stakeholders are advocates/ambassadors for Waipa and Council. 

 We engage with all parts of our community. 

 We have collaborative and enduring partnerships. 

 

Socially responsible 

 Waipa offers an excellent quality of life.  

 

Identified effects on community wellbeing 

The community services and facilities group of activities provide recreational benefit, and promote 
the social and physical wellbeing and engagement of our communities. Parks, Sports reserves and 
swimming pools provide for physical and environmental wellbeing, while libraries, museums and 
pensioner housing cater for social and cultural wellbeing. A community facilities trust has been 
established to ensure that levels of service for community facilities are maintained and enhanced.  
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Statement of Service Performance: Public Library  

Rationale – To provide opportunities and places for affordable learning and leisure which the 
community sees as a valuable public service. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By efficiently using resources to deliver services without unreasonably burdening future 
ratepayers. 

 By providing a service which is used by the community and with which they are satisfied. 

 Through the provision of an appropriate recreational and learning facility and providing 
services and materials that meet the needs of residents. 

 

 
Level Of 
Service 

Performance Measure Actual 2011/12 
Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 
Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 

The 
community is 
satisfied with 
the service 
provided. 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with the library 
service (Community 
Survey). 

Cambridge 

95%
4
 

95% 98% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and 
reported performance 
levels have been 
calculated with the ‘Don’t 
know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 97% 

 Not very satisfied 2% 
 Don’t know 1% 

Te Awamutu 90% 96% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and 
reported performance 
levels have been 
calculated with the ‘Don’t 
know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 95% 

 Not very satisfied 4% 

 Don’t know 1% 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

e
d

 w
it

h
 

o
u

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

Our library 
services and 
facilities meet 
the needs of 
the 
community. 

% of users surveyed who 
agreed the library offered 
the resource they were 
looking for. 

New measure 70% 90.6% Achieved. 

So
ci

al
ly

 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b

le
 

% of population who are 
active library members 
(library card used in past 
2 years). 

New measure 54% 61.6% Achieved. 

                                                           
4
 Combined results for both libraries as not previously split out in survey 
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Level Of 
Service 

Performance Measure Actual 2011/12 
Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 
Actual 

Library 
opening hours 
support 
learning and 
recreation 

Library opening hours 
meet the national 
standards of being open 
every weekday, 
Saturdays and 1 or more 
evenings per week. 

New measure Yes Yes Achieved. 

The library 
service 
provides an 
adequate 
quantity of 
recreational 
and 
educational 
material. 

Library collection meets 
the LIANZA

5
 standard of 

3 items per resident. 
Standard Met 

Standard 
Met 

Standard 
Met 

Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.

                                                           
5
 Library and Information Association of New Zealand Aotearoa. 
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Statement of Service Performance: Parks and Reserves 

Rationale – To enhance the Waipa environment by providing multi-purpose open spaces for 
opportunities for health and recreation. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By efficiently using resources to deliver services without unreasonably burdening future 
ratepayers. 

 By preventing the degradation of our towns environmental and cultural character through 
tree loss. 

 Through the provision of appropriate recreational facilities for the community. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 

The community 
is satisfied with 
the service 
provided. 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with parks and 
reserves (Community 
Survey). 

96% 95% 97% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have 
been calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result before 
recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 94% 

 Not very satisfied 3% 
 Don’t know 3% 

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l &
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l C
h

am
p

io
n

s 

The unique 
tree heritage of 
the district is 
preserved and 
enhanced. 

% of pro-active annual 
preventative tree 
maintenance programme

6
 

completed. 

New 
measure 

>90% 100% Achieved. 

Number of street trees 
planted per annum. 

New 
measure 

30 150 

Achieved. 

Target levels were 
exceeded due to requests 
from the public and a 
higher level of loss due to 
the drought. Also the  
availability of trees, some 
trees were donated by local 
Tree Trusts. 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

e
d

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 

A range of 
parks and 
reserves are 
available for 
use and 
conveniently 
located 

% of urban residents 
located within 650m of 
publically available open 
space reserves. 

New 
measure 

100% 100% Achieved. 

                                                           
6
 Maintenance Programme defined as: Pruning, thinning, removal of damaged limbs, planting 
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 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 
So

ci
al

ly
 R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 

Number of hectares of 
actively maintained

7
 

recreation land available 
for public use 

7.36ha 
per 
1,000 
residents 

304ha 312.7ha Achieved. 

Parks and 
reserves offer a 
pleasant 
environment. 

Number of complaints 
received regarding the 
cleanliness of parks and 
reserves. 

New 
measure 

<5 67 

Not achieved. 

This result includes reports 
of damage rather than 
purely complaints.  The 
level of service relating to 
parks has not changed. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 

                                                           
7
 Actively maintained recreation land includes: Amenity, Neighbourhood, Premier and Sport category land 
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Statement of Service Performance: Cemeteries 

Rationale – To ensure the availability of affordable and appropriately located places for burials and 
remembrance. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 Through the provision of appropriate land and services that enable the community to meet 
its cultural need for burials. 

 

 Level Of Service 
Performance Measure 

(PM) 

Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l 

C
h

am
p

io
n

s 

We provide 
tranquil and 
aesthetically 
pleasing 
environments 
for 
remembrance. 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with the cemeteries 
(Community Survey) 

New 
measure 

85% 99% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have 
been calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result before 
recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 77% 

 Not very satisfied 1% 

 Don’t know 21%
8
 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 

                                                           

8
 Does not add to 100% due to rounding. 
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Statement of Service Performance: Public Toilets 

Rationale – To ensure an affordable network of public toilets is accessible to both the community 
and visitors to the district. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By efficiently using resources to deliver services without unreasonably burdening future 
ratepayers. 

 By ensuring public toilets are accessible and fit for purpose. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 
Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 

The community 
is satisfied with 
the service 
provided. 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with public toilets 
(Community Survey). 

88% 90% 92% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and 
reported performance 
levels have been 
calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 84% 

 Not very satisfied 
7% 

 Don’t know 9% 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

Public toilets 
are well 
maintained. 

Number of service request calls 
regarding toilet maintenance. 

New 
measure 

<60 61 

Not achieved. 

Calls received regarding 
toilet maintenance were 
of a minor nature and did 
not affect the level of 
service. 

Public toilets 
are accessible 
and 
conveniently 
located. 

% of toilets that have disabled 
access. 

New 
measure 

65% 70% Achieved. 

% of places of high public use 
where public toilets are 
provided

9
. 

New 
measure 

96% 96% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.

                                                           

9
 High Public Use defined as: Locations used by significant numbers of the public for congregation for long periods of time 
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Statement of Service Performance: Swimming Pools 

Rationale – To provide affordable public swimming pools that provide opportunities for the 
community to increase its water safety skills, health and recreational wellbeing. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By efficiently using resources to deliver services without unreasonably burdening future 
ratepayers. 

 Through the provision of appropriate recreational facilities for the community. 

 

 
Level of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 

The 
community is 
satisfied with 
the service 
provided. 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with the swimming 
pools (Community Survey). 

75% 85% 79% 

Not achieved. 

Council has established a 
Trust to manage it’s pool 
facilities from September 
2013.  The Trust will have a 
focus on significantly 
improving the level of 
service. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have 
been calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result before 
recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 70% 

 Not very satisfied 19% 

 Don’t know 12%
10

 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

Public 
swimming 
pools are 
accessible. 

Number of weeks per year 
that council pools are open 

100% 

Te 
Awamutu 

50 
50 Achieved. 

100% 
Cambridge 
20 20 Achieved. 

Number of occurrences 
pools are closed for more 
than 3 hours following an 
unscheduled closure 

New 
measure 

4 1 Achieved. 

Pools are safe 
and clean. 

% of council pools with 
Poolsafe accreditation

11
. 

New 
measure 

50% 50% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 

                                                           

10
 Does not add to 100% due to rounding. 

11
 Poolsafe Accreditation is a measure of minimum standards for: swimming pool supervision, water quality, lifeguard 

qualifications & training, and Health & Safety. 
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Statement of Service Performance: Community Land and Buildings 

Rationale – Provision of venues within communities to support social and recreational interaction. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By ensuring land and buildings are available and suitable for as many parts of the community 
as practicable. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

e
d

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 

Land and 
buildings are fit 
for use. 

Number of complaints 
received regarding 
cleanliness of halls. 

New 
measure 

<5 0 Achieved. 

Land and 
building 
maintenance 
issues are 
resolved in a 
timely manner. 

% of responses to 
emergency

12
 issues 

regarding land and buildings 
within 2 hours. 

New 
measure 

100% 100% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.

                                                           

12
 Emergency issues defined as Health & Safety/Public Safety issue. 
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Statement of Service Performance: Pensioner Housing 

Rationale – To provide secure and safe affordable housing in a communal environment for aged 
persons with limited means. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By balancing their financial return against availability.  Pensioner housing is operated to 
optimise value to the community. 

 By providing the pensioner housing required by the community and by ensuring that housing 
provides the required facilities. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 Pensioner 

housing is 
provided at a 
reduced rate 
while ensuring 
no rate payer 
subsidy. 

% of pensioner housing units 
whose rental fees are at 75% 
of market rates as per the 
Pensioner Housing Policy. 

New 
measure 

30% 81.8% 

Achieved. 

The annual rent reviews 
since the measure was 
introduced has increased the 
rental fees to align with the 
Pensioner Housing Policy.   
The last review was done in 
May 2013 with rent 
increases effective from July 
2013.  After this review the 
majority of tenants will 
paying 75% of market rent. 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 Pensioner 
housing is fit 
for purpose. 

% of tenants who are 
satisfied with the standard of 
pensioner housing. 

New 
measure 

90% 
Not 
measured 

Due to staff shortages the 
survey will be undertaken in 
August 2013. 

Housing is 
provided to an 
appropriate 
standard. 

Response to emergency
13

 
issues regarding pensioner 
housing within 2 hours. 

New 
measure 

100% 100% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 

 

                                                           

13
 Emergency Issues defined as Health & Safety/Pensioner Safety issue. 
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Statement of Service Performance: Waste Management and Minimisation 

Rationale: Provision of a convenient collection service that diverts recyclable waste from landfill. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By providing residents with opportunities to recycle waste and reduce the volume of waste 
going to landfill. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l &
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l 
C

h
am

p
io

n
s 

Recycling 
services are 
convenient and 
appropriate. 

% of residents who are satisfied 
with the kerbside/roadside 
recycling services (Community 
Survey). 

85% 85% 85% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have been 
calculated with the ‘Don’t 
know’ responses excluded. The 
actual 2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 84% 

 Not very satisfied 15% 
 Don’t know 1% 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22.  
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Statement of Service Performance: Museums 

Rationale – To provide opportunities and places for affordable cultural learning and leisure which 
the community sees as a valuable public service.  

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By providing a service which is used by the community and with which they are satisfied.  

 Through the provision of appropriate cultural learning opportunities that meet the needs of 
the community. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Actual Performance for  
2011/12 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

e
d

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 

The community 
is satisfied with 
the research 
services 
provided by the 
museums. 

% of research applicants who 
were satisfied with service 
provided. 

New 
measure 

90% 91.7% Achieved. 

Museums 
exhibitions and 
events meet 
visitor 
expectations. 

% visitors surveyed found 
exhibitions interesting and 
informative. 

New 
measure 

70% 97.3% Achieved. 

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l &
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l 

C
h

am
p

io
n

s 

Museum (TA) 
delivers quality 
“Learning 
Experiences 
Outside The 
Classroom” 
education 
programmes to 
schools. 

% of “Learning Experiences 
Outside The Classroom” 
schools/participants satisfied 
with delivered programmes. 

New 
measure 

70% 97.5% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 
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Statement of Cost of Services 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

Reduction in expenditure across all activities due to savings in the overhead allocation.  Explanation 
of other variances are: 

1. Reduction in revenue for both commercial and community properties due to the rent 
increases being lower than budgeted. 

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

REVENUE

Fees and Charges:

Mighty River Domain  375  522  564

District Museums  114  107  108

District Libraries  200  218  212

District Pool Te Awamutu  550  298  315

Cemeteries  203  153  203

Public Toilets  32  31  29

Properties 1  624  814  713

Pensioner Housing & Own your Own Housing  641  740  796

Rural Fire/Civil  Defence  7  -  7

Waste Management  -  144  141

TOTAL REVENUE  2,746  3,027  3,088

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Parks and Reserves  3,959  3,986  3,932

Mighty River Domain  1,398  1,197  1,180

District Museums  801  830  750

District Libraries  1,498  1,505  1,391

District Pool Te Awamutu 2  2,029  1,814  1,598

District Pool Cambridge 3  303  418  296

Heritage  1,182  251  182

Cemeteries  295  264  310

Public Toilets  520  552  497

Properties  2,315  2,163  2,260

Pensioner Housing & Own your Own Housing  603  785  765

Forestry 4  104  294  60

Rural Fire/Civil  Defence  345  342  265

Waste Management 5  1,530  1,711  1,518

National Cycle Centre of Excellence  -  1,035  1,033

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  16,882  17,147  16,037

OPERATING NET COST OF SERVICE  (14,136)  (14,120)  (12,949)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT

Capital Expenditure (excluding Vested)  3,501  3,676  1,837

Vested Assets  -  -  259

Debt Repayment (Internal)  680  908  1,200

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT  4,181  4,584  3,296
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2. Operating costs lower than budget for electricity, advertising and general maintenance.  The 
general maintenance savings were offset by capital purchases of $53k. 

3. The consultation costs for the new Cambridge Pool construction have been put on hold until 
the next LTP, as such the budget for this has been moved to a reserve for consultation costs 
in future years. 

4. Forestry maintenance costs lower than budget due to timing of pruning and thinning of the 
trees. 

5. Efficiencies have been gained through the new litter bin contract.  
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Capital Expenditure Table 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

To Meet Additional Demand

Buffer Reserve Land Purchase  824  -  51

Reserve Contribution Projects  239  -  103

Peat Lake Accord  -  -  25

Total Capital Expenditure to Meet Additional Demand  1,063  -  179

To Improve Level of Service

Te Awamutu Walk of Fame Extension  -  130  88

Peat Lake Programme  -  33  6

Storage Facil ities for Climax Engine  -  90  -

Pa Sites 1  -  188  42

Lake Serpentine - Land Purchase and Development  -  -  21

Cambridge Town Belt  -  20  20

Kihikihi Domain Development  -  80  100

Cambridge Motor Park - Upgrade Work  -  60  69

Taylor/Vogel Street Development - Property 2  -  1,065  -

Grace Avenue Development - Property 2  -  -  20

Addison Street Development - Property 2  -  -  20

Karapiro Minor Assets (Don Rowlands Centre)  -  20  46

Maintain Retaining Walls - Mighty River Domain  -  30  38

Replacement of Existing Power Boxes - Mighty River Domain  -  6  11

Renew Pensioner Housing - Palmer Street  -  100  23

Purchase of land for Te Awamutu Western Arterial  -  400  478

Cambridge Water Tower - Upgrade 3  -  100  -

Albert Park Grandstand 4  -  700  -

Children's Playground - Mighty River Domain 5  -  100  -

Waipuke Reserve Development  -  90  83

Mighty River Domain Development  2,023  -

Te Awamutu Playground - Selwyn Park  -  -  17

Total Capital Expenditure to Improve Level of Service  2,023  3,212  1,082

To Replace Existing Assets

Parks Renewals  148  44  59

Public Coneniences - as per AMP  53  -  33

Karapiro / Arapuni Lakes Programme  -  60  47

Playground Equipment & Safety Surfaces Renewal  -  71  72

Parks Structure Renewals  -  8  7

Plant Replacement - Mighty River Domain  -  38  46

Library Books Te Awamutu  97  115  124

Library Books Cambridge  117  128  127

Other Minor Asset Renewals  -  -  61

Total Capital Expenditure to Replace Existing Assets  415  464  576

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  3,501  3,676  1,837
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Explanation capital expenditure variances between LTP and Actual 

1. The external funding component of this project was unable to be sourced.  Council has 
agreement with the landowners to secure 1.0ha of land at the Orakau battle site for 
commemorative purposes.  Council is also continuing to work with the Orakau 150th 
Commemoration Society and the Historic Places Trust to resolve what development on the 
site is both appropriate and affordable.  Work has started on the pathway at the Matakitaki 
Pa site. 

2. Timing change of development of properties in Cambridge due to the timing of the contract 
negotiations as well as the requirement for Iwi consultation.  Work was started in June 2013. 

3. A seismic assessment was completed, the outcomes from this will be addressed next 
financial year, as such no capital work was undertaken in the 2012/13 year. 

4. This project has been deferred to the 2013/14 year and has been included in the 2013/14 
Annual Plan, the deferral is due to the timing of receiving the external funding required to 
complete this project. 

5. The project for the Children’s Playground at Mighty River Domain has been deferred until 
2013/14 as this project is waiting external funding from the community via Waikato 
Recreation Charitable Trust. 
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Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement for Year Ended 30 June 
2013 for Community Services and Facilities  

 

  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  6,038  5,304  5,320

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  7,055  7,377  7,372

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  403  11  22

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  2,728  3,015  3,066

Internal charges and overheads recovered  -  -  -

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  -  -  -

Total sources of operating funding (A)  16,224  15,707  15,780

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  11,766  11,822  10,519

Finance costs  512  713  730

Internal charges and overheads applied  3,064  2,065  1,829

Other operating funding applications  295  1,302  1,302

Total applications of operating funding (B)  15,637  15,902  14,380

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  587  (195)  1,400

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  1,865  395  95

Development and financial contributions  1,450  378  446

Increase (decrease) in debt  -  -  -

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  -  -

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  3,315  773  541

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  1,063  -  179

- to improve the level of service  2,023  3,212  1,082

- to replace existing assets  415  464  576

Increase (decrease) in reserves  401  (3,098)  104

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  3,902  578  1,941

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  (587)  195  (1,400)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -
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Internal Borrowing Statement 

 

  

Opening 

Balance 1 

July 2012

Loan 

Repayments Loans Raised

Closing 

Balance 30 

June 2013 Interest

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Activity Loans 13,635           (1,181)            1,481             13,935           699                 

Development Contribution Loans 669                 (19)                  45                   695                 31                   

Total 14,304           (1,200)            1,526             14,630           730                 
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Roads and Footpaths 

What we do 

The Roads and Footpaths group of activities covers most of our work in the road corridor, including 
road and footpath construction and maintenance, road safety, cycling and walking, car parks, street 
lights and passenger transport. 

 

Why we do it 

To provide a safe and convenient transport network that connects communities and supports district 
development. 

 

The level of service we have delivered 

The level of service was maintained within this group of activities. 

 

What we have completed, how have we gone against community outcomes? 

See ‘Measuring Progress’ pages 4 to 8. 

 

What community outcomes does it contribute to? 

Economically progressive 

 We are financially sustainable. 

 Our services are acknowledged as excellent value for money. 

 Waipa’s growth is built on its strengths. 

 

Environmental and cultural champions 

 We are recognised as environmental and cultural leaders. 

 Waipa’s environmental and cultural heritage is a showcase for excellence. 

 

Connected with our community 

 Our stakeholders are advocates/ambassadors for Waipa and Council. 

 We have collaborative and enduring partnerships. 

 

Socially responsible 

 Waipa offers an excellent quality of life. 
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Identified effects on community wellbeing 

The Roading and Footpaths Group of activities provides the means for the transport of goods and 
people throughout the district and provides major social and economic benefits. It connects 
communities with many destinations such as work, shopping, leisure and entertainment. Road and 
footpath rehabilitation activities are an essential part of the on-going maintenance programme. 
However in delivering these services there may be disruption and nuisance caused to the public 
through road closures and dust generation for example.  We also continue to promote road safety 
initiatives and more sustainable forms of transport such as cycling. 
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Statement of Service Performance: Roads and Footpaths  

Rationale – Provision of a safe and convenient transport network that connects communities and 
supports district development. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By maintaining the network to an appropriate level in an efficient and cost effective manner. 

 By providing people with opportunities to move away from the use of private vehicles. 

 By providing roads that are “fit for purpose” and which our community feel safe driving on. 

 

 
Level of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 The existing 

network is 
well 
maintained. 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with the levels of 
road maintenance 
(Community Survey). 

78% 80% 84% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have 
been calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result before 
recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 84% 

 Not very satisfied 16% 
 Don’t know 0% 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with the 
maintenance of footpaths 
(Community Survey). 

78% 80% 78% 

Not achieved. 

Renewals work on footpaths 
is continuing. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have 
been calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result before 
recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 75% 

 Not very satisfied 21% 

 Don’t know 3%
14

 

We are 
responsive to 
roading 
issues raised 
by the 
community. 

% of road & footpath issues 
responded to within 10 
working days. 

New 
measure 

75% 96.47% Achieved. 

                                                           

14
 Does not add to 100% due to rounding. 
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Level of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 
En

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l &

 C
u
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u

ra
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h
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p
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n
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A range of 
alternative 
transport 
options are 
available and 
promoted. 

Public transport passenger 
numbers are increasing each 
year.  

New 
measure 

2%
15

  6.2% Achieved. 

% (by length) of urban roads 
16

 which have a footpath on 
at least one side. 

New 
measure 

78.3% 78.0% 

Not achieved. 

New footpath construction 
was planned in Kihikihi 
during 2012/13, but these 
funds were used for the 
Town Centre Upgrade works 
instead so there was a lesser 
length of new footpath 
constructed from that 
anticipated. 

So
ci

al
ly

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

Rural roads 
are suitable 
for volume 
and type of 
traffic 

% of rural roads
17

 (by length) 
that meet road width 
standards 

New 
measure 

48.9% 58.0% Achieved. 

Parking is 
provided in 
appropriate 
locations 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with the provision 
of parking in the CBD areas 
(Community Survey). 

New 
measure 

75% 80% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have 
been calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result before 
recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 78% 

 Not very satisfied 20% 

 Don’t know 3%
18

 

Roads are 
designed and 
managed to 
reduce the 
risk of harm 
to users 

% of residents who are 
satisfied with the safety of 
the roads (Community 
Survey). 

85% 80% 85% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have 
been calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 
2012/13 NRB result before 
recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 85% 

 Not very satisfied 15% 
 Don’t know 0% 

                                                           

15
 Growth in patronage per year. 

16
 Urban roads defined as those with a speed limit of 70 kilometres or less. 

17
 Rural roads defined as those with a speed limit of 80 kilometres or more 

18
 Does not add to 100% due to rounding. 
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Level of 
Service 

Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Number of fatal and serious 
crash numbers on Waipa 
Local roads

19
 per annum 

(five year average) 

New 
measure 

16
20

 17.8 

Not achieved. 

As fatal and serious crash 
data is not available to June 
2013 (due to the Police 
processing of Traffic Crash 
Reports), the figure 
provided is for the 2008 to 
2012 calendar years. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 

                                                           
19

 Includes all urban and rural roads and excludes State Highways 
20

 This target should read ‘less than 16’, however, it was incorrectly included in the 10-Year Plan. An amendment to the 10-
Year Plan would be required to correct it. 
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Statement of Cost of Service 

 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Additional funding received from NZTA for the work required re the storm damage in July 
2012. 

2. Depreciation over budget mainly due to the impact of the revaluation that was effective 
from 1 July 2012. 

3. Mainly additional operating costs from the storm damage in July 2012, as well as higher than 
expected costs associated with vegetation control. 

4. Total overhead allocation greater than budget, this is made up of a reduction in the 
organisational overhead allocation, but recovery of admin on costs to capital projects were 
less than budget.  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

REVENUE

Fees, charges and NZTA subsidy 1  7,440  6,264  6,732

TOTAL REVENUE  7,440  6,264  6,732

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Depreciation and Amortisation 2  6,512  7,806  8,476

Activity Expenses 3  8,746  7,352  7,533

Internal charges and Overheads 4  1,978  1,093  1,266

Finance Costs  948  965  938

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  18,184  17,216  18,213

OPERATING NET COST OF SERVICE  (10,744)  (10,952)  (11,481)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT

Capital Expenditure (excluding Vested)  9,978  9,989  10,016

Vested Assets  1,148  1,570  4,064

Debt Repayment (Internal)  -  1,284  2,206

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT  11,126  12,843  16,286
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Capital Expenditure Table 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Re-allocation of budgets to fund additional capital costs that related to the storm damage in 
July 2012. 

2. Re-allocation of budgets to support the Kihikihi Town Upgrade approved by Council in 
October 2012. 

3. The contribution for the interchange was deferred to the 2013/14 year. 
4. Allowance made for inflation in the contracts was higher than required. 
5. Funds were carried forward from the 2011/12 financial year to complete required renewals 

programme. 
  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

To Meet Additional Demand

Cambridge North Capital Projects  1,058  65  26

Picquet Hill  Plan Change Roading  32  -  -

St Leger Road  -  100  96

Urban Upgrades - Development Related  -  50  44

Total Capital Expenditure to Meet Additional Demand  1,090  215  166

To Improve Level of Service

Seal Extensions 1  500  500  360

New Footpaths 2  -  135  28

Car Park Improvements  -  75  73

Town Concept Plans Implementation 2  -  735  1,066

Victoria Road, Cambridge - Interchange Contribution 3  -  300  -

Passenger Transport Infrastructure  -  15  13

Street Light Improvements 2  -  100  80

Cycling Projects District Wide  -  50  -

Associated Improvements  265  275  200

Minor Improvements  846  544  600

Te Awamutu Traffic Review Implementation  -  50  -

Bridge Footpath Widening  -  -  23

Total Capital Expenditure to Improve Level of Service  1,611  2,779  2,443

To Replace Existing Assets

Footpath Renewals  81  300  224

Amenity Lighting Renewals  7  2  -

Car Park Renewals  50  70  83

Drainage Renewals 1  218  219  555

Sealed Road Resurfacing 4  2,939  3,000  2,809

Unsealed Road Metalling  119  108  125

Pavement Rehabilitation 5  3,704  3,120  3,428

Structures Component Renewal  106  102  169

Traffic Services Renewals  53  23  14

Guardrail Renewals  -  51  -

Total Capital Expenditure to Replace Existing Assets  7,277  6,995  7,407

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  9,978  9,989  10,016
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Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement for Year Ended 30 June 
2013 for Roads and Footpaths  

 

 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  4,943  5,422  5,437

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  4,431  4,805  4,802

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  7,239  2,365  2,692

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  201  169  220

Internal charges and overheads recovered  -  -  -

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  -  -  -

Total sources of operating funding (A)  16,814  12,761  13,151

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  7,074  6,504  6,193

Finance costs  948  965  938

Internal charges and overheads applied  2,846  1,093  1,266

Other operating funding applications  -  -  -

Total applications of operating funding (B)  10,868  8,562  8,397

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  5,946  4,199  4,754

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  -  3,731  3,820

Development and financial contributions  3,068  723  1,100

Increase (decrease) in debt  -  -  -

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  3,068  4,454  4,920

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  1,090  215  166

- to improve the level of service  1,611  2,779  2,833

- to replace existing assets  7,277  6,995  7,017

Increase (decrease) in reserves  (964)  (1,336)  (342)

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  9,014  8,653  9,674

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  (5,946)  (4,199)  (4,754)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -
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Internal Borrowing Statement 

 

 

  

Opening 

Balance 1 

July 2012

Loan 

Repayments Loans Raised

Closing 

Balance 30 

June 2013 Interest

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Activity Loans 16,915           (1,106)            2,833             18,642           792                 

Development Contribution Loans 3,121             (1,100)            372                 2,393             146                 

Total 20,036           (2,206)            3,205             21,035           938                 
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Stormwater 

What we do 

Typically stormwater is described as being rainfall that runs off roofs, roads and other surfaces and 
then into gutters and stormwater collection systems such as pipes, culverts, open drains/swales and 
detention structures. 

Stormwater reticulation systems are necessary for the effective and safe removal of rainfall to 
appropriate open drains, streams, rivers and lakes.  Cambridge, Te Awamutu, Ohaupo, Karapiro, 
Pirongia and Kihikihi typically have kerb and channel systems which discharge into stormwater pipes 
and open channels.  

We are the primary service provider for managing stormwater in urban areas.  While we also 
manage drainage systems in some rural areas, other areas are jointly monitored by the council 
and/or the Waikato Regional Council. 

 

Why we do it 

To limit the impacts of flooding on the community, and ensure that stormwater discharging to 
waterways, such as rivers and streams, are free from contaminants. 

 

The level of service we have delivered 

The level of service was maintained within this group of activities. 

 

What we have completed, how have we gone against community outcomes? 

See ‘Measuring Progress’ pages 4 to 8. 

 

What community outcomes does it contribute to? 

Economically progressive 

 We are financially sustainable. 

 Our services are acknowledged as excellent value for money. 

 Waipa’s growth is built on its strengths. 

 

Environmental and cultural champions 

 We are recognised as environmental and cultural leaders. 

 Waipa’s environmental and cultural heritage is a showcase for excellence. 

 

Connected with our community 

 Our stakeholders are advocates/ambassadors for Waipa and Council. 
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Socially responsible 

 Waipa offers an excellent quality of life. 

 

 

Identified effects on community wellbeing 

Effective stormwater systems are important in managing the effects of high intensity rainfall in 
urban environments to avoid regular flooding. Some of our stormwater systems were designed in 
the 1950s and will be insufficient to deal with the effects of the higher intensity rainfall events 
expected with climate change.  Improvements to these systems will be built into Council’s Long Term 
Plans. Stormwater discharges from urban and industrial areas into rivers can also have potentially 
negative consequences for environmental wellbeing, for example from oil or diesel spills.  
Fortunately there have been few of these events.  Council looks to manage these by working closely 
with the Regional Council, investigating any spills and implementing best practice designs for 
stormwater infrastructure including infiltration devices,  swales and detention dams. 
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Statement of Service Performance: Stormwater  

Rationale – To manage stormwater to limit unwanted impacts of flooding on the community and its 
effect in the environment. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By efficiently using resources to deliver services without unreasonably burdening future 
ratepayers. 

 By minimising the adverse effect of stormwater upon the community and functionality of 
the District. 

 

 Level of service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
es

si
ve

 

The community 
is satisfied with 
the service 
provided. 

% of residents who are satisfied 
with the stormwater service 
(Community Survey). 

75% 85% 78% 

Not achieved. 

An improvement has been 
made on the previous year’s 
results however significant 
storm events during the year 
may have contributed to not 
meeting the target level of 
service. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have been 
calculated with the ‘Don’t 
know’ responses excluded. The 
actual 2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 66% 

 Not very satisfied 19% 
 Don’t know 15% 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 

We are 
responsive 
during heavy 
rainfall events. 

% of service 
requests 
responded to 
within agreed 
timeframe 

Emergencies 
within

21
 24 

hours 

New 
measure 

100% 100% Achieved. 

Minor works
22

 
within 2 
working days 

New 
measure 

70% 87.18% 

Achieved. 

Water Services team 
enhancement has enabled 
dedicated resource to ensure 
active response and 
compliance. 

General 
Enquiries

23
 

within 10 
working days 

92% 85% 96.55% 

Achieved. 

Water Services team 
enhancement has enabled 
dedicated resource to ensure 
active response and 
compliance. 

                                                           
21

 Emergencies defined as: A stormwater event that constitutes a significant risk to public safety 
22

 Minor works defined as: Contract works, Discharge, Manhole, Blocked Drain, Flooding private property 
23

 General Enquiries defined as: Connections, Swale Drains 
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Stormwater is 
managed to 
minimise 
flooding of 
properties and 
roads. 

Number of reported incidences 
of localised flooding on urban 
roads

24
. 

New 
measure 

<5 16 

Not achieved. 

An increase in calls associated 
with rain events has been 
noted. Roading team are taking 
these hotspots into account 
during road planning work. 

% of public open drains 
inspected annually

25
. 

New 
measure 

10% 10% Achieved. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 

                                                           
24

 Localised flooding defined as:  Surface water covers entire width of carriageway to a depth equal to or greater than 100 
millimetres. 
25

 Inspection Programme defined as: inspection of open drains to determine compliance with relevant legislation. 
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Statement of Cost of Service 

 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Activity expenses are higher than budget due to the loss on disposal of assets, as work was 
completed to match the asset management system and finance system. 

  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

REVENUE

Fees and Charges  3  -  -

TOTAL REVENUE  3  -  -

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Depreciation and Amortisation  779  791  774

Activity Expenses 1  917  891  1,088

Internal charges and Overheads  448  303  271

Finance Costs  145  66  36

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  2,289  2,051  2,169

OPERATING NET COST OF SERVICE  (2,286)  (2,051)  (2,169)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT

Capital Expenditure (excluding Vested)  1,848  4,636  1,778

Vested Assets  549  580  77

Debt Repayment (Internal)  27  -  60

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT  2,424  5,216  1,915
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Capital Expenditure Table 

 

Explanation of significant capital expenditure variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Cambridge North Stormwater Culverts and Cambridge Deferred Residential Stormwater 
works budgets have been deferred to the 2013/14 year, these are developer driven projects 
and are also dependent on the timing of the expressway from NZTA. 

2. Renewal work was higher than budget due to the storm damage in July 2012. 
3. Pipe condition and assessment work was lower than budget, there is a budget in the 

2013/14 year to complete this work prior to the next LTP. 
  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

To Meet Additional Demand

Cambridge Deferred Residential Swale Land Acquisition  159  -  -

Cambridge Deferred Residential Stormwater Culverts 1  -  500  -

Cambridge Deferred Residential Stormwater Works 1  795  3,300  625

Bond Road Plan Change  32  -  -

Total Capital Expenditure to Meet Additional Demand  986  3,800  625

To Improve Level of Service

Stormwater Modelling  -  20  46

Alpha Street Gulley Stabilisation  -  30  41

Total Capital Expenditure to Improve Level of Service  -  50  87

To Replace Existing Assets

Renewals 2  862  531  983

Pipe Condition and Assessment 3  -  255  83

Total Capital Expenditure to Replace Existing Assets  862  786  1,066

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  1,848  4,636  1,778
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Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement for Year Ended 30 June 
2013 for Stormwater  

 

 

 
  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-term 

Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  6  81  81

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  2,229  1,915  1,927

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  -  -  -

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  3  -

Internal charges and overheads recovered  -  -  -

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  -  -  -

Total sources of operating funding (A)  2,238  1,996  2,008

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  867  836  649

Finance costs  145  66  36

Internal charges and overheads applied  448  303  271

Other operating funding applications  -  -  -

Total applications of operating funding (B)  1,460  1,205  956

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  778  791  1,052

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  -  -  -

Development and financial contributions  526  172  80

Increase (decrease) in debt  -  -  -

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  526  172  80

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  986  3,800  625

- to improve the level of service  -  50  87

- to replace existing assets  862  786  1,066

Increase (decrease) in reserves  (544)  (3,673)  (646)

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  1,304  963  1,132

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  (778)  (791)  (1,052)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -
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Internal Borrowing Statement 

 

  

Opening 

Balance 1 

July 2012

Loan 

Repayments Loans Raised

Closing 

Balance 30 

June 2013 Interest

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Activity Loans -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Development Contribution Loans 772                 (60)                  625                 1,337             36                   

Total 772                 (60)                  625                 1,337             36                   
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Wastewater Treatment and Disposal 

What we do 

The Wastewater Treatment and Disposal activity includes the reticulation network for the collection 
of sewage and trade waste and its treatment and disposal. 

Wastewater from toilets, laundries, kitchens, bathrooms and trade waste is collected in Cambridge, 
Karapiro village, Te Awamutu and Kihikihi, then piped to the treatment plants.  

We are responsible for ensuring wastes are treated and disposed of in a way that minimises 
potential harm to the environment, consistent with the requirements of Waikato Regional Council 
resource consents, legislation and our sustainable development approach.   

We operate two wastewater plants, one at Te Awamutu and one at Cambridge.  We are responsible 
for maintaining the wastewater network which comprises wastewater pipes and pump stations. 

 

Why we do it 

A safe, effective and reliable system for managing wastewater in urban areas is a basic requirement 
for maintaining public health and protecting land and waterways from contamination. 

 

The level of service we have delivered 

The level of service was maintained within this group of activities. 

 

What we have completed, how have we gone against community outcomes? 

See ‘Measuring Progress’ pages 4 to 8. 

 

What community outcomes does it contribute to? 

Economically progressive 

 We are financially sustainable. 

 Our services are acknowledged as excellent value for money. 

 Waipa’s growth is built on its strengths. 

 

Connected with our community 

 Our stakeholders are advocates/ambassadors for Waipa and Council. 
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Socially responsible 

 Waipa offers an excellent quality of life. 

 

 

Identified effects on community wellbeing 

Wastewater treatment and disposal is a cornerstone of public health.  The Cambridge wastewater 
treatment plant does not comply with its resource consent, particularly for nitrate discharges.  An 
upgrade to the plant is planned to improve the quality of the discharge and provide capacity for the 
growth of Cambridge. We are currently working with NIWA to determine if a more cost effective 
approach to this upgrade can be undertaken.  Some issues of non-compliance have also been 
recorded at Te Awamutu have and works have been proposed to overcome these.  Some Odour 
issues associated with blocked sewers were reported and dealt with accordingly. 
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Statement of Service Performance: Wastewater  

Rationale – A reliable wastewater system that supports community health and minimises impacts on 
the environment. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By efficiently using resources to deliver services without unreasonably burdening future 
ratepayers. 

 By ensuring wastewater does not negatively impact upon the water quality in rivers and 
lakes. 

 By minimising the adverse effect of wastewater upon the community and functionality of 
the district. 

 

 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual  
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 

The community 
is satisfied with 
the service 
provided. 

% of residents who are 
connected and are satisfied 
with the wastewater system 
(Community Survey). 

95% 95% 97% 

Achieved. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have been 
calculated with the ‘Don’t 
know’ responses excluded. The 
actual 2012/13 NRB result 
before recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 72% 

 Not very satisfied 2% 
 Don’t know 26% 

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s 

The impact of 
wastewater 
treatment & 
disposal upon 
the 
environment is 
minimised. 

Number of times resource 
consent conditions are 
breached by Council. 

New 
measure 

Cambridge 

0 
54 

Not achieved. 

Future works planned for  
Cambridge wastewater 
treatment will ensure more 
consistent compliance with 
discharge consents.   Current 
consents will not be able to 
reliably be met until planned 
upgrades are performed on the 
plant.  The Cambridge 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
will be compliant in 2017. 

New 
measure 

Te 
Awamutu 

0 
12 

Not achieved. 

Te Awamutu WWTP was 
generally compliant with its 
discharge consents over the 
past 12 months. Breaches were 
due to either process or 
equipment failure.  These were 
rectified by the operators. 

Number of odour events 
triggering customer 
complaints

26
. 

25 
24 or 
less 

15 Achieved. 

 

We provide the 
community with 

Number of reported 
disruptions to wastewater 

New 
measure 

<15 33 
Not achieved. 

An increase in calls were 

                                                           
26

 Excludes complaints where the subsequent investigation showed the odour was not caused by our wastewater network. 
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 Level of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 
2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

Actual  
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

a reliable piped 
wastewater 
system (within 
agreed areas). 

service
27

. received, some associated with 
rain events. 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

 

 

% of service 
requests 
responded to 
within agreed 
timeframe 

Emergencies 
within

28
 24 

hours 

New 
measure 

100% 95.83% 

Not achieved. 

One call was not able to be 
responded to within the agreed 
timeframe because the 
customer could not be 
contacted.  

Minor 
works

29
 

within 2 
working days 

70% 80% 99.2% 

Achieved. 

Water Services team 
enhancement has enabled 
dedicated resource to ensure 
active response and 
compliance. 

Definitions of minor works have 
been redefined. Actual results 
for 2012/13 do not show 
responses for overflow and 
manhole as these need to be 
responded to within 24 hours 
and come under the 
‘Emergencies within 24 hours’ 
performance measure. 

General 
Enquiries

30
 

within 10 
working days 

55% 80% 96.2% 

Achieved. 

Water Services team 
enhancement has enabled 
dedicated resource to ensure 
active response and 
compliance. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 
  

                                                           
27

 Excludes disruptions where the subsequent investigation showed the event was not caused by our wastewater network. 
Multiple calls for the same event are classed as one reported disruption. 
28

 Emergencies defined as: A wastewater event that constitutes a significant risk to public health 
29

 Minor works defined as: Blocked sewer, Broken sewer, Leaks, contract works, Overflow, Rat problem, manhole 
30

 General Enquiries defined as: Connections, Service Lines, Tradewaste 
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Statement of Cost of Service 

 

 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Depreciation saving due to the timing of completing capital work in the prior year. 
2. Loss on disposal of assets as work was completed to align data between the asset 

management system and finance system. 
3. Reduction in overhead allocation due to savings in the Support Services activities.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

REVENUE

Fees and Charges  438  468  456

TOTAL REVENUE  438  468  456

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Depreciation and Amortisation 1  2,458  2,730  2,397

Activity Expenses 2  2,528  1,877  2,056

Internal charges and Overheads 3  1,017  951  860

Finance Costs  571  232  232

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  6,574  5,790  5,545

OPERATING NET COST OF SERVICE  (6,136)  (5,322)  (5,089)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT

Capital Expenditure (excluding Vested)  3,880  1,316  1,881

Vested Assets  418  320  285

Debt Repayment (Internal)  646  1,702  2,464

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT  4,944  3,338  4,630
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Capital Expenditure Table 

 

 

Explanation of significant capital expenditure variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Costs associated with the consent renewal and upgrade of the wastewater treatment plant.  
Council has also entered into a partnership with the National Institute of Water and 
Atmospheric Research (NIWA) to trial an Enhanced Pond System for the treatment of 
wastewater, if successful, the enhanced pond system may be incorporated into the future 
upgrade of the plant with the potential to reduce costs. 

2. The design, contract documents and tendering for the physical works has been completed 
this year.  The construction costs have been budgeted in the 2013/14 Annual Plan. 

3. Renewals are higher than budget due to the carryover of work from the 2011/12 year for 
the district wide sewer pipe replacement contract. 

4. Additional work was done on the wastewater treatment pump stations, after the scoping 
and rationalisation of contractor and asset data allowed a much more detailed analysis on 
the work required. 

  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

To Meet Additional Demand

Cambridge Upgrade Pipe Bridge  1,077  -  35

Cambridge North Deferred Residential  265  -  -

Bond Road Plan Change  138  -  -

Picquet Hill  Plan Change  636  -  -

Total Capital Expenditure to Meet Additional Demand  2,116  -  35

To Improve Level of Service

Sewer Pipe Upgrades  671  -  29

Cambridge Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade 1  -  -  117

Te Awamutu Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade  -  -  45

Te Awamutu South Construction Plan (T7) 2  -  252  36

District Wide Wastewater Modelling  -  43  34

Total Capital Expenditure to Meet Additional Demand  671  295  261

To Replace Existing Assets

Renewals 3  1,018  713  1,016

Reticulation  22  20  -

Plant and Pumps 4  53  165  497

Pipe Condition Assessments & infiltration Study  -  123  72

Total Capital Expenditure to Replace Existing Assets  1,093  1,021  1,585

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  3,880  1,316  1,881
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Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement for Year Ended 30 June 
2013 for Wastewater Treatment and Disposal  

 

 

 

 
  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  87  301  302

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  5,969  5,416  5,434

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  -  -  -

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  438  468  456

Internal charges and overheads recovered  -  -  -

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  -  -  -

Total sources of operating funding (A)  6,494  6,185  6,192

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  2,448  1,792  1,886

Finance costs  571  232  232

Internal charges and overheads applied  1,017  951  860

Other operating funding applications  -  -  -

Total applications of operating funding (B)  4,036  2,975  2,978

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  2,458  3,210  3,214

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  -  -  -

Development and financial contributions  559  258  261

Increase (decrease) in debt  -  -  -

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  559  258  261

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  2,116  -  35

- to improve the level of service  671  295  261

- to replace existing assets  1,093  1,021  1,585

Increase (decrease) in reserves  (863)  2,152  1,594

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  3,017  3,468  3,475

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  (2,458)  (3,210)  (3,214)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -
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Internal Borrowing Statement 

 

  

Opening 

Balance 1 

July 2012

Loan 

Repayments Loans Raised

Closing 

Balance 30 

June 2013 Interest

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Activity Loans 1,688             (1,668)            642                 662                 79                   

Development Contribution Loans 3,273             (796)               126                 2,603             153                 

Total 4,961             (2,464)            768                 3,265             232                 
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Water Treatment and Supply 

What we do 

The water Treatment and Supply group of activities includes all the services involved in abstracting, 
treating, storing and distributing water to users through the reticulation network. 

We provide reticulated water supplies to Cambridge, Te Awamutu, Kihikihi, Pirongia, Ohaupo, 
Pukerimu and Karapiro. 

We operate seven water treatments plants.  We are responsible for maintaining the water network 
which comprises water pipes, pump stations and reservoirs. 

 

Why we do it 

To provide high quality water to the reticulated areas of Waipa. 

 

The level of service we have delivered 

The level of service was maintained within this group of activities. 

 

What we have completed, how have we gone against community outcomes? 

See ‘Measuring Progress’ pages 4 to 8. 

 

What community outcomes does it contribute to? 

Economically progressive 

 We are financially sustainable. 

 Our services are acknowledged as excellent value for money. 

 Waipa’s growth is built on its strengths. 

Connected with our community 

 Our stakeholders are advocates/ambassadors for Waipa and Council. 

 

Socially responsible 

 Waipa offers an excellent quality of life. 

 

Identified effects on community wellbeing 

During the summer drought a significant number of  complaints about the taste of water were made 
in the Te Awamutu area. These arose because of long dry summer depleting the streams and 
creating conditions ideal for algal growth.  Water quality was constantly monitored during this time 
and the water was always safe to drink. Water restrictions were also put in place for five months to 
help manage the drought event.  Investigations are currently underway to develop a more 
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sustainable long term water supply strategy for the district  and provide more resilience from 
climate change and engineering risks.  
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Statement of Service Performance: Water treatment and supply 

Rationale – Provide a reliable supply of water sufficient to meet residential and industry needs which 
supports district development. 

How the activity contributes to community outcomes: 

 By efficiently using resources to deliver services without unreasonably burdening future 
ratepayers. 

 By supporting current and future life quality of the district through a consistent and healthy 
water supply. 

 

 Level Of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 

2011/12 

Target 
2012/

13 

Actual 
2012/13 

Comments 2012/13 Actual 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

 P
ro

gr
e

ss
iv

e
 

The community is 
satisfied with the 
service provided. 

% of residents who are satisfied 
with the water supply 
(Community Survey). 

86% 90% 78% 

Not achieved. 

There have been a number of 
issues associated with the Te 
Awamutu water supply, many 
of these relate to low river 
flows during summer.  Long 
term solutions to these issues 
are being identified. 

Target levels and reported 
performance levels have 
been calculated with the 
‘Don’t know’ responses 
excluded. The actual 2012/13 
NRB result before 
recalculation is: 

 Very satisfied/fairly 
satisfied 64% 

 Not very satisfied 18% 
 Don’t know 18% 

So
ci

al
ly

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

We provide the 
community (within 
agreed areas) with 
a reliable supply of 
drinking water. 

% of service 
requests 
responded to 
within 
timeframes 

Emergencies 
within

31
 24 

hours 

New 
measure 

100% 100% Achieved. 

Minor works
32

 
within 2 
working days 

79% 80% 95.38% 

Achieved. 

Water Services team 
enhancement has enabled 
dedicated resource to ensure 
active response and 
compliance. 

General 
Enquiries

33
 

within 10 
working days 

77% 80% 94.89% 

Achieved. 

Water Services team 
enhancement has enabled 
dedicated resource to ensure 
active response and 
compliance. 

                                                           
31

 Emergencies defined as: Firefighting availability and total loss of supply 
32

 Minor works defined as: Broken water main, contract works, leak quality, supply 
33

 General Enquiries defined as: Connections, Locations, Meters, Requests to buy water, sprinkler ban 
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 Level Of Service Performance Measure 
Actual 

2011/12 
Target 

2012/13 
Actual 

2012/13 
Comments 2012/13 

Actual 

 

Water provided 
at agreed 
pressures 
within each 
water supply 
area. 

Number of reported issues with 
water pressure. 

New 
measure 

<200 25 Achieved. 

Each water 
supply has 
24hrs worth of 
storage for 
emergencies as 
per NZDWS

34
 

recommendatio
n. 

Number of the 4 water supplies 
35

 with 24 hours of storage for 
treated water. 

New 
measure 

0 0 Achieved. 

Water is safe to 
drink 

% of water quality sample 
results that comply with 
Drinking Water Standards New 
Zealand 

New 
measure 

80% 77.3% 

Not achieved. 

This measure relates 
directly to the Water 
Treatment Plants. All 
samples from the 
reticulation zones are 
fully compliant. 

Hicks Road will remain 
non-compliant until the 
plant is upgraded in the 
2013/14 financial year. 
There have been a few 
non-compliances over 
the past 12 months at 
the other plants due to 
equipment failure that 
were actioned/repaired 
and reported on by the 
on-call operator. 

Water looks and 
tastes good 

Number of complaints regarding 
the quality of the water. 

New 
measure 

<50 113 

Not achieved. 

There were 113 
complaints in the past 
12 months. The bulk of 
these were through 
summer and relate to 
algal blooms due to low 
river flows and the long 
hot summer. 

 

There have been no changes in the level of service from that identified in the 10-Year Plan 2012-22. 

                                                           
34

 NZDWS – New Zealand Drinking Water Standards. 
35

 Water supplies defined as: Cambridge & Karapiro, Te Awamutu & Pirongia, Kihikihi, Pukerimu. 
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Statement of Cost of Service 

 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Depreciation saving due to the timing of capital work in the prior year and the level of asset 
disposals, meaning that the total asset value for the water assets is less than budget. 

2. Loss on disposal of assets as work was completed to align data between the asset 
management system and finance system, as well as the disposal of the Te Rore water assets 
which were transferred to the Te Rore Water Supply Group in November 2012. 

3. Reduction in overhead allocation due to savings in the Support Services activities as well as 
higher than budgeted admin on cost to capital projects.  
 

  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

REVENUE

Fees, charges and targeted rates for water supply  3,446  5,277  5,368

Insurance Recovery  -  -  19

TOTAL REVENUE  3,446  5,277  5,387

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Depreciation and Amortisation 1  3,176  3,245  2,779

Activity Expenses 2  4,111  4,304  7,666

Internal charges and Overheads 3  1,426  786  3

Finance Costs  654  28  8

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  9,367  8,363  10,456

OPERATING NET COST OF SERVICE  (5,921)  (3,086)  (5,069)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT

Capital Expenditure (excluding Vested)  7,546  2,861  3,193

Vested Assets  284  490  487

Debt Repayment (Internal)  478  -  57

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT  8,308  3,351  3,737
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Capital Expenditure Table 

 

Explanation of significant capital expenditure variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Increase due to the completion of the Water Supply Master Plans for Cambridge and Te 
Awamutu, the Master Plans are critical in that they will provide input into a number of 
capital projects. 

2. Timing change for this project, the savings in this year have been deferred to the 2013/14 
Annual Plan. 

3. Renewals are higher than budget due to the carryover of work from the 2011/12 year for 
completion of contracts that had been started but not finished. 

  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

To Meet Additional Demand

Cambridge Reservoir Renewals & Upgrades  -  50  13

Karapiro Rising Main  319  55  4

TA Water Supply Develop New Water Source  -  24  46

Cambridge Deferred Residential Water  132  -  -

Picquet Hill  Plan Change Water  529  -  -

Hautapu Industrial Zone Main Link  53  -  -

Bond Road Plan Change Water  106  -  -

Total Capital Expenditure to Meet Additional Demand  1,139  129  63

To Improve Level of Service

CB Hicks Rd WTP Upgrade  -  100  129

Karapiro Water Treatment Plant Upgrade  3,505  -  -

TA New Reservoir/Water Storage  353  310  287

Te Rore Water Supply Transfer  -  110  158

District Wide - Water Modelling 1  -  6  232

District Wide Zone Identification  28  -  2

TA Water Factory Road Dump Valve  -  10  -

Drinking Water Compliance 2  567  295  82

Water Meters - New and Replacement  -  85  166

Total Capital Expenditure to Improve Level of Service  4,453  916  1,056

To Replace Existing Assets

Renewals  227  370  468

District Wide Main Replacement & Upgrade   3  530  355  493

District Wide Rider Main Installation  349  210  228

District Wide Steel Main Replacement & Upgrades  636  263  241

Replacement of Pukerimu Piping  212  350  381

DW Leak & Condition Investigation  -  68  54

DW Reservoirs Investigation & Condition Assessment  -  200  209

Total Capital Expenditure to Replace Existing Assets  1,954  1,816  2,074

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  7,546  2,861  3,193
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Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement for Year Ended 30 June 
2013 for Water Treatment and Supply  

 

 

 
  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  143  351  353

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  5,525  3,693  3,695

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  -  -  -

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  3,446  5,277  5,368

Internal charges and overheads recovered  -  -  -

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  -  -  19

Total sources of operating funding (A)  9,114  9,321  9,435

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  4,011  3,486  4,549

Finance costs  654  28  8

Internal charges and overheads applied  1,426  786  3

Other operating funding applications  7  7  7

Total applications of operating funding (B)  6,098  4,307  4,567

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  3,016  5,014  4,868

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  -  -  -

Development and financial contributions  1,085  172  214

Increase (decrease) in debt  -  -  -

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  1,085  172  214

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  1,139  129  63

- to improve the level of service  4,453  916  1,056

- to replace existing assets  1,954  1,816  2,074

Increase (decrease) in reserves  (3,445)  2,325  1,889

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  4,101  5,186  5,082

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  (3,016)  (5,014)  (4,868)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -
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Internal Borrowing Statement 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Opening 

Balance 1 

July 2012

Loan 

Repayments Loans Raised

Closing 

Balance 30 

June 2013 Interest

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Activity Loans -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Development Contribution Loans 178                 (57)                  167                 288                 8                     

Total 178                 (57)                  167                 288                 8                     
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Support Services 

What we do 

Support Services provide a range of specialist skills and services to support the delivery of our 
services, including customer support, financial management, human resources, information services, 
legal and corporate support, organisational development, and property management. 

Provide specialist skills and services to support the delivery of council services. 

 

Why we do it 

To support the organisation in effectively and efficiently delivering services. 
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Statement of Cost of Service 

Explanation of significant costs of service variances between LTP and Actual 

1. Salaries are less than budget as the budget was set prior to the July salary review and the 
timing of filling vacant positions has also impacted. 

2. Depreciation on computer hardware and software as well as plant depreciation lower due to 
the capital work costs being less than anticipated in prior years. 

3. Savings across all activities within Support Services, the biggest savings were for legal and 
consultancy costs, valuation fees and maintenance costs as well as the timing of the 
Digitisation Project which was also under budget. 

  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

REVENUE

Fees and Charges  415  27  11

TOTAL REVENUE  415  27  11

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Employee Related Expenses 1  7,039  5,068  4,874

Depreciation and Amortisation 2  898  1,220  1,036

Activity Expenses 3  6,312  4,758  3,796

Finance Costs  78  38  5

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  14,327  11,084  9,711

OPERATING NET COST OF SERVICE  (13,912)  (11,057)  (9,700)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND DEBT REPAYMENT

Capital Expenditure (excluding Vested)  1,122  1,772  977

Vested Assets  -  -  8

Debt Repayment  417  306  224

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  1,539  2,078  1,209
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Capital Expenditure Table 

 

Explanation of significant capital expenditure variances between LTP and Actual 

1. The project for the crime prevention camera system has been deferred until the next Long 
Term Plan. 

2. The saving in the aerial photography is due to a change to a three yearly refresh cycle for 
urban aerial photography. 

3. Savings in computer hardware upgrades / renewals and software upgrades due to a number 
of factors the main ones being: 

a. the use of internal resources for some of the projects,  
b. printers and photocopies are now being leased, therefore no renewals were 

required, 
c. savings in purchase costs due to the all-of-government purchasing agreement. 

 
  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

Notes $000 $000 $000

To Improve Level of Service

Web Strategy  -  70  87

Crime Prevention Camera System 1  -  200  -

Aerial Photography 2  106  120  32

Computer Hardware Upgrades 3  32  300  125

Computer Software Upgrades 3  -  180  71

Total to Improve Level of Service  138  870  315

To Replace Existing Assets

Plant  475  432  378

Buildings  -  50  86

Computer Hardware Renewals 3  445  360  173

Computer Software Renewals  64  60  25

Total to Replace Existing Assets  984  902  662

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  1,122  1,772  977
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 Waipa District Council Funding Impact Statement for Year Ended 30 
June2013 for Support Services  

 

 
  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13

Long-term 

Plan

Long-

term Plan Actual

$000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties  245  224  224

Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)  -  -  -

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes  -  -  -

Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply  415  27  11

Internal charges and overheads recovered  12,964  10,149  8,942

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts  -  -  -

Total sources of operating funding (A)  13,624  10,400  9,177

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers  13,351  9,815  8,562

Finance costs  78  38  5

Internal charges and overheads applied  -  -  -

Other operating funding applications  -  -  -

Total applications of operating funding (B)  13,429  9,853  8,567

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A - B)  195  547  610

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure  -  -  -

Development and financial contributions  -  -  -

Increase (decrease) in debt  -  -  -

Gross proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -

Lump sum contributions  -  -  -

Total sources of capital funding (C)  -  -  -

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand  -  -  -

- to improve the level of service  138  870  315

- to replace existing assets  984  902  662

Increase (decrease) in reserves  (927)  (1,225)  (367)

Increase (decrease) of investments  -  -  -

Total applications of capital funding (D)  195  547  610

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C - D)  (195)  (547)  (610)

Funding balance ((A - B) + (C - D))  -  -  -
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Internal Borrowing Statement 

 

 

  

Opening 

Balance 1 

July 2012

Loan 

Repayments Loans Raised

Closing 

Balance 30 

June 2013 Interest

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Activity Loans 2,698             (224)               766                 3,240             146                 

Development Contribution Loans -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total 2,698             (224)               766                 3,240             146                 
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Involvement in Council Controlled Organisations and Council 
Organisations 

The Local Government Act 2002 requires the council to include in the Annual Report information on 
Council controlled and Council organisations in which it is a stakeholder.  In particular, the council 
must include: 

 Its significant policies and objectives regarding ownership and control of the organisation. 

 The nature and scope of the activities to be provided by the organisation. 

 The key performance targets and other measures by which performance may be judged. 

We are a shareholder in four organisations that are classified as council controlled organisations as 
defined by the Local Government Act 2002.  The organisations are: 

 Waikato Regional Airport Limited, also known as Hamilton International Airport. 

 Local Government Funding Agency Limited. 

 New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation, also known as Civic Assurance.  

 Local Authority Shared Services Limited. 

Waikato Regional Airport Limited 

Waikato Regional Airport Limited (Hamilton International Airport) is jointly owned by five local 
authorities – Hamilton City, Waipa District, Waikato District, Matamata-Piako District and 
Otorohanga District Councils. 

Waipa District Council’s shareholding is 15.625 percent. 

Corporate Mission 

The mission of Waikato Regional Airport Limited is to operate a successful commercial business 
providing safe, appropriate and efficient services for the transportation of people and freight in and 
out of Hamilton Airport. 

Goal 

The retention of the Airport as a major infrastructural facility is important to the Waikato economy. 

A Statement of Intent provided by the Waikato Regional Airport Limited (as required by Section 64 
of the Local Government Act 2002) is available but does not form part of this plan. 

Policies and Objectives 

Council intends to maintain its current shareholding for the foreseeable future.  There are no formal 
policies or objectives relating to ownership and control of Waikato Regional Airport. 

Nature and Scope of Activities as per 2012-22 Long Term Plan 

The nature and scope of the activities for the company is to: 

 Deliver sustainable operations for the central North Island; 

 Protect and grow Hamilton Airport’s national and international connectivity according to 
demand; 

 Utilise airport property to enable economic development in the region; 

 Protect and develop airport capability; 
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 Deliver value to our customers; 

 Enable our people to deliver; and 

 Support the formal establishment of a Regional Tourism Organisation as a 100 percent  
shareholder in a subsidiary company to be formed to carry out the regional tourism activity. 

Nature and Scope of Activities to be Undertaken as per 2012/13 Statement of Intent 

Deliver sustainable airport operations for the central North Island 

 Operate Hamilton International Airport (“HIA”) efficiently on sound business principles and 
in accordance with the safety provisions of the Aerodrome Certification as required under 
Civil Aviation rule Part 139. 

 Ensure the company has the appropriate financial structure to reflect the specific business 
and industry risk. 

 Continue to seek opportunities to diversify revenue in areas consistent with core business. 

 Maintain appropriate cost and pricing models and review aeronautical pricing. 

 Operate a safe and secure airport environment. 

 Manage Business and Regulatory Risk. 

 Carry out annual condition assessment of the Company’s runway and pavement areas to 
ensure maintenance is planned and carried out in accordance with best practice. 

 Act as a good corporate citizen. 

Protect and Grow Hamilton International Airport’s national & international connectivity 
according to demand 

 Promote HIA capability to national and international operators. 

 Maintain and grow international flights to / from HIA according to regional demand seeking 
suitable partnership(s). 

 As required by demand, maintain and grow domestic services to the region and where 
possible seek to influence competitive airfares, potential new destinations, and increased 
frequency. 

 Influence effective feeder transport networks to/from HIA. 

 Develop long term freight operations according to regional demand. 

Utilise Airport property to enable economic development in the region 

Background: 

Titanium Park is a master planned business park with a net developable land area of 57.2ha.  
Titanium Park Joint Venture is owned 50% by Titanium Park Limited (TPL) and 50% by Titanium 
Park Development Limited.   TPL is a Council Controlled Organisation and a 100% owned subsidiary 
of Waikato Regional Airport Limited. 

Titanium Park Development Ltd is owned by McConnell Developments Ltd and Todd Property 
Group Limited. 

The management of the Titanium Park Joint Venture (TPJV) is contracted to McConnell Property 
Limited.  Joint Venture management has a focus on achieving land sales.  Once sales are 
achieved, TPJV will self fund through sales or lease revenue, and borrowing against Titanium Park 
assets. Given the reinvestment of sales revenue into the development it is not expected that the 
TPL will pay a dividend or repay loans to the parent company over the next three years. 
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 Promote the airport and Titanium Park as a regional freight / transport hub including any 
potential future rail links. 

 Support the Titanium Park Joint Venture to sell and lease land for development. 

 Sell identified non-strategic land, while seeking to protect strategic aeronautical land. 

 Work with development agencies and the Aviation Industry Cluster to promote business 
activity around the airport. 

 Develop and facilitate appropriate infrastructure for commercial enterprises on airport land 
where commercially viable. 

Protect and develop airport  capability 

 A private plan change to preserve the right to extend the runway pavement from 2,195m to 
2,984m was considered and approved by independent commissioners in2011.  The private 
plan change achieved a reduction in area and slight elongation of the airport noise 
boundaries, amendments to the obstacle limitation surface, and rezoning of land from rural 
to airport aeronautical.  The future runway extension option will protect the airport’s ability 
to enter the market for long-haul airlines, and freight operations in the future. This is a multi 
year project. 

 Work through and complete runway designation Environment Court appeals. 

 Provide and deliver appropriate infrastructure for General Aviation aircraft use. 

 Ensure infrastructure (e.g. Runway End Safety Area) meets CAA requirements. 

Deliver Value to our Customers 

 Provide quality retail services within the terminal. 

 Maintain the terminal as a clean safe and secure environment. 

 Ensure availability of the airport at all times (controllable events). 

 Maintain effective and commercial partnerships with terminal tenants. 

Enable our people to deliver 

 Have ethical skilled staff to deliver the strategic plan. 

 Foster accountability and performance as core values. 

 Develop working environment where staff feel valued and achieve. 

Support Regional Tourism 

 Promote Hamilton International Airport as a gateway to the Central North Island. 

 As 100% shareholder in the Regional Tourism Organisation, ensure strategy and delivery 
thereof is consistent with shareholder objectives. 

 To support domestic and international visitor attraction initiatives. 

 Liaise with other Central North Island stakeholders for the benefit of increasing international 
and domestic visitors. 

Strategic Activities 
 

Key activities for the 2012 / 13 year are: 
 

 Runway Designation Environment Court appeal process 

 Protection and growth of international and domestic operations 
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 Development of freight operations 

 Completion of aeronautical re-pricing 

 Joint venture land sales 

 Non-strategic asset (land) sales 

Capital Expenditure as per 2012-22 Long Term Plan 

Planned major capital expenditure in the three year forecast is: 

 2012 2013 2014 

 $000s $000s $000s 

Runway designation 100 0 0 

Runway and apron 400 400036 0 

Other projects 250 200 200 

 750 4200 200 

Capital Expenditure as per 2012/13 Statement of Intent 

 2013 2014 2015 

 $000s $000s $000s 

Runway and apron 175 2,70037 3,47037 

Other projects 585 203 245 

 760 2,903 3,715 

Performance Targets  as per 2012-22 Long Term Plan 

(Extracted from the company’s long term forecast and subject to 
change) 

Year ended 30 June 

2012 2013 2014 

Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation 
(EBITDA) 

$2.22 m $3.25 m $3.39 m 

Net Surplus/ (Deficit) after Tax $254 k $759 k $1.36 m 

Net profit after tax to shareholders’ funds 0.43% 1.27% 2.22% 

Net profit after tax to total assets 0.32% 0.94% 1.73% 

Percentage of non landing charges revenue 78.76% 77.25% 76.62% 

Total Liabilities/Shareholder Funds: (Debt/Equity Ratio). 24:76 26:74 22:78 

                                                           
36

 $4 million is the estimated cost of the runway overlay. The particular timing of expenditure will be subject to runway 
condition assessment advice, but will be no earlier than the 2013 financial year. 
37

 $5.62m is estimated cost of runway overlay. The particular value and timing of expenditure will be subject to 
independent runway condition assessment advice. 
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Performance Targets as per 2012/13 Statement of Intent 

Figures below are based on consolidated company forecasts. 

 

(Extracted from the company’s long term forecast and subject 
to change) 

Year ended 30 June 

2013 2014 2015 

Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and 
Amortisation (EBITDA) 

$2.30m $2.31m $3.20m 

Net Surplus/ (Deficit) after Tax $200k $183k $389k 

Net profit after tax to shareholders’ funds 0.34% 0.30% 0.64% 

Net profit after tax to total assets 0.26% 0.23% 0.50% 

Percentage of non landing charges revenue 82.06% 79.49% 80.03% 

Total Liabilities/Shareholder Funds: (Debt/Equity Ratio). 23:77 23:77 22:78 

Applicable to Parent company (Airport) operations only 

 

(Extracted from the company’s long term forecast and subject to 
change) 

Year ended 30 June 

2013 2014 2015 

7.7 Interest Rate Cover 

The interest cover measures the number of times the Net Profit Before 
Interest, Tax and Depreciation (EBITDA) covers interest paid on debt. 

2.70 3.86 4.15 

7.8 To achieve the Airport Certification Standards as required by the Civil Aviation Authority. 

7.9 To achieve above average traveller satisfaction ratings through the conduction of a bi- 
annual ACI International benchmarking survey. 

7.10 Collect, document and act (where viable) on customer feedback forms to continuously 
monitor and improve the customer experience. Maintain a database to ensure recurring negative 
feedback is promptly acted upon. 

7.11 Introduce a new domestic carrier to promote competition and consequently, competitive 
pricing options for travellers. 

The following performance measures were incorporated into the Statement of Intent for the 
2012/13 financial year. 

This information was not available at the time of publication of Waipa District Council’s 2013/14 
Annual Report. 

Dividend policy 

In view of projected capital expenditure, the Directors propose to recommend that no dividend be 
paid for the next three years and that the dividend payment decisions for subsequent years are 
determined annually at the annual general meeting each year.  The payment of dividends is subject 
to the approval of the Company’s bankers and pursuant to the provisions of the covenants 
associated with the banks advances to the Company. 
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New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited 

The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited, which is a council controlled trading 
organisation, has been established by the Local Government sector and the Crown to enable local 
authorities to borrow at lower interest margins than would otherwise be available. 

The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited will raise debt funding either 
domestically and/or offshore in either New Zealand dollars or foreign currency and provide debt 
funding to New Zealand local authorities and may undertake any other activities considered by the 
Board of Local Government Funding Agency Limited to be reasonably related or incidental to, or in 
connection with, that business. 

The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited will only lend to local authorities that 
enter into all the relevant arrangements with it and comply with the New Zealand Local Government 
Funding Agency Limited’s lending policies. 

The main objectives of the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited will be to: 

 Achieve the objectives of the shareholders in the New Zealand Local Government Funding 
Agency Limited (both commercial and non-commercial); 

 Be a good employer; 

 Exhibit a sense of social and environmental responsibility by having regard to the interests of 
the community in which it operates and by endeavouring to accommodate or encourage 
these when able to do so;  

 Conduct its affairs in accordance with sound business practice; 

 Provide debt to participating local authorities at the lowest possible interest rates; 

 Make longer-term borrowings available to participating local authorities commensurate with 
the relevant maturity; and  

 Enhance the certainty of access to debt markets for participating local authorities, subject 
always to operating in accordance with sound business practice. 

Performance Targets as per 2012-22 Long Term Plan 

The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited’s average cost of funds relative to the 
average cost of funds for New Zealand Government Securities for the period to: 

 30 June 2012 will be less than 0.50 percent higher 

 30 June 2013 will be less than 0.50 percent higher 

 30 June 2014 will be less than 0.40 percent higher 

The average margin above New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited’s cost of funds 
charged to the highest rates participating local authorities will be no more than 0.40 percent. 

The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited’s annualised operating overheads will 
be less than $3.0 million. 

 The total lending to participating local authorities at: 

- 30 June 2012 will be at least $500 million 

- 30 June 2013 will be at least $900 million 

- 30 June 2014 will be at least $1.4 billion 
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 The total number of participating local authorities shareholders in the New Zealand Local 
Government Funding Agency Limited at 30 September 2012 will be at least 30. 

 The total number of participating local authorities (i.e. shareholders and eligible borrowers) 
in the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited at 30 September 2012 will be 
at least 40. 

Nature and Scope of Activities to be Undertaken as per 2012/13 Statement of Intent 

The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited will raise debt funding either 
domestically and/or offshore in either NZ dollars or foreign currency and provide debt funding to 
New Zealand local authorities, and may undertake any other activities considered by the Board of 
New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited to be reasonably related or incidentally to, 
or in connection with, that business.  

The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited will only lend to local authorities that 
enter into all the relevant arrangements with it (Participating Local Authorities) and comply with the 
New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited’s lending policies. 

Performance Targets as per 2012/13 Statement of Intent 

New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited has the following performance targets:  

 New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited’s average cost of funds relative to 
the average cost of funds for New Zealand Government Securities for the period to:  

- 30 June 2013 will be less than 0.50% higher  

- 30 June 2014 will be less than 0.40% higher  

- 30 June 2015 will be less than 0.40% higher  

 The average margin above New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited’s cost of 
funds charged to the highest rated Participating Local Authorities will be no more than 
0.40%  

 New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited’s annualised operating overheads 
will be less than $3.2 million  

 Total lending to Participating Local Authorities at:  

- 30 June 2013 will be at least $900 million  

- 30 June 2014 will be at least $1,400 million  

- 30 June 2015 will be at least $2,000 million 

 The total number of Participating Local Authorities Shareholders in the LGFA at 30 
November 2012 will be at least 30 

 The total number of Participating Local Authorities (ie Shareholders and eligible Borrowers) 
in the LGFA at 30 November 2012 will be at least 40 

Performance Measures as per 2012/13 Annual Report  

This information was not available at the time of publication of Waipa District Council’s 2013/14 
Annual Report. 
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Dividend policy 

The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited will seek to maximise benefits to 
participating Local Authorities as borrowers rather than shareholders.  Consequently it is intended to 
pay a limited dividend to shareholders. 

The board’s policy is to pay a dividend that provides an annual rate of return to shareholders equal 
to Local Government Funding Agency Limited cost of funds plus 2.00 percent over the medium term, 
recognising that, to assist in the start-up period, the initial expectation is for no dividend for the part 
period to 30 June 2012, and for a dividend equal to 50 percent of the target dividend in the two 
periods to 30 June 2014 to be paid.  Thereafter, the intention is to pay at least the full target 
dividend until the target dividend is achieved as measured from commencement, including 
consideration of the time value of money at the target annual rate of return. 

 

New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation  

The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation is wholly owned by New Zealand city, 
district and regional councils.  It provides a range of products and services to prevent loss and 
manage risk. 

Waipa District Council’s shareholding is 1.1 percent. 

Mission Statement 

To ensure the long-term provision of stable, cost effective, and proactive financing and risk-financing 
solutions for the Local Government sector. 

Corporate Goals 

The specific goals of the New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation are: 

 To operate as a sound and successful business. 

 To be the primary supplier of insurance and superannuation services to the Local 
Government sector. 

 To optimise the cost of risk for Local Government by providing or supporting the most 
suitable risk-financing products to cover property and liability risks.  These products may 
include insurance, risk pooling, mutual funding and trust operations. 

 To investigate and facilitate as appropriate new products and markets in financing and risk-
financing that will prove beneficial to the New Zealand Local Government Insurance 
Corporation’s shareholders, clients and their staff. 

 To maintain a claims paying ability rating of A (Excellent). 

Nature and Scope of Activities as per 2012-22 Long Term Plan 

The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation’s primary role is providing long-term 
value to the Local Government sector through the provision of financial services. 

1. For traditional insurance, the New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation offers: 

- A vehicle supported by a strong reinsurance programme for Local Government to 
pool risk, the profits from which are returned to the sector through the New Zealand 
Local Government Insurance Corporation’s Local Government shareholders. 

- Dependable, competitive prices in all cycles of the insurance market. 
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- An honest and fair process for managing claims. 

- Expert, unbiased risk-financing advice to local authorities. 

(a) The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation provides administration, 
reinsurance, accounting, and a range of other services for mutual funding and trust 
initiatives for Local Government Mutual Funds Trustee Limited (Riskpool) and the New 
Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund. 

(b) The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation provides superannuation 
services for Local Government and Local Government staff via SuperEasy and SuperEasy 
Kiwisaver. 

(c) The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation provides accounting services to 
Local Government New Zealand, the New Zealand  Society of Local Government Managers, 
Local Government Industry Training Organisation and, Local Government Online. 

(d) The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation continues to investigate and 
facilitate as appropriate new products and markets that it believes will prove beneficial to its 
shareholders, clients and their staff. 

(e) Ownership and management of Civic Assurance in Wellington’s business district provides a 
centre for Local Government, offices for the New Zealand Local Government Insurance 
Corporation and, diversity of investment risk. 

(f) In a modest and selective way, the New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation 
provides sponsorship for a range of Local Government activities at regional and national 
level. 

Nature and Scope of Activities as per 2012 Statement of Intent 
 
The Company’s primary role is to provide financial services to the local government sector.  
 

 For traditional insurance, the Company has offered:  
• Competitive prices.  
• An honest and fair process for managing claims.  
• Products from which the profits are returned to the sector through the Company’s local 
government shareholders.  

 

 The Company provides administration, reinsurance, accounting, and a range of other 
services to Riskpool and LAPP.  

 

 The Company provides superannuation services for local government and local government 
staff via SuperEasy and SuperEasy KiwiSaver.  

 

 The Company provides accounting services to Local Government Online (LGOL) and the NZ 
Society of Local Government Managers (SOLGM).  

 

 The Company investigates and facilitates as appropriate new financial services products 
and/or markets that it believes will prove beneficial to its shareholders and the local 
government sector.  
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 Ownership and management of Civic Assurance House provides a centre in Wellington’s CBD 
for national local government organisations (e.g., LGNZ, SOLGM, LGOL and Civic) and 
diversity of investment risk.  

 In a modest and selective way the Company provides sponsorship for a range of local 
government activities at regional and national level. 

Performance Targets as per 2012-22 Long Term Plan 

 To maintain a claims paying ability rating from rating agency AM Best of “A (Excellent)”. 

 To provide financial services to at least 90 percent of local authorities. 

 To be acknowledged as the preferred supplier for the Local Government market of 
superannuation services. 

 To continue to be an efficient and effective Fund Manager for Riskpool and an efficient and 
effective Administration Manager for Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund. 

Performance Targets as per 2012 Statement of Intent 

 To obtain and maintain a claims paying ability rating from rating agency AM Best of ‘A 
(Excellent)’.  

 To provide insurance and/or cover from the Civic Property Pool to at least 60% of local 
authorities by 1 July 2014.  

 To provide superannuation services to at least 90% of local authorities.  
 

 To continue to be an efficient and effective administration manager for Riskpool and LAPP. 

Profits, Dividend Policy and Projections 

The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation has three main sources of revenue: 
insurance premiums, investment income, and fees from providing administration and accounting 
services.  The profit outlook is as follows: 

Profits from providing insurance 

The insurance business has been extremely competitive with insurance rates well below what they 
were in 2001, which was the bottom of the last insurance rate cycle.  Prices following the two 
Christchurch earthquakes will increase substantially. 

Profits from investment income 

An environment of lower interest rates and investment returns inevitably means less investment 
income.  Civic Assurance’s investment return is strongly influenced by the investment performance 
of its nine-story office block at 114 Lambton Quay, Wellington. 

Profits from providing administration and accounting services 

After allowing for Civic Assurance’s expenses, these are very modest, but will increase as the amount 
of the subsidy for maintaining SuperEasy KiwiSaver decreases. 

The effect of the two large Christchurch earthquakes on Civic Assurance will be back-to-back losses 
for 2010 and 2011.  The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation’s net equity has 
reduced from $19.5 million at 30 June 2010 to $13.4 million (unaudited) at 28 February 2011, which 
has reduced the New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation’s solvency margin on the 
Reserve Bank of New Zealand basis to 133 percent.  The New Zealand Local Government Insurance 
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Corporation therefore proposes to withhold dividends until such time as it has restored its capital 
base.  Financial projections are shown below: 

 

Year Ended 31 December 2011 31 December 2012 31 December 2013 

Pre-tax surplus -$2,000,000 $2,500,000 $2,500,000 

Gross cost of dividend 0 0 0 

Net asset value $14,074,000 $15,824,000 $17,574,000 

Net asset value per share $2.20 $2.48 $2.75 

 

Local Authority Shared Services Limited 

Shareholders 

Local Authority Shared Services Limited is jointly owned by 12 local authorities. 

 Waikato Regional Council 

 Hamilton City Council 

 Hauraki District Council 

 Matamata-Piako District Council 

 Otorohanga District Council 

 Rotorua District Council 

 South Waikato District Council 

 Taupo District Council 

 Thames-Coromandel District Council 

 Waikato District Council 

 Waipa District Council 

 Waitomo District Council 

Background 

The local authorities within the boundaries of the Waikato region have adopted shared services as a 
mechanism for providing back of office type services in a coordinated manner across the region to 
leverage opportunities and deliver benefits.  Over the period that Local Authority Shared Services 
Limited has been operating, the following positive outcomes have been achieved: 

 Improved level and quality of service provided through the Shared Valuation Database 
Service. 

 Coordinated approach to the provision of services. 

 Reductions in the cost of services. 

 Opportunities to develop new initiatives. 

 Opportunities for all councils, irrespective of location or size, to benefit from joint initiatives. 

 Economies of scale, resulting in cost saving, have been achieved in procurement. 
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There are two shared services currently operating. The Shared Valuation Data Service provides 
valuation data services to the councils and has been established to ensure that valuation data is both 
accurate and current.  The Waikato Regional Transport Model has been developed to collect 
information on traffic type and flows which will be used to develop a transport model for the 
Waikato region.  New services will only be adopted where a business case shows that they provide 
some form of benefit to the shareholders. 

Council Policies and Objectives Relating to Council Controlled Organisations 

The Constitution of Local Authorities Shared Services Limited set out the principles and expectations 
around how the company will be governed and operated.  While council has no formal policies and 
objectives, it has become a shareholder on the basis that the Local Authority Shared Services Limited 
will develop products and services of significant benefit to Waipa residents and ratepayers. 

Company Objectives 

The objective of the Local Authority Shared Services Limited is to provide Waikato region’s local 
authorities with a vehicle to procure shared services.  It provides a mechanism for the development 
of new services which are available to any shareholder that chooses to join.  It also provides those 
councils that wish to develop new services with a company structure under which they can develop 
and promote services to other local authorities. 

Nature and Scope of Activities as per 2012-22 Long Term Plan 

There are currently two major operations under the Local Authority Shared Services Limited 
umbrella: 

Shared Valuation Data Service 

This operational system is providing both timely and accurate valuation data for the participating 
councils.  The Shared Valuation Data Service has become the accepted valuation service in the 
region, and the service is showing interest from councils outside the present shareholders. 

Waikato Regional Transportation Model 

This model provides accurate information to councils for their transport modelling requirements.  It 
is expected that this model will become the industry standard, and it is already attracting interest 
from outside the shareholding councils. 

No specific shared services are under review at the present time.  However, some opportunities in 
the area of procurement have been identified and will be reviewed in early 2012. 

The Local Authority Shared Services directors will continue to discuss their role in the development 
of business cases for shared services at future meetings.  These investigations will include reporting 
to shareholders on the alternative mechanisms to develop shared services. 

Directors are mindful of the current political environment, and see these investigations of possible 
shared services as a key focus of their role. 

Nature and Scope of Activities to be Undertaken as per 2012/13 Statement of Intent 

There are currently two major operations under the LASS umbrella. 

Firstly, the Shared Valuation Data Service (SVDS). This operational system is providing both timely 
and accurate valuation data to member Councils and shareholders.  The SVDS has become the 
accepted valuation database in the region.  

Secondly, the Waikato Regional Transportation Model (WRTM). This model became fully operational 
in February 2010.  This Model, built within its budgeted cost, provides accurate information to 
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Councils for their transport modelling requirements. The WRTM is the only recognised strategic 
transport modelling resource in the Waikato Region. 

A range of shared service opportunities are being considered at the present time. For example, some 
opportunities in the area of procurement have been identified and the shareholders are looking to 
progress these opportunities. 

Further work is also under way to consider how human resource initiatives can be advanced 
collectively under LASS. 

Based on feedback from shareholder Councils and the CEO Forum, the LASS Directors will continue 
to discuss their role in the development of business cases for shared services at its future meetings. 
These investigations will include reporting to shareholders and the Waikato Triennial Forum on the 
alternative mechanisms to develop shared services. 

Directors are mindful of the current political environment, and see these investigations of possible 
shared services as a key focus of their role. 

The Company is currently in the process of identifying resource requirements to accelerate efforts to 
advance collaboration across the shareholder Councils. 

Performance Targets as per 2012-22 Long Term Plan 

Performance targets relate to the level of services that are current or under development.  It is 
envisaged that these targets will expand as new services are developed.  The targets include: 

 Shareholder Survey:  Local Authority Shared Services Limited will carry out an annual survey 
of shareholders to assist the directors in developing improvements on behalf of the 
shareholders, and to receive a majority of shareholder approval on the service provided. 

 Costs control:  Administration expenditure shall not exceed that budgeted by more than 5 
percent unless prior approval is obtained from the Directors. 

 Cashflow:  Local Authority Shared Services Limited maintains an overall positive cashflow 
position. 

 Reporting:  The Board will provide a written report on the business operations and financial 
position of Local Authority Shared Services Limited on a six monthly basis. 

 Statutory Adherence: There will be an annual report to directors that all statutory 
requirements of the Local Authority Shared Services Limited are being adhered to. 

 Shared Valuation Database Service availability:  That Shared Valuation Database Service is 
available to users at least 99 percent of normal working hours. 

 Shared Valuation Database Service Sales Data delivery:  That at least 98 percent of agreed 
timelines are met for sale and property files that have been delivered to the File Transfer 
Protocol server for access to customers. 

 Shared Valuation Database Service Major Enhancement Development Hours:  That over 50 
percent of the Intergen support hours are spent on major development work. 

 Waikato Regional Transport Model: That all required modelling reports are actioned within 
the required timeframe. 

 Waikato Regional Transport Model:  That a full report on progress of the model be provided 
to the Local Authority Shared Services Limited Board twice each year. 
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Performance Targets as per 2012/13 Statement of Intent 

Performance targets relate to the level of services that are current or under development.  It is 
envisaged that these targets will expand as new services are developed.    

 Shareholder Survey: The company will carry out an annual survey of shareholders to assist 
the Directors in developing improvements on behalf of the shareholders, and to receive a 
majority of shareholder approval on the service provided. 

 Costs Control: Administration expenditure shall not exceed that budgeted by more than 5% 
unless prior approval is obtained from the Directors. 

 Cashflow: The company maintains an overall positive cashflow position. 

 Reporting: The Board will provide a written report on the business operations and financial 
position of the LASS on a six monthly basis.   

 Statutory Adherence: There will be an annual report to directors that all statutory 
requirements of the LASS are being adhered to. 

 SVDS Availability: That SVDS is available to users at least 99% of normal working hours. 

 SVDS Sales Data Delivery: That at least 98%of agreed timelines are met for sale and property 
files that have been delivered to the FTP server for access to customers.  

 SVDS Major Enhancement Development Hours: All Capital enhancement development work 
is supported by a business case approved by the Advisory Group. 

 WRTM: That all required modelling reports are actioned within the required timeframe. 

 WRTM: That a full report on progress of the model be provided to the LASS Board twice each 
year. 

 Advice to the Regional Governance Group:  In response to requests from shareholders, the 
Company will provide regular reports and updates to the Regional Governance group 
regarding progress with shared service initiatives. 

The Annual Report for the above mentioned companies, for the year ended 30 June 2011, will be 
publicly available in due course. 

Performance Measures as per 2012/13 Annual Report 

 

Performance Measure Actual Outcome 

The company will carry out an annual survey of 
shareholders to assist Directors in developing 
improvements on behalf of the shareholders, 
and to receive a majority of shareholder 
approval on the service provided. 

Annual survey of shareholders was completed in 
June 2013 with all twelve shareholder Councils 
responding. Ten councils responded that the 
concept of LASS was still delivering benefits to 
their council. Three Councils responded that they 
were satisfied with the efforts being made by 
LASS to advance shared services opportunities 
and nine were “fairly satisfied”. Those who 
responded fairly satisfied were generally 
satisfied with the existing services but 
considered more could be achieved through 
other shared service opportunities. 



 

163 

Performance Measure Actual Outcome 

Administration expenditure shall not exceed that 
budgeted by more than 5% unless prior approval 
is obtained from the Directors. 

Achieved, actual expenditure was $13,727 
favourable to budget. 

The company maintains an overall positive cash 
flow position. 

Achieved. Cash, cash equivalents and bank 
accounts at end of year were $571,147. 

The Board will provide a written report on the 
business operations and financial position of the 
LASS as a minimum on a six monthly basis. 

Six monthly reports have been sent to 
shareholders. 

There will be an annual report to directors that 
all statutory requirements of the LASS are being 
adhered to. 

All parties have confirmed that there were no 
legislative breaches during the year and this will 
be reported to the LASS Board at the August 
meeting when the Annual Report is presented. 

That SVDS is available to users at least 99% of 
normal working hours. 

SVDS was available 99.93% of working hours. 

That at least 98% of agreed timelines are met for 
sale and property files that have been delivered 
to the FTP server for access to customers. 

99.9% of Sales and Property files were supplied 
to Property IQ on time. 

All Capital SVDS enhancement work is supported 
by a business case approved by the Advisory 
Group. 

All Capital enhancement work was approved by 
the SVDS Advisory Group. 

That all required WRTM modelling reports are 
actioned within the required timeframe. 

Achieved. No complaints received. 

That a full report on progress of the WRTM 
model be provided to the LASS Board twice each 
year. 

Achieved. 

In response to requests from shareholders, the 
Company will provide regular reports and 
updates to the Regional Governance group 
regarding progress with shared service 
initiatives. 

The Company has provided, when requested, 
reporting to the Waikato Mayoral Forum on 
shared services initiatives. The Company has 
supported the Mayoral Forum workstream 
projects, acting as the financial controller of 
funding and contractual commitments 
associated with these projects.  Additional 
communications with shareholders include the 
formation of a Shared Services Working Party 
with membership from each shareholding 
Council. 
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Auditor’s Report 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the readers of Waipa District Council’s annual report 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 

 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Waipa District Council (the District Council). The 
Auditor-General has appointed me, Clarence Susan, using the staff and resources of 
Audit New Zealand to audit: 

 the financial statements of the District Council that comprise: 

o the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013 on page 28; 

o the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year ending 30 June 2013 
on pages 26 to 29; 

o the funding impact statement of the District Council on page 30; 

o the statements about budgeted and actual capital expenditure in 
relation to each group of activities of the District Council on pages 80 
to 146; and 

o the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies 
and other explanatory information about the financial statements on 
pages 31 to 71: 

 the statement of service performance of the District Council on pages 78 to 
139 and the funding impact statements in relation to each group of activities 
of the District Council on pages 81 to 147. 

In addition, the Auditor-General has appointed me to report on whether the District 
Council’s annual report complies with the Other Requirements of schedule 10 of the 
Local Government Act 2002, where applicable, by including: 

 information about: 

o internal borrowing on pages 82 to 148; 

o reserve funds on pages 57 to 59; 

o each group of activities carried out by the District Council on pages 
76 to 148; 
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o remuneration paid to the elected member and certain employees of 
the District Council on pages 63 to 64; 

o employee staffing levels and remuneration on page 64;  

o severance payments on page 64; and 

o council-controlled organisations on page 149 to 163: 

 a report on the activities undertaken by the District Council to establish and 
maintain processes to provide opportunities for Maori to contribute to the 
Council’s decision-making processes on pages 23 to 24; and 

 a statement of compliance signed by the mayor of the Council, and by the 
District Council’s chief executive on page 25. 

Opinion  

Audited information 

In our opinion:  

 the financial statements of the District Council on pages 26 to 29: 

o comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; 
and 

o fairly reflect: 

 the District Council’s financial position as at 30 June 2013; 
and 

 the results of its operations and cash flows for the year 
ended on that date:  

 the funding impact statement of the District Council on page 30, fairly reflects 
the amount of funds produced from each source of funding and how the 
funds were applied as compared to the information included in the District 
Council’s annual plan; 

 the statements about budgeted and actual capital expenditure in relation to 
each group of activities of the District Council on pages 80 to 146, fairly 
reflects by each group of activities the capital expenditure spent as compared 
to the amounts budgeted and set out in the District Council’s long-term plan 
or annual plan; and 

 the statement of service performance of the District Council on pages 78 to 
139: 

o complies with generally accepted accounting practice in 
New Zealand; and 
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o fairly reflects the District Council’s levels of service for the year 
ended 30 June 2013, including: 

 the levels of service as measured against the intended levels 
of service adopted in the long-term plan; and 

 the reasons for any significant variances between the actual 
service and the expected service. 

 the funding impact statements in relation to each group of activities of the 
District Council on pages 81 to 147, fairly reflects by each group of activities, 
the amount of funds produced from each source of funding and how the 
funds were applied as compared to the information included in the District 
Council’s long-term plan. 

Compliance with the other requirements of schedule 10 

In our opinion, which is not an audit opinion, the District Council’s annual report 
complies with the Other Requirements of schedule 10 that are applicable to the 
annual report. 

Our audit was completed on 10 September 2013. This is the date at which our opinion 
is expressed. 

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities 
of the Council and our responsibilities, and we explain our independence. 

Basis of opinion 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry 
out our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the information we 
audited is free from material misstatement.  

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, 
in our judgement, are likely to influence readers’ overall understanding of the 
financial statements and the statement of service performance. If we had found 
material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have referred to them in 
our opinion. 

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the information we audited. The procedures selected depend on 
our judgement, including our assessment of risks of material misstatement of the 
information we audited, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the District Council’s 
preparation of the information we audited that fairly reflect the matters to which they 
relate. We consider internal control in order to design procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District Council’s internal control. 
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An audit also involves evaluating: 

 the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been 
consistently applied; 

 the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements 
made by the Council; 

 the adequacy of all disclosures in the information we audited;  

 determining the appropriateness of the reported the statement of service 
performance within the Council’s framework for reporting performance; and 

 the overall presentation of the information we audited. 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of 
the information we audited.  

When reporting on whether the annual report complies with the Other Requirements 
of schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002, our procedures were limited to 
making sure the information required by schedule 10 was included in the annual 
report, where relevant, and identifying material inconsistencies, if any, with the 
information we audited. This work was carried out in accordance with International 
Standard on Auditing (New Zealand) 720; The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to 
Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements. As a 
result we do not express an audit opinion on the District Council’s compliance with 
the requirements of schedule 10. 

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the 
information we are required to audit and report on. We have obtained all the 
information and explanations we have required and we believe we have obtained 
sufficient and appropriate evidence to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Council 

The Council is responsible for preparing: 

 financial statements and the statement of service performance that: 

o comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;  

o fairly reflect the District Council’s financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows; and 

o fairly reflect its service performance, including achievements 
compared to forecast: 

 a funding impact statement that fairly reflects the amount of funds produced 
from each source of funding and how the funds were applied as compared to 
the information included in the District Council’s annual plan; 
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 funding impact statements in relation to each group of activities that fairly 
reflects by each group of activities the amount of funds produced from each 
source of funding and how the funds were applied as compared to the 
information included in the District Council’s long-term plan; 

 statements about budgeted and actual capital expenditure in relation to each 
group of activities that fairly reflects by each group of activities the capital 
expenditure spent as compared to the amounts budgeted and set out in the 
District Council’s long-term plan or annual plan; and 

 the other information in accordance with the requirements of schedule 10 of 
the Local Government Act 2002. 

The Council is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to 
ensure that the annual report is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. The Council is also responsible for the publication of the annual report, 
whether in printed or electronic form. 

The Council’s responsibilities arise under the Local Government Act 2002. 

Responsibilities of the Auditor 

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on, the information we are 
required to audit, and whether the Council has complied with the Other Requirements 
of schedule 10, and reporting that opinion to you. Our responsibility arises under 
section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 99 of the Local Government Act 
2002. 

Independence 

When carrying out this audit, which includes our report on the Other Requirements, 
we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, which 
incorporate the independence requirements of the External Reporting Board. Other 
than this audit, which includes our report on the Other Requirements, we have no 
relationship with, or interests, in the District Council. 

 

Clarence Susan 
Audit New Zealand 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Tauranga, New Zealand 
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